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Overview of the Company
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Harbin Electric Company Limited (the “Company”) was formed through
the restructuring of Harbin Electric Corporation (formerly known as
Harbin Power Plant Equipment Group Corporation), which is the oldest
large-scale power plant equipment manufacturer in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") and its three affiliates: Harbin Electrical
Machinery Works, Harbin Boiler Works and Harbin Turbine Works (the
“three major power factories”). These three major power factories
were founded in the 1950s. The Company was established in Harbin,
PRC on 6 October, 1994. The shares of the Company were listed on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “"HKSE") on 16
December, 1994.

As at 31 December, 2013, the total share capital of the Company
comprised of 1,376,806,000 shares, of which 675,571,000 shares were
H shares traded on the HKSE.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are the largest
manufacturer of power plant equipment in the PRC. The Group's
principal activities include:

° Thermal power main equipments: boilers, steam turbines and
steam turbine generators with single unit capacity up to
1,000MW, the largest manufacturing base in the PRC for clean
coal combustion equipment, CFB, PFBC, etc, accounting for 30%
market share in the PRC;

° Hydro power main equipments: hydro power generators units
with single unit capacity up to 800MW class, accounting for more
than 50% market share in the PRC;

° Nuclear power main equipments: nuclear island and conventional
island equipments for nuclear power plants with single unit
capacity up to 1,000MW class;

o Complete set of steam power equipment: 9F class gas turbine
and combined gas and steam cycle set;

° Clean energy: R&D and production of products such as wind
power, solar energy, hydro power and desalination;
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Overview of the Company (continued)
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o Other products: ancillary equipment for power stations, industrial
boilers, industrial steam turbines, control devices, AC/DC motors,
valves for power stations, pressure vessels and axial compressor,
etc;

° Turn-key construction of power station projects;

° Contract supply of complete sets of thermal and hydro power
equipment;
o Import and export of equipment for power stations;

° After sales service for power station equipment products;

o R&D of engineering technology for turnkey power equipment;

o R&D of power equipment and its ancillary products;

° Technology transfer, technical consultation and services;

o Environmental protection engineering services, such as
desulfation and denitrification.

The Group possesses a pool of top talents in scientific research,
technology and management, as well as a comprehensive range of
advanced production and research facilities. Its capabilities in research
and development, production and manufacturing and power station
construction are among the best in the power plant equipment
manufacturing industry in the PRC.

The Group is located in Harbin, the PRC, which is known as the “City
of the Power".
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Overview of the Company (continued)

ATEERTEEL CORPORATE STRUCTURE AND MAIN BUSINESS LINE
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Financial Highlights (continued)

hFHEE  BERBERR Summary of Results, Assets and Liabilities of the Past Five Years
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Unit Year ended 31 December,
By 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(&%) (&%)
(restated) (restated)

EEE ARBTFT 20,500,705 25,995,186 28,487,782 29,172,224 28,629,522
Turnover RMB’000
BRE A= A AREEFTT 778,094 1,770,826 1,663,931 1,361,901 984,512
Profit before taxation RMB'000
RABIRRD B AR RT] AREFIT 705,813 1,420,947 1,241,325 1,001,108 606,206
Profit attributable to RMB'000

equity shareholders of

the Company
AEME AREEFIT 60,361,132 54,946,449 50,917,052 50,756,109 52,876,381
Total assets RMB'000
afEBE AREETFIT 46,066,883 41,080,265 38,206,974 39,592,267 42,659,119
Total liabilities RMB'000
JEPERRRE RS ARBEF T 1,767,166 1,842,189 1,951,072 1,462,394 1,578,236
Non-controlling interests RMB’000
ARATRRD A AE(HERS ARBETF T 12,527,083 12,023,995 10,759,006 9,701,448 8,639,026
Equity attributable to RMB'000

equity shareholders of

the Company
HRFEE AR 9.10 8.73 7.81 7.05 6.27
Net assets per share RMB
SR AT AREETT 0.513 1.032 0.902 0.727 0.440

Earnings per share RMB
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Financial Highlights (continued)

HZ2013512A31ALEE HE2012412 A31 BIEFE (7))
Year ended 31 December, 2013 Year ended 31 December, 2012 (restated)
REIZEMDBEEBERFBER B &R EE R EER EEMEER
Turnover and contribution to operating Contribution to Contribution to
profit by major product categories Turnover operating profit Turnover operating profit
AR¥Fr AREFTT ARETFT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
NEEHERE 12,447,960 2,521,737 15,492,620 3,452,702
Main thermal power equipment
IKE E KRG 2,703,922 694,637 3,800,862 1,263,199
Main hydro power equipment
Bk TR 1,811,299 408,642 3,354,372 314,651
Engineering services for power stations
BRI EEERE 733,215 209,066 992,595 232,444
Ancillary equipment for power stations
R BB MR E A EE B AR TS 2,804,309 486,800 2,354,737 317,743
AC/DC motors and other products
and services
20,500,705 4,320,882 25,995,186 5,680,739
H s 330,243 274,751
Profit from other activities
AOBHFEEMZER (3,873,031) (4,084,664)
Expenses not allocated to major products
B 75 Al i A1) 778,094 1,770,826

Profit before taxation
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Chairman’s Statement

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the 2013 annual report
of Harbin Electric Company Limited and its subsidiaries (hereinafter
referred to as the “Group”).

In 2013, as the global economic struggled to recover, China’s economy
remained stable with bright spots. Facing the complex and difficult
landscape both at home and abroad, the Group takes on the difficult
task of reform and renovation while maintaining sustainable
development, and strives to achieve stable development, to reorganize
its structure, to emphasis on innovation, to realize reformation, to
tackle challenges head-on and work hard to achieve excellency, and our
efforts have made fruitful results.

With the support from our shareholders, the Group overcame different
challenges and secured a smooth production and operation. We
achieved the targeted profit index, in line with the transformation and
upgrading control expectation. During the year, the Group realized a net
profit of approximately RMB706 million, a decrease of 50.33% over the
previous year, while the net asset return rate was 5.75%, a drop of
6.72 percentage point over the previous year. The Group has duly
signed new contracts amounted to RMB52.147 billion, providing a
steady foothold for the come-back of the Group. Among which, orders
for export products amounted to RMB21.258 billion, accounting for
40.77% of total contract value, which has stayed above the RMB20
billion threshold for three consecutive years.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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During the reporting period, we furthered reformation and accelerated
transformation within the Group, and insisted on independent
innovation in our products and continued to adjust our industrial
construction. First, our hydropower business achieved new height. We
were contracted to build the 800MW water turbine power generator
with grid connection at Xiangjiaba Dam, the world's first single unit
with the highest capacity. Second, the Group’s nuclear power business
has entered into a new chapter. We have obtained design permit for
the SAD-class pressure vessel, successfully developed the first self-
developed intellectual property rights main pump generator
manufactured in China, and the million-grade pressurized water reactor
coolant pump has completed a successful full-flow test run. Third, our
fuel gas business reached new development, we achieved
breakthrough by entering into the domestic market of distributed
energy. Fourth, our seawater desalination business entered into new
territory, as our first stand-alone wind-powered desalination pilot
project main equipment without grid connection with the world’s
highest capacity has commenced functioning. Fifth, we have achieved
breakthrough within our tidal power generation business, and
successfully completed the manufacturing of the first 3MW tidal power
station for Dangjin, Korea.

During the year, the Group endeavored to innovate its technologies and
upgrade its products, and was granted 30 patent authorizations and 10
science and technology awards at national, provincial and ministerial

levels.

During the reporting period, the Group placed high importance on
investors’ relation management and brand building, and was awarded
the “Best Brand Value Listed Company (&2 M@ EEE LA R]) " from
the China Securities Golden Bauhinia Awards (7 Bl &% [ & 55 | 712
)
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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Looking forward in 2014, the global economic recovery faces
instabilities and uncertainties. New economies encounter new
difficulties and challenges. Key factors supporting China’s development
also changes dramatically, shining a spotlight on any deep-seated
imbalances. China is at the perilous times of transformation
development, putting considerable downtrend pressure on the
economy. Meanwhile, facing the conflicting phenomenon of over-
production of the power-generating equipment industry and rising
prices of raw materials, the market demand shifts towards cleaner and
more environmental-friendly renewable energy, bringing about both
risk and opportunities to the industry. In defiance of the adverse
economic landscape and complex market environment, the Group will
continue to observe the principle of “Making Progress while Ensuring
Stability”, enhancing quality and efficiency through innovations,
effecting reforms to generate motivation, so as to establish solid
foundation from within and make an effort to forge ahead. We
endeavour to achieve sustainable and steady development, and to
strive for excellent performance and attain fruitful returns to our
shareholders.

| would like to express my gratitude to our shareholders for their
support and trust, to my colleagues on the Board of Directors and
Board of Supervisors for their assistance and contribution, and to all of
our staff members for their efforts and dedication.

Chairman
Gong Jing-kun

Harbin, the PRC, 21 March 2014
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(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)
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This section must be read in conjunction with the financial statements
and notes as set out elsewhere in this annual report.

MACRO ECONOMY AND INDUSTRY
DEVELOPMENT

Growing at a slow pace, the world economy made little headway in
recovery during 2013. The economic performance of the PRC remained
stable with some bright spots, including a 7.7% GDP growth. Balance
between supply and demand was generally maintained in China’s
power market with a growth of 7.5% in terms of power consumption
across the nation. As at the end of 2013, installed capacity of power
generating units reached 1,250,000 MW, topping the world rankings.
Installed capacity of non-fossil fuel generating units increased by
58,290 MW, representing 62% of the newly installed capacity of power
generating units.

NEW CONTRACTS

For 2013, facing increasingly keen competition in the market, the
Group managed to engage full scale marketing activities, realizing
RMB52.147 billion worth of duly signed contracts, of which
RMB26.011 billion (or 49.88% of total contract value) for thermal
power equipment, RMB2.252 billion (or 4.32% of total contract value)
for hydropower equipment, RMB3.027 billion (or 5.80% of total
contract value) for nuclear power equipment, RMB3.344 billion (or
6.41% of total contract value) for hybrid equipment, RMB12.882 billion
(or 24.70% of total contract value) for power engineering, and
RMB4.631 billion (or 8.89% of total contract value) for other products.

The thermal power equipment segment achieved another breakthrough
in securing projects with a capacity of 1,000MW by entering into
contracts with Guohua Jiujiang and Yongzhou for four 1,000MW ultra-
supercritical power generating units. Besides, it also entered into
contracts with GCL Binhai and Sanmenxia for four 1,000MW ultra-
supercritical boilers.

Hydropower equipment segment reached new level of
competitiveness by entering into contracts for four 300MW water
turbine generators for pumped storage power station in Shenzhen,
entering into the market of pumped storage power station with high
head range and high capacity.
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The nuclear power equipment segment entered a new phase in
product development by entering into contracts for exporting K2 and
K3 evaporators to Pakistan, being the first exportation of nuclear island
major equipment with a capacity of 1,000MW. Contracts for twelve
CAP1000 reactor coolant pumps at an aggregate contract price of
RMB1.6 billion were also signed.

The hybrid equipment segment achieved a breakthrough in market
development by signing a construction agreement for a natural gas
distribution station in Jinzhou, Dalian, marking a milestone in perfecting
the industry chain.

New contracts secured from international markets amounted to
RMB21.258 billion (or 40.77% of total contract value), including the
projects in respect of 500KV and 230KV power distribution and
transmission network and substation in Ecuador. The signing of a
contract with Zetes of Turkey in connection with the turnkey project for
two 660 MW supercritical coal-fired power plants indicated the
supercritical generating units with a capacity of 600MW once again
entered the European market.

PRODUCTION AND SERVICES

In 2013, facing the drawback of delayed projects and frequent
modifications in pipeline production, the Group addressed the situation
by conducting a comprehensive analysis into the characteristics of
individual projects, coming up with a well-thought arrangement,
vigorously managing risks, stepping up assurance measures and
actively manage our businesses. The total output of the major power
equipment of the year reached 19,920MW, representing a decrease of
16.53% over the previous year, of which the capacity of water turbine
generators amounted to 5,740MW, decreasing by 20.19% over the
previous year; the capacity of steam turbine generators amounted to
14,040MW, decreasing by 15.67% over the previous year.

R&D AND TECHNOLOGY INTRODUCTION

In 2013, the Group was granted 236 patent authorizations, 30 of which
were related to inventions, completed 340 R&D projects and received
18 accolades, 10 of which were at provincial or ministerial level.
Ruilijiang hydropower station in Myanmar undertaken by the Group
received silver award of quality construction project.
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“A Study on the Manufacture Technology of AP1000 Evaporator” was
approved. Proposal entitled “ 82 /H LBt & 1BIR A 20 R B SE AR B X
&L " filled the void of the domestic market and the “ K#U7K bR ZEE

Bl 5 M pe B R R BRI AR * filled the void of the international
market. The 800MW water turbine power generator with grid
connection is the first self-developed, self-designed and locally-built
single-unit water turbine power generator with the world’s highest
capacity. We have successfully developed the 1,800 mm rotor blade on
half-speed nuclear turbine which satisfied international standards.
China's first nuclear power generator with a capacity of 1,000MW
which enjoys self-developed intellectual property rights has been built.
The first pressurized water reactor coolant pump with a capacity of
1,000MW manufactured in China has completed a successful test run.
The main desalination equipment pilot project for the world’s first
stand-alone off-grid wind power generating system has finished
testing. The first SMW tidal power generator unit has been completed.

REFORM AND MANAGEMENT

In 2013, the Group has fostered our internal reformation, perfected the
management system and effected optimization adjustments on the
organization structure of the Company, as well as strengthened staff
deployment and responsibilities division, thereby further enhanced
efficiency and quality.

The Group has further developed its management enhancement
programme and successfully completed the adjustments and
modifications to our specific projects with significant effects that
enhanced the level of management.

Comprehensive budget management was going on and expedited the
process of comprehensive budget management, actively monitoring
the implementation of budget plan and effectively controlling
expenditure.

Reforms addressing typical quality-related issues were proactively
executed. As a result, typical and recurrent quality-related issues were
brought under effective control and improved.

Equity adjustment and increase in capital of HE Finance Company
Limited have been completed, which serves as a platform for funds
management and a centre for providing financial services, and
efficiency of funding utilization was further improved.
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PROFIT

In 2013, net profit attributable to the shareholders of the Company was
RMB705.81 million, a decrease of 50.33% over the previous year;
earnings per share were RMBO0.51, a decrease of RMB0.52 over the
previous year; net asset as at the end of the period attributable to the
shareholders of the Company was RMB12,527.08 million, an increase
of RMB503.09 million compared to the beginning of the year; net asset
per share was RMB9.10, an increase of RMB0.37 compared to the
beginning of the year.

During the period, the decrease in profit of the Group was mainly
attributable to the drop in revenue.

TURNOVER

In 2013, the Group recorded a turnover of principal business activities
of RMB20,500.71 million, a decrease of 21.14% over the previous
year. In particular, turnover of the main thermal power equipment
business (including nuclear power and hybrid power) was
RMB12,447.96 million, representing 60.72% of the turnover of the
principal business activities, a decrease of 19.65% over the previous
year. Turnover from main hydropower equipment was RMB2,703.92
million, representing 13.19% of the turnover of the principal business
activities, a decrease of 28.86% over the previous year. Turnover of
engineering services for power stations was RMB1,811.30 million,
representing 8.83% of the turnover from the principal business
activities, a decrease of 46% over the previous year. Turnover of
ancillary equipment for power stations was RMB733.22 million,
representing 3.58% of the turnover from the principal business
activities, a decrease of 26.13% over the previous year. Turnover of
AC/DC motors and other products and services was RMB2,804.31
million, representing 13.68% of the turnover of the principal business
activities, an increase of 19.09% over the previous year.

In 2013, the Group recorded a turnover of export of RMB2,177.26
million, accounted for 10.62% of the turnover of the principal business
activities, representing a decrease of RMB1,833.23 million over the
previous year. The export was mainly to such regions as Asia and
South America.
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COST

In 2013, the cost of the principal business activities of the Group was
RMB16,179.82 million, a decrease of 20.74% over the previous year.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

In 2013, the gross profit from the principal business activities of the
Group was RMB4,320.88 million, a decrease of 22.58% over the
previous year. The gross profit margin was 21.08%, a drop of 0.39
percentage points over the previous year. Among them the gross profit
from main thermal power equipment was RMB2,521.73 million, a
decrease of RMB930.97 million over the previous year. The gross profit
margin for main thermal power equipment was 20.26%, a drop of 2.03
percentage points over the previous year. The gross profit from main
hydropower equipment was RMB694.64 million, a decrease of
RMB568.56 million over the previous year. The gross profit margin for
main hydropower equipment was 25.69%, a drop of 7.54 percentage
points over the previous year. The gross profit from engineering
services for power stations was RMB408.64 million, an increase of
RMB93.99 million over the previous year. The gross profit margin for
engineering services for power stations was 22.56%, an increase of
13.18 percentage points over the previous year. The gross profit from
ancillary equipment for power stations was RMB209.07 million, a
decrease of RMB23.38 million over the previous year. The gross profit
margin for ancillary equipment for power stations was 28.51%, an
increase of 5.09 percentage points over the previous year. The gross
profit from the AC/DC motors and other products and services was
RMB486.80 million, an increase of RMB169.06 million over the
previous year. The gross profit margin for the AC/DC motors and other
products and services was 17.36%, an increase of 3.87 percentage
points over the previous year.

EXPENSES DURING THE PERIOD

In 2013, the Group's distribution expenses amounted to RMB528.43
million, a decrease of RMB116.53 million or 18.07% over the previous

year.

In 2013, administrative expenses amounted to RMB3,066.75 million, a
decrease of RMB254.22 million or 7.65% over the previous year.
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The decrease in expenses during the year was mainly due to the
continuous effort of the Company in expenses control, the decrease in
entertainment expenses and maintenance expenses and the reduction

in provision.

INTEREST EXPENSE

In 2013, the Group has incurred finance costs of RMB228.48 million,
an increase of RMB172.04 million over the previous year, which was
principally attributable to the interests provided for issuance of bonds.

FUNDING SOURCES AND BORROWINGS

The Group has four major funding sources for operation and
development, namely shareholder’s funds, trade receivables from
customers, bank borrowings and corporate bonds. The Group arranges
borrowings for each specific project. Except for some special
situations, loans will be raised individually by the Group's subsidiaries.
However, prior approval from the parent company is required in respect
of borrowings raised for capital investments. As the number of orders
and advance receipts increased significantly during the past two years,
together with the issuance of corporate bonds, the Group had abundant
working capital and has thus repaid substantially all of the loans for
working capital. As at 31 December 2013, the total sum of the Group's
borrowings was RMB1,726.66 million (31 December 2012:
RMB2,079.91 million). The Group's bank borrowings are loans from
various commercial banks and the State’s policy banks with interest
rates stipulated by the state. Among the Group's borrowings, the
amount due within one year was RMB738.46 million, a decrease of
RMB360.13 million compared to the beginning of the year. The amount
of the Group's borrowings due after one year was RMB988.20 million,
an increase of RMB6.88 million compared to the beginning of the year.

DEPOSITS AND CASH FLOW

As at 31 December 2013, bank deposits and cash of the Group
amounted to RMB11,865.08 million, an increase of RMB2,904.01
million compared to the beginning of the year. During the period, net
cash inflow from operating activities of the Group amounted to
RMB1,395.83 million. Net cash outflow from investment activities
amounted to RMB1,866.36 million and net cash inflow from financing
activities was RMB2,563.14 million.
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ASSET STRUCTURE AND ITS MOVEMENTS

As at 31 December 2013, total assets of the Group amounted to
RMB60,361.13 million, an increase of RMB5,414.68 million (or 9.85%)
compared to the beginning of the year, among which current assets
were RMB52,358.93 million, representing 86.74% of the total assets,
and non-current assets were RMB8,002.20 million, representing
13.26% of the total assets.

LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2013, the Group's total liabilities amounted to
RMB46,066.88 million, an increase of RMB4,986.62 million compared
to the beginning of the year, among which total current liabilities were
RMB35,434.54 million, representing 76.92% of the total liabilities, and
total non-current liabilities were RMB10,632.34 million, representing
23.08% of the total liabilities. As at 31 December 2013, the gearing
ratio of the Group was 76.32%.

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

As at 31 December 2013, the total equity attributable to the
shareholders of the Company amounted to RMB12,527.08 million, an
increase of RMB503.09 million compared to the beginning of the year;
the net asset per share was RMB9.10. During the period, the net asset
return rate of the Group was 5.75%.

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2013, gearing ratio of the Group (non-current
liabilities over total shareholders’ equity) was 0.85:1 as compared to
that of 0.59:1 at the beginning of the year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND PLEDGE OF
ASSET

As at 31 December 2013, the Group pledged its assets in the amount
of RMB265.84 million to secure loans for liquidity and to obtain banking
facilities.
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AND MAJOR
INVESTMENTS

In 2013, the Group had a total capital expenditure of RMB684 million
invested in infrastructure constructions and technological upgrades.
The particulars of the investments and construction projects are as

follows:

As regards Phase | of the technology research base involving the
enclosed heating system, the construction of the main building was
completed. The installation work of two main trial platforms of our
combustion trial center has been completed and passed the trial
operation. As regards the projects under the nuclear power nuclear
island main equipment manufacturing automation, saved for the 110KV
step-down station, the construction work for all projects was
completed. The construction work for nuclear power ancillary
equipment manufacturing automation is essentially completed. The key
pilot project relating to production of components for the heavy duty
gas turbine has completed the procurement of equipment as well as
installation and adjustments. Construction work of other projects has
been implemented as scheduled.

In 2014, the Group intends to commit an investment of RMB739
million, which will be mainly used for projects such as Phase | of the
technology research base, the construction of combustion trial center,
and the nuclear power nuclear island main equipment manufacturing

automation.

As at 31 December 2013, the shareholdings by the Company were as

follows:

200 million A shares of Datang International Power Generation Co.,
Ltd.;

160 million A shares of GD Power Development Co., Ltd.;

75 million A shares of Inner Mongolia MengDian HuaNeng Thermal
Power Corporation Limited.
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EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES AND RELATED HEDGES

The Group has certain amount of deposits that are denominated in
foreign currencies. As at 31 December 2013, the amount of the
Group's deposits in foreign currencies was equivalent to RMB1,619.19
million. The export business and foreign currencies settled businesses
expose the Group to exchange risk.

USE OF FUND-RAISING PROCEEDS

The Company has fully utilized its proceeds from equity fund-raising
and no other usage of proceeds from equity fund-raising was recorded
in 2013.

In March 2013, the Company issued the domestic corporate bonds
(first tranche) with a size of RMBS3 billion, of which RMB2.63 billion
was applied to replenish working capital for production.

STAFF AND REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had a workforce of 19,358
employees and the total remuneration amounted to RMB1,693 million.
According to the development strategies and actual circumstances of
our human resources, the Group has drawn up a year-plan for staff
training based on their level of knowledge, skills, abilities as well as
other general criteria. Our training programs place emphasis on
professional training and have a focus on senior-level management
training, accompanied by certain aspects of academic education. Our
training program has broken the 70,000 attendance barrier and
effectively enhanced the overall standards of our staff.
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PROSPECT

In 2014, the global economy will continue its recovery at a slow pace.
Under such instability and uncertainties, the international market will
see intensified competitions. The PRC economic growth faces
structural adjustment, putting downward pressure on the economy.
The PRC government will insist its fundamentals of growing amid
stability, maintaining the continued stability of macro-economic policies,
deepening reform and implementing innovation. Opportunities always
co-exist with challenges as in the case of driving force and pressure.
The Group will implement further reforms and innovations as well as
optimizing resources allocation, in order to overcome the adversities
arising from the downturn of operations and the increasing risks and
difficulties. We will seize every advantages and favourable factors in
terms of development to uphold our scale, efficiency and operation
quality, and to build up trust and further our effort in advancement, so
as to reward our investors with the utmost efforts and performance.

The Group will focus on accomplishing the following tasks in 2014:

1. Strengthening analysis and judgment, developing markets,
honoring contracts and ensuring turnaround in operations

The Group will adhere to a system of reviewing the economy on
a quarterly basis to further analyze the economy pinpointing
quality and effectiveness. Attention will be paid to the changes of
the macro economy and prudent judgment will be made in
respect of the development trend of the industry, changes in
production essentials and demand from domestic and
international markets, ensuring appropriate measures are
prepared beforehand to mitigate risks arising from operations.

The Group will integrate marketing resources and leverage on its
own competitive edge to step up its efforts in market
development. While reinforcing our status within the traditional
market, emphasis will be placed on capturing emerging markets
overseas and increasing the proportion of orders secured from
international markets. To materialize breakthrough in
development, steps will be taken to tap into the markets of such
environment-friendly products and latest manufacturing services
as photovoltaic power generation, seawater desalination,
distributed energy, desulfation and denitration.
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The Group will also leverage its leading role in devising projects,
balance its production capacity and realize its potential so as to
meet the production target set for the year. Our capabilities in
honoring contracts will be further strengthened through
centralized management of information by specific departments,
the appraisal system for project implementation and the
application of a risk assessment model.

Accelerating innovation, adjusting structure, effecting self-
reliant R&D and materializing optimization and upgrading of
the industry

The Group will effectively integrate technological resources,
speed up the establishment of a technology innovation system,
enhance research into cutting edge technologies, industry-
specific technologies and system integration technologies, to
bring an advanced level R&D platform into being and enhance
the capabilities of coming up with original creation and rendering
innovation through integration of ideas.

The Group will make full use of such R&D platform as
combustion testing centre to considerably promote the clean
utilization of coal. It will expedite the development of nuclear
power industry and achieve breakthrough in key technologies so
as to launch branded products with self-developed intellectual
property rights as soon as possible. Active development of the
market of fuel-fired generators is to be made to gradually upgrade
the industry, expanding the Group’s business scope to distributed
energy and power generation by hybrid energy. We will actively
develop such environment-friendly products as desulfation and
denitration devices, waste heat boilers and highly efficient energy
saving power generators, specially addressing the air pollution
situation in a smoggy environment by studying the ways to
remove particulate matters in the atmosphere and developing
specific products.

By promoting the concept of protecting intellectual property
rights and building a portfolio of patents and standards, the Group
will further enhance its brand image and influence. It will
continue to enlarge its patent portfolio in terms of quantity and
quality as well as establish its self-developed intellectual property
rights as industry standards and even national standards.
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Innovating performance appraisal, implementing reforms,
integrating resources and enhancing vitality of the enterprise

The Group will perfect the procedure of assessing operating
results and implement segmental assessment with an emphasis
being placed on cost-effectiveness, improvement to
management short-comings and quality of development. The
Group will encourage its entities to shift to a growth pattern
focusing more on quality and effectiveness.

The Group will optimize its salary structure by initiating a reform
to the existing system regarding labor deployment and income
distribution. Magnitude of reform will be increased to form a
more market-oriented allocation mechanism, and the vitality and

competitiveness of the enterprise will be improved.

More work will be done in connection with shareholding
management and to increase capital operation, further integrating
internal and external resources and achieving strategic goals.

Strengthening the effects of cutting cost and increasing
effectiveness, exacting control, strengthening operation and
enhancing development quality

The Group will exercise strict cost control over the entire
production course and take steps to strengthen the capacity of
design, technology optimization and centralized procurement of
materials, steadily increasing profitability.

The Group will further analyze the components of trade
receivables and inventory and take effective measures to address
the “double high"” issues and mitigate operation risks.
Procurement and production will be carefully planned to balance
among production, sale and inventory, actively implementing the
policy of clearing stock and expediting inventory turnover as well
as minimizing employment of capital. Recovery of trade
receivables, negotiation of settlement agreements and the
collection of retention money and doubtful debts will expedite
recovery of funds.
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The Group will take steps to review its manual of quality,
procedure handbook and constitutional documents to ensure
smooth running of the system and seamless management.
Typical quality-related issues will be selected for careful study so
as to find an effective solution from the fundamental perspective
and provide customers with a satisfactory answer to their queries
regarding quality. Marketing activities with a theme emphasizing
“quality reigns supreme” will be put in place to increasing
customer satisfaction.

Implementing management enhancement, stepping up
assurance measures, preventing and managing risks and
ensuring a solid foundation

The Group will ensure positive results by strengthening
management, continue to rectify short-comings in management,
improve project quality through coordination, promote typical
experience and solutions as well as demand efficiency and
effectiveness from the management. Long-term mechanism,
such as management review, management standardization and
management forum, will be established to foster an atmosphere
for innovative management and promote scientific, systematic
and regulated management in enterprise.

The Group will capitalize on the supervisory function of the
auditing and monitoring efforts, and press ahead towards the set-
up of a comprehensive risk management and internal control
system, continue to commence the pilot scheme of risk
management and expand the scope and subjects of such
scheme. The Group will also closely monitor its liquidity and
exercise reasonable control over its debt size so as to avoid debt
risks and liquidity risks effectively.

Harbin, the PRC, 21 March 2014




EE  EERSREEAES

Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

BEE
FHTES

EREALE —NANFEALE BB
SRTIZENER  REREEERFARARAE
ER EZEZ -SRE-NNFEEXRNES
HEST - RENMRABEIRAS  BELS
e —NN\ZFMAREELE - SEEEEAE
EREMBEERBIRE - EEAEIFE  KE
DR RAR AR EEEH A RIELIERIR - BlE
REBERT - —NWNNFEMRESHEERA]
MR EE SRR N ERARESTERK —TTTF
NAERESEQARBEESRRALE L AR
EARFHESER - _TTRFRALERE
BERRESER AFAARELARARIESR -

BELE  —NAARFERALE B2 5
MEBEETE REREEEARES AKX
B EZERL ARARESR EZFZ-F
FTE—NNNFEAEERERTT TRREENR
FTEELEER  BISB L2 BXNMBETLR
RERFBLEMN - —W/ANFNANMABES
cPEECERRREREREERBRAEE
HER  BMwE BRRIEL i RER

DHER REQARLEER BIAKE EF
f BAREFEZREL  —ETN\F+_Hie
TREKERFAEZRRERZ BF HBLE-_F
TNF-_RARERARAES -

DIRECTORS

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Gong Jing-kun, born in July 1958, a senior engineer with a
doctor’'s degree, now a standing committee member of the Party
Committee and chairman of HE and the Company. Mr. Gong was
graduated from Shenyang Institute of Machinery and Electronics in
1982. Later on, he obtained a doctor degree from Harbin Institute of
Technology. Mr. Gong joined HE in 1982. He has been deputy director
of production division, deputy manager of production department,
manager of hydropower workshop in the former Harbin Electric
Machinery Works of the Group, and general manager assistant and
deputy general manager of the Electric Machinery Company of the
Group. Mr. Gong was appointed as chairman of Archeng Relay Group
Company and Archeng Relay Company Limited in 1999. In August
2000, he was appointed as deputy chairman and general manager of
HE and in September 2000, Mr. Gong was appointed as deputy
chairman of the Company. In May 2006, he was appointed as chairman
of HE and on September of the same year, chairman of the Company.

Mr. Zou Lei, born in June 1966, a senior economist with a doctor’s
degree, now a director, general manager and a standing committee
member of the Party Committee of HE, and vice-chairman and a
standing committee member of the Party Committee of the Company.
Mr. Zou was graduated from Jiamusi Technical College in July 1988,
and was conferred a bachelor’'s degree in mechanical design and
manufacture. Then he obtained a doctorate degree from Harbin
Institute of Technology. Mr. Zou joined HE in August 1988 and was the
dispatcher, Party office secretary, league deputy secretary, secretary in
dispatching room of production division in the former Harbin Boiler
Works, Party branch secretary of pipe first branch factory, factory
director of heavy vessel workshop, factory director of Pingshan branch
factory, production director, deputy general manager, chairman, general
manager and Party committee deputy secretary of Harbin Boiler
Company Limited. Since December 2008, Mr. Zou was elected as
standing committee member of the Party Committee, director and
general manager. He has been a director of the Company since
February 2009.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Wei-zhang, born in July 1962, is a senior engineer at
researcher level with a doctor's degree. He now serves as an executive
director, President and a standing committee member of the Party
Committee of the Company. Majoring in Hydraulics and River
Dynamics, Mr. Wu was graduated from Tsinghua University with a
master’s degree in 1988 and joined HE in the same year. Mr. Wu has
been a deputy director and deputy head of the turbine department of
Electrical Machinery Institute, a deputy manager of hydropower
workshop, a deputy chief engineer and a deputy manager of the
product design department of the Electrical Machinery Company of the
Group. Mr. Wu was appointed as the deputy general manager of the
Electrical Machinery Company of the Group in 1999 and then the
chairman and general manager in October 2000 respectively. Mr. Wu
obtained a doctorate degree at Tsinghua University in 2002. He also
holds various social posts, including the director general of the large
electrical equipment branch of China Electrical Equipment Industrial
Association, a directorate member of the water turbine special
committee of China Power Project (/ ) /7 T #2), a directorate
member and secretary general of China Water Turbine Standardized
Technology Committee (F BI7K s i 1E 2L £ fltZ 5 &) as well as an
adjunct professor of Harbin Institute of Technology and Huazhong
University of Science and Technology. He was appointed as an
executive director of the Company since September 2000 and has
been serving as the general manager of the Company since February
2010.
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Mr. Zhang Ying-jian, born in November 1964, a master’'s degree
holder and senior engineer, is currently the deputy general manager of
HE, the senior Vice-president of the company, and a director of Jiamusi
Electric Machine Company Limited. Mr. Zhang was graduated from the
Department of Thermal Engineering at Tsinghua University with a
bachelor’'s degree in gas turbines in July 1988 and subsequently
obtained a master’'s degree from Harbin Institute of Technology. He
joined HE in 1991. Mr. Zhang was formerly a project engineer, project
manager, business representative, deputy controller of Harbin Power
Station Equipment Import and Export Company, deputy chief engineer,
deputy manager of financial planning division and deputy general
manager of Harbin Power Engineering Company Limited. He became
the deputy general manager of HE since September 2007, and a non-
executive director of the Company since January 2013, and the senior
Vice-president and an executive director of the Company since May
2013.

Mr. Song Shi-qi, born in December 1958, a senior engineer, is
currently the deputy general manager of HE and senior Vice-president
of the Company. Mr. Song was graduated from Harbin Electrical
Machinery Plant Technical School in 1980 and subsequently attained
post-graduate qualification in economic management from Heilongjiang
Provincial Committee Party School. He joined HE in 1980. Mr. Song
was formerly a youth league committee member, deputy secretary,
secretary of Harbin Electrical Machinery Works and a secretary of the
party sub-division at the specialized equipment factory, a party standing
committee member of both Harbin Power Plant Equipment Group
Corporation and the Company, the head of the Company's Organization
Department, as well as an assistant to the general manager of the
Company. He has been the deputy party secretary and a secretary of
the disciplinary committee, director, deputy managing director, party
secretary and deputy chairman of the machinery division of the Group
since 1998. He became the deputy general manager of HE since
August 2009 and has been a non-executive director of the Company
since January 2013, and the senior Vice-president and an executive
director of the Company since May 2013.
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Mr. Shang Zhong-fu, born in March 1961, is a senior engineer at
researcher level with an MBA degree. He now serves as an executive
director and Vice-president of the Company. Majoring in steam turbine,
Mr. Shang was graduated from Harbin Institute of Technology in 1982
and joined HE in the same year. He has been an assistant section head
and deputy head of the Design Research Institute, deputy chief
economist and deputy chief engineer of the former Turbine Works of
the Group. He was appointed as a deputy general manager of the
Turbine Company of the Group in October 1998 and then the chairman
and general manager in November 1999 respectively. In September
2000, he was appointed as an executive director of the Company and
in February 2002, as a deputy general manager of the Company.

Independent Directors

Mr. Sun Chang-ji, born in August 1942, a senior engineer at researcher
level, is an independent director of the Company and special advisor to
China Machinery Industry Federation, and deputy head of the advisory
committee for State Nuclear Power Technology Corporation. Mr. Sun
was graduated from Tsinghua University in September 1966, and
started his career in 1968. He worked in Sichuan Oriental Turbine
Factory, serving as Section Head, Workshop Director, Deputy Factory
Manager and Factory Manager. In January 1991, he was appointed as
Deputy Director-general of the production department of the Ministry
of Machinery Industry of the PRC, and later he became Vice Minister of
the Ministry of Machinery Industry of the PRC in April 1993. In April
1998, he became First Deputy Director-general of the State
Administration of Machinery Industry of the PRC (deputy ministerial
level). He became Deputy Party Secretary and Vice President (deputy
ministerial level) of Bank of China in January 1999, and served
concurrently as President of China Orient Asset Management
Corporation for the period from September 1999 to August 2001. He
became Vice Chairman of Bank of China in November 2000, Vice
Chairman of Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited in September 2001
and Secretary of Commission for Discipline Inspection of Bank of China
in June 2003 concurrently. From August 2004, he has been appointed
as Vice Chairman of Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited and Vice
Chairman of China Machinery Industry Federation concurrently. He was
elected as a member of the 10th CPPCC National Committee in
January 2003, and deputy head of the Preparatory Team for State
Nuclear Power Technology Corporation in October 2004 concurrently.
Since December 2009, he has been an independent director of the
Company.
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Mr. Fan Fu-chun, born in June 1948, a master of business
administration degree holder, is currently a honorary president and
chairman of the board of strategy of Shanghai Futures and Derivatives
Research Institute, a member of Shenzhen-Hong Kong Cooperation
Advisory Committee in Qianhai, a visiting professor of Hunan University
and an independent supervisor of PetroChina Company Limited. Mr.
Fan was previously a director of business management office of 1t
T A (Beijing Tooling Factory), a director of system reform office of
b3 —# 5 (Beijing No.1 Light Industry Bureau) and a vice director of
economic department of 2B T (All-China Federation of Industry
& Commerce). Mr. Fan was a director of the Department of Listed
Company Supervision of China Securities Regulation Commission in
1993, a vice chairman and party committee member of China Securities
Regulation Commission in 1997, a vice party secretary and vice
chairman of China Securities Regulation Commission in 2002 and a
member of the Economic Committee of the 11th Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference in 2008. He has been appointed as an
independent director of the Company since June 2013.

Mr. Jia Cheng-bing, born in July 1942, a senior engineer with a
bachelor’s degree, is an independent director of the Company, special
advisor to China Machinery Industry Federation, and president of China
Foundry Association. He was graduated from Hefei University of
Technology in Foundry in 1965, and started his career in July of the
same year. He served as chief and deputy chief at Ministry of
Machinery Electronics Industry and Ministry of Machine Building
Industry, director of Personnel and Labor Division, head of office and
Party Commissioner at Ministry of Machine Building Industry. From
March 2001, he served as chairman of the Supervisory Committee for
various large State Council organizations (China National Materials
Industry Group, China State Shipbuilding Corporation, The State
Development and Investment Corp.). In February 2006, he was
appointed as deputy managing directors and special advisor to China
Machinery Industry Federation and president of China Foundry
Association. He has been an independent director of the Company
since September 2006.
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Mr. Yu Bo, born in October 1960, is a professor with a doctor degree,
tutor for doctoral candidates, independent director of the Company,
dean of School of Management at Harbin Institute of Technology
(SMHIT). Mr. Yu was graduated from industrial electric automation,
Harbin Institute of Technology in 1981, and began his career from
1982. He was a tutor, lecturer, associate professor, professor of
SMHIT. He became director of Management Department of SMHIT in
2000, director of MBA School of SMHIT in 2002, and assistant to dean
of SMHIT, director of MBA School in 2003, dean of SMHIT in 2008. Mr.
Yu is also a deputy director of Energy System Engineering Committee
of China Energy Research Society, a member of National MBA
Education Committee, a member of Military Technology Administration
of China Ordnance Society, a councilor of Chinese Society of
Technology Economics, a member of Space Technology Committee of
Beijing Society of Astronautics, a councilor of Aerospace Research
Society, a councilor of Heilongjiang Provincial Budgetary Council, an
industrial expert of Heilongjiang Science and Technology Consultation
Committee. He has been appointed as independent director of the
Company since December 2009.

Mr. Liu Deng-qing, born in November 1970, is a doctor in
management studies of Tsinghua University, independent director of
the Company, a CPV, CREA, and CMRA (Certified Mining Rights
Appraiser) of China. He is one of the first Top Ten Youth Appraisers; a
partner, vice president and chief appraiser of China Enterprise Appraisal
Company. He is a member of the Tenth China Youth Federation; a
councilor of China Appraisal Society; fellow member of China Appraisal
society; a member of State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission under the State Council (“SASAC"), and
Project Appraisal Expert Group of the Ministry of Finance; a member of
the tenth and eleventh Issuance Verification Committee of the China
Securities Regulatory Commission; a member of Appraisal Standard
Committee of China Appraisal Society; a member of Enterprise
Valuation Committee, and Intangible Asset Appraisal Committee, and
Continuation Education Committee of CPV; a member of Appraisal
Committee of CPA Beijing, and Publicity Committee; a member of
Editorial Committee of CPA Beijing. He has been appointed as
independent director of the Company since December 2009.
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SUPERVISORS

Supervisors representing shareholders

Mr. Bai Shao-tong, born in February 1963, is a graduate of Northeast
China Institute of Electric Power holding a bachelor’s degree in
engineering. He is a senior engineer. He is now a standing committee
member of the Party Committee and a secretary of the disciplinary
committee of the Company. He was the deputy head and head of the
power station department of the Electric Machinery Bureau under the
Ministry of Electric Power Industry, manager of the power station
equipment department of FREIZEE FE UL E T2 (£8) 22 7] (China
Huadian Power Station Equipment Engineering Group Corporation),
deputy general manager and general manager of B S FuhE# T
2 (52) #2/2 7] (China Huadian Power Station Equipment Engineering
Group Corporation), and general manager of Jiangsu branch of China
Huadian Corporation. Mr. Bai has been a standing committee member
and a secretary of the disciplinary committee of HE, as well as a
standing committee member of the Party Committee and a secretary
of the disciplinary committee of the Company since December 2011.
He has been the chairman of the Supervisory Committee of the
Company since May 2012.

Mr. Chen Guang, born in August 1964, a senior engineer with a
postgraduate degree, is a supervisor representing shareholders of the
Company and director of the Corporate Management and Development
Department of the Boiler Company of the Group. Mr. Chen was
graduated from Xi‘an Jiaotong University in 1986 and joined HE in the
same year. He was appointed as a designer of the Design Department
of the Boiler Company of the Group, secretary of factory office, deputy
manager of the spare parts company, deputy secretary and chairman of
Labor Union of No.2 Pipe Workshop, secretary and head of Drum
Workshop, head, director of Security Department and secretary of No.
1 Pipe Workshop. He has been appointed as the director of the
Corporate Management and Development Department of the Boiler
Company since August 2009. He has been a supervisor representing
shareholders of the Company since December 2009.
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Supervisors representing staff and workers

Ms. Lu Chun-lian, born in March 1959, a senior engineer with
bachelor’s degree, is a supervisor representing staff and workers of the
Company and deputy chief engineer of the Electric Machinery
Company and deputy director of the Electric Machinery Institute of the
Group. Ms. Lu studied Insulation Material in Harbin Institute of
Electrical Engineering and was graduated in 1982. She joined HE in the
same year and was appointed as an engineer and deputy director of
Insulation Material Research Office under Electrical Machinery
Research Institute and head of coil factory in the Electric Machinery
Company. She has been the head of coil workshop in the Electric
Machinery Company since 2002, deputy chief engineer of the Electric
Machinery Company since March 2008, and deputy director of the
Electric Machinery Institute under the Electric Machinery Company
since April 2009. She has been a supervisor representing staff and
workers of the Company since September 2003.

Mr. Zhang Wen-ming, born in September 1974, a senior engineer
with a master degree, now the head of Organization Department of the
Party Committee of the Turbine Company of the Group. Mr. Zhang was
graduated from Anshan Institute of Iron and Steel Technology, majoring
in metal press processing. Then he obtained a master degree in
engineering from Harbin Institute of Technology, and started his career
in July 2000. Mr. Zhang was the engineer of the material research
center, secretary to the general manager, deputy director of the
technology and management division and deputy director and director
of the corporate development center of the Turbine Company of the
Group. He has been the head of Organization Department of the Party
Committee of the Turbine Company of the Group since January 2013
and has been a supervisor representing staff and workers of the
Company since January 2013.
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Independent Supervisor

Mr. Xu Er-ming, born in December 1949, a professor and supervisor
of Ph.D. candidates with a doctorate degree, is an independent
supervisor of the Company and Deputy Dean of the Graduate School of
the Renmin University of China. Mr. Xu was graduated from the
Department of Industrial Economics of Renmin University of China in
1978 and stayed at the university after his graduation, where he
worked as a tutor, lecturer, associate professor and professor. He was
appointed as the director of office for Canada-China Management
Education Program of the Renmin University of China in 1991, and later
the deputy director of the Department of Industrial Economics, the
deputy director of the Center for Business Administration Education
and the deputy director of Institute of Foreign Economic Management
of the Renmin University of China at the same time. He was appointed
as the Deputy Dean of Business Administration School of the Renmin
University of China in 1996 and the Dean in 1997. He has been
appointed as the Deputy Dean of the Graduate School of the Renmin
University of China since June 2006. He is now Deputy Secretary-
General of the Tenth Session of the Academic Committee, and a
member of the Third Session of the University Affairs Committee of
the Renmin University of China, a member of the Sixth Session of the
Business Administration Academic Appraisal Group of the Academic
Degree Committee of the State Council, Vice Chairman of the Chinese
Enterprise Management Research Association, and Chairman of Beijing
Contemporary Enterprise Research Association, independent non-
executive director of China Telecom Corporation Limited. He is entitled
to the State Council's special government allowances. He has also
been appointed as Associate Convener of the Fifth Session of the
Business Administration Academic Appraisal Group of the Academic
Degree Committee of the State Council, a member of the Advisory
Committee of National MBA Education, and a director of the Advisory
Committee for University Business Administration Education led by
Ministry of Education. Professor Xu is an adjunct professor at over 10
universities in China including Zhejiang University, and has been
teaching at New York State University at Buffalo, the University of
Scranton, the University of Technology, Sydney, Australia, the Kyushu
University, Japan and Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He has been
an independent supervisor of the Company since December 2009.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Miao Li-jie, born in June 1956, holds a doctorate degree and the
title of researcher-grade senior engineer. He is now a director, a deputy
general manager and a standing committee member of the Party
Committee of HE, and the senior Vice-president and a standing
committee member of the Party Committee of the Company. Mr. Miao
graduated from the Automatic Control Engineering Department of Harbin
University of Science and Technology (* BERHE AZ B B)IEHIFE ) in
1982, and obtained a master degree from Shenyang University of
Technology and a doctorate degree from Tsinghua University. He
obtained a post-doctorate diploma from the post-doctorate research
centre of Harbin University of Engineering. Mr. Miao joined HE in 1985,
and worked as the engineer, senior engineer, department supervisor,
manager of operation department, assistant to general manager and
deputy chief engineer of Harbin Electrical Machinery of the Group, and
general manager and chairman of Harbin National Engineering Research
Center Co., Ltd (KB BB R TR EX F LA R 2 7), as well as
assistant to general manager, deputy general manager and a standing
committee member of the Party Committee of the Company. He has
been a director, a deputy general manager and a standing committee
member of the Party Committee of HE since 2009, and a senior Vice-
president of the Company since May 2013.
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Mr. Zhang Hai-quan, born in September 1961, is a senior engineer
with an MBA degree. He now serves as the Vice-president of the
Company. Mr. Zhang was graduated from Harbin Institute of Electrical
Engineering in 1984 and joined HE in the same year. He has been an
engineer of the enginery repairing workshop, the secretary and an
assistant to the director of the Communist Party Committee Office of
the former Boiler Works of the Group. In 1994, Mr. Zhang participated
in the reorganization of HE to be a shareholding enterprise and the
issuance and listing of the Company’s shares. Since November 1994,
he has been appointed as the deputy director of the general manager
office, the deputy director of the planning department and director of
the enterprise management department, and the director of the
auditing and law department of the Boiler Company of the Group. In
1998, he was transferred to be a member of the HE's and the
Company's Standing Communist Party Committee and director of the
organization department. In 1999, Mr. Zhang was appointed as the
secretary of the Communist Party Committee and vice chairman of
Archeng Relay Group Company and Archeng Relay Company Limited
under HE. He has been serving as the deputy general manager of the
Company since October 2000.

Mr. Liu Zhi-quan, born in July 1968, is a senior accountant and
certified public accountant in China with a doctor’s degree. He now
serves as the Vice-president of the Company. Mr. Liu was graduated
from Harbin Institute of Technology, majoring in industrial accounting
with a bachelor’'s degree. He subsequently obtained a doctorate degree
from the same university. He started his career in September 1991. He
has been an assistant to the director of finance department of the
Boiler Company of the Group, the deputy director and the director, and
the deputy chief accountant and head of finance department of the
Group. He was appointed as the deputy general manager of the Harbin
Boiler Company Limited in April 2001. Mr. Liu has been serving as
deputy general manager of the Company since September 2006 and
assumed the post as the company secretary of the Company since
January 2012 and resigned as the company secretary in January 2013.
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Mr. Han Jian-wei, born in June 1955, is a senior engineer at
researcher level with a bachelor’'s degree. He now serves as the Vice-
president of the Company. Mr. Han started his career in October 1973.
He was graduated from Harbin Institute of Technology in 1982 with a
bachelor's degree. He has been a designer of the design division, an
installation worker and the deputy director of the customer service
division and the head and director of the production division of Harbin
Boiler Company Limited of the Group. He has also served as the
deputy chief economist, the deputy general manager, the chairman and
the general manager of Harbin Boiler Company Limited. He has been
serving as the deputy general manager of the Company since
December 2007.

Mr. Qu Zhe, born in July 1962, is a senior engineer with a postgraduate
degree. He now serves as the Vice-president of the Company. Mr. Qu
was graduated from Harbin Shipbuilding Engineering Institute with a
master’s degree in August 1988 and joined HE in the same year. He
has been an assistant engineer, business representative in Pakistan
and engineer of Harbin Power Station Equipment Import And Export
Company, and served as the deputy general manager of the company
since February 1994. Since November 1994, he was appointed as the
deputy manager of operation and development department of Harbin
Power Engineering Company Limited, deputy general manager and
deputy manager of operation and development department of cycle
power plant project in UCH, Pakistan, deputy chief engineer, assistant
to general manager of the company. He served as the executive
deputy general manager of Harbin Power Engineering Company
Limited in November 1999, general manager of the company in April
2003, and chairman and Party Secretary in September 2007
respectively. Mr. Qu has been serving as deputy general manager of
the Company since June 2010.
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Company Secretary

Mr. Gao Xu-guang, born in June 1971, a senior engineer with
bachelor’s degree, is a company secretary of the Company, director of
general manager’s office and director of the secretariat of the Board.
Mr. Gao studied Electrochemistry in Harbin Institute of Technology and
was graduated with a bachelor's degree. He started his career in July
1994. He was appointed as deputy director of the general manager’s
office, secretary of the Board and director of Corporate Development
Center of Harbin Turbine Company Limited and head of Organization
Department of the Party Committee of Harbin Turbine Company
Limited. He has been a supervisor representing staff and workers of
the Company since 2003 and resigned in January 2013. He became a
company secretary of the Company since January 2013.
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The Directors of Harbin Electric Company Limited (hereinafter as the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter as the “Group”) are
pleased to submit the 2013 annual report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is mainly engaged in the manufacture and sales of various
kinds of power equipment and power station engineering services,
details of which are set out into Note 10 to the financial statements.

All the activities of the Group are based in the PRC, where 89.38% of
the Group's turnover is derived from.

The export sales of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013
amounted to USD357.1097 million, representing 10.62% of the
Group's total turnover for the year. The Group's export markets mainly
include Asia and South America.

SUBSIDIARIES

The Company has eleven principal subsidiaries. Harbin Electrical
Machinery Company Limited is mainly in the field of manufacture and
sales of water turbine generator units and steam turbine generator
units. Harbin Boiler Company Limited is mainly in the field of
manufacture and sales of boilers for power stations. Harbin Turbine
Company Limited is mainly in the field of manufacture and sales of
steam turbine for power stations. Harbin Electric International Company
Limited is mainly in the field of the turnkey construction of power
station projects and complete set of power station equipment. Harbin
Electric Corporation (QHD) Heavy Equipment Company Limited is
mainly in the field of manufacture and assembly of equipment such as
large scale thermal power, nuclear power and gas turbine. Harbin
Electric Power Equipment Company Limited is mainly in the field of
manufacture and sales of medium-to-heavy-duty AC/DC motors and
nuclear power main pump motors. HE Harbin Power Plant Valve
Company Limited is mainly in the field of manufacture and sales of
valves for power stations. Harbin Power Equipment National
Engineering Research Center Co., Ltd is mainly in the field of research
and development of power equipment engineerisation technology.
Harbin Power Technology & Trade Inc. is mainly in the field of trading.
HE Modern Manufacturing Service Industry Company Limited is mainly
in the field of service businesses like power station maintenance,
reconstruction, and supply of equipment. HE Finance Company Limited
is mainly in the business of providing financial services to the members
of HE.
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SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2013, details of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries are set out in Note 49 to the financial statements in the
annual report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 81 of the
annual report.

DIVIDEND

A dividend of RMB0.08 per share (appropriate tax included) for 2013
was proposed by the board of directors.

Dividends payable to shareholders of H share will be paid in Hong Kong
dollar at the average of the exchange rates quoted by the People’s
Bank of China for the five days preceding 21 March 2014, which is
RMB1 for HK$1.2655. The dividend for every H share will be
HK$0.1012.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER

The Register of members of the Company will be closed from 23 May,
2014 to 29 May, 2014 (both dates inclusive). Final dividend for 2013
will be distributed by 24 July, 2014 to shareholders whose names
appear in the Register of members of the Company on 23 May, 2014.
In order to qualify for the final dividend for 2013, all completed transfers
accompanied with the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company's Registrar, namely Hong Kong Registrars Limited at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on 22 May, 2014.
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DIVIDEND TAX

Pursuant to the “PRC Individual Income Tax Law" ({FF & A R 2L F1E{E
AFTB#i7%)), the “PRC Implementation Regulations of the Individual
Income Tax Law” ({2 ZE A R L F1 B & A TS BLE B R G D), the
“Notice of the State Administration of Taxation in relation to the
Administrative Measures on Preferential Treatment Entitled by Non-
residents under Tax Treaties (Tentative)” ((BIRFL75 48 B EER ENEE(IE
FEREZBWHEFBERIE (F1T) @A), following the repeal of
the “Notice of the Issues Concerning Tax on the Profits Earned by
Foreign Invested Enterprises, Foreign Enterprises and Individual
Foreigners from the Transfer of Shares (Equity Interests) and on
Dividend Income” (KBARAIMEIRE B2 - SN EEMIMEE A BUSIZR
(B ) 88 3 U & A0 AR B P 15 %56 U 5 78 /9 38 AN), the Company will
withhold and pay the individual income tax in respect of the dividend
(bonus) received by the individual H Shareholders from the Company.
The individual H Shareholders of the Company may be entitled to
certain tax preferential treatments pursuant to the tax treaties between
the PRC and the countries in which the individual H Shareholders are
domiciled and the tax arrangements between Mainland China and
Hong Kong (Macau). The Company will determine the capacity of the
individual H Shareholders based on the registered address as recorded
in the register of shareholders of the Company on the book closure
date, i.e. 23 May 2014. The detailed arrangement will be as follows:

For individual H Shareholders who are Hong Kong or Macau residents,
and those whose country of domicile has entered into a tax treaty with
the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of 10%, the Company will
withhold and pay individual income tax at the rate of 10% on behalf of
the individual H Shareholders;

For individual H Shareholders whose country of domicile has entered
into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of less than
10%, the Company will withhold and pay individual income tax at the
rate of 10% on behalf of the individual H Shareholders. The individual H
Shareholders may apply for refund of excess amount of individual
income tax withheld by providing relevant information for approval by
taxation authority;
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DIVIDEND TAX (CONTINUED)

For individual H Shareholders whose country of domicile has entered
into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of over
10% but less than 20%, the Company will withhold and pay individual
income tax at the actual rate stipulated by the relevant tax treaty on
behalf of the individual H Shareholders;

For individual H Shareholders whose country of domicile has entered
into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of 20% or
has not entered into any tax treaties with the PRC, the Company will
withhold and pay individual income tax at the rate of 20% on behalf of
the individual H Shareholders.

According to the “PRC Tax Law"” ({ f #E A R & F1 B i )% )), the
Company will withhold and pay dividend income tax at the rate of 10%
on behalf of the non-resident corporate shareholders.

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Details of Directors and Supervisors are set out in the section headed
"Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” in the annual report.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT'S INTERESTS IN THE SHARE
CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2013, none of the directors, supervisors and senior
management of the Company had any interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares and/or debentures (as the case may be) of
the Company and/or of any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which was required to be notified to
the Company and the HKSE pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interest or short position which any such director,
supervisor or senior management is taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO) or which was required to be entered in the
Register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or
which was required to be notified to the Company and the HKSE
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers as contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Company has entered into service contracts for a term of three
years with the Seventh Board of Directors and Committee of
Supervisors on 5 January 2013. Other than this, there are no existing or
proposed service contracts between every Director, Supervisor and
any member company of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

During the year, none of the Directors or Supervisors has any interest,
whether directly or indirectly, in the contracts of significance, to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries is a party.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and Supervisors of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in note 8
to the financial statements in the annual report.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID PERSONNEL

The five highest paid personnel include senior management of the
Company's subsidiary.

STAFF RETIREMENT AND BENEFIT SCHEME

Details of the staff retirement and benefit scheme are set out in Note
35 to the financial statements in the annual report.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in fixed assets of the Group are set out in
Note 12 to the financial statements in the annual report.

RESERVES

As at 31 December 2013, the Company's reserves available for
distribution are RMB237.47 million. Movements in the reserves of the
Group during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity to the financial statements.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The financial highlights of the Group for the last five years are set out in
the section headed “Financial Highlights” in the annual report.

BORROWINGS

Details of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group are set out in
Note 33 to the financial statements in the annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

The issuance of five-year Domestic Corporate Bonds (first tranche) was
completed on 13 March 2013. Final issuance size of the first tranche of
Corporate Bonds was RMBS billion, the coupon rates was 4.90%, and
was listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange on 2 May 2013, stock short
name and stock code of which is “12 5% 01" and “122236".

Save for the above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or PRC Law, which would require the Company
to issue new shares to the existing shareholders according to their
respective proportions of shareholding.

MAJOR LITIGATION

Major litigations of the Group during the year are set out in note 43(b)
of the financial statements in the annual report.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Details of the material contracts entered into by the Group during the
year are set out in the sections respectively headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” and “Disclosure of Significant Events” in the
annual report.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

1. During the period, the Group’s five largest suppliers attributable
16.61% of the Group's total purchases. Among which Fil & ETE
/x\] was the largest supplier, representing 5.81% of the total
purchases.

2. During the period, the Group's five largest customers attributable
18.44% of the Group's total turnover. Among which the Datang
Group was the largest customer, representing 4.68% of the total

turnover.

3. None of the Directors, Supervisors, their associates or any
shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company'’s share capital) has
any interest in the above-mentioned suppliers or customers.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The use of proceeds raised by the Company during the period is
detailed in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
in the annual report.

TAX POLICIES

According to the provisions of Administrative Measures with regard to
the Recognition of High and New Technology Enterprises (£ & %1 i
1 ¥R EE B L)) jointly issued by the Ministry of Science and
Technology, the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration for
Taxation of the PRC on 14 April 2008 and the Administrative Guidance
with Regard to the Recognition of High and New Technology
Enterprises ({E#T T %R E B E T IEFES])) jointly issued by the
Ministry of Science and Technology, the Ministry of Finance and the
State Administration of Taxation on 8 July 2008, the six corporations
including the Company and five of its subsidiaries, namely Harbin
Electrical Machinery Company Limited, Harbin Boiler Company Limited,
Harbin Turbine Company Limited, Harbin Electric Power Equipment
Company Limited and HE Harbin Power Plant Valve Company Limited
were re-recognised as High and New Technology Enterprises, which
entitles the Companies to a 15% preferential income tax rate and this
is significant to their long-term development.
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TAX POLICIES (CONTINUED)

In accordance with regulations of the State Administration of Taxation,
the rate for tax rebate applicable to the Group's new export products
contracts is 13% with effective from 15 October 2003.

Pursuant to the Provisional Regulations of the PRC on Value-added Tax
(CFR2E A R A0 B 32 B 1 & 77 16 61 )), the Group is included in the
general framework of the value-added tax system reform, which allows
the Group to deduct the value-added tax incurred for the purchase of
equipment. Under the Opinions of Central Committee of the
Communist Party of China and the State Council on the Revitalization
Strategies for Historical Industrial Bases of the Northeast Regions ({
e BB BAN BRI R S 2 T Eh iR BB HE T2 R)),
we will continue to enjoy the relevant favorable policies in supporting
such revitalization for historical industrial bases of the northeast
regions.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

For details of the related party transactions, please see Note 44 to the
financial statements in the annual report.

The Group carried out the following major connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions (other than continuing connected
transactions that are exempted under Rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules)
during the year ended 31 December 2013:

1. The Framework Agreement with Harbin Electric Corporation
("HE")

On 22 December 2010, the Group entered into the continuing
connected transaction — the Framework Agreement with HE,
pursuant to which, (1)the Group and HE (together with its
subsidiaries excluding the Group, “the Parent Group”) will supply
multiple benefits and support services to each other; (2) the
Group and the Parent Group will purchase certain materials and
parts from each other during the three financial years ending 31
December 2013.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

1.

The Framework Agreement with Harbin Electric Corporation
(“HE") (continued)

During the year from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013, the
amount of such transaction did not exceed the cap, and is set out

as follows:
(in terms of RMB)
Transaction Actual
Cap from Amount from
1 January 1 January
2013 to 2013 to
31 December 31 December
Transactions 2013 2013

Income from providing services and

sales of material and parts to

the Parent Group 144,888,000 22,149,000
Expenses of receiving services and

purchasing material and

parts from the Parent Group 433,049,000 269,759,000
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

1.

The Framework Agreement with Harbin Electric Corporation

(“HE") (continued)

On 31 December 2013, the Group entered into the new

continuing connected transaction — the Framework Agreement

with HE, pursuant to which, (1)the Group and the Parent Group

will supply multiple benefits and support services to each other;

(2) the Group and the Parent Group will purchase certain

materials and parts from each other during the three financial

years from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016. The annual

transaction caps are as follow:

1 January

2014 to

31 December

Transaction Caps 2014

Income from providing services
and sales of material and

parts to the Parent Group 70,300,000
Expenses of receiving services

and purchasing material and

parts from the Parent Group 343,520,000

(in terms of RMB)

1 January 1 January
2015 to 2016 to

31 December 31 December
2015 2016
67,300,000 67,300,000
343,520,000 343,520,000
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

2.

the Financial Service Framework Agreement with HE Finance
Company Limited (the “Finance Company”), acquisition of
equity interest in the Finance Company, and the Financial
Service Framework Agreement with Harbin Electric
Corporation (“HE”)

On 18 December 2012, the Company and the Finance Company
entered into continuing connected transaction — the Financial
Service Framework Agreement, pursuant to which, the Finance
Company will provide financial services to the Group, including
deposit services, loan services, clearance services and other

financial services for a term of three years.

On 26 June 2013, the Board of the Company has reviewed and
approved the acquisition by the Group, of the equity interest in
the Finance Company held by Harbin Electric Corporation (“HE")
and Jiamusi Electric Machine Company Limited, and the
subsequent increase in the registered capital of the Finance
Company to RMB1.5 billion upon the completion of acquisition of
equity interest. The acquisition of equity interest and capital
increase was completed on 9 December 2013. Based on the
record date of valuation as at 31 May 2013, the Group paid in
aggregate RMB149,890,000 for the equity interest in the Finance
Company. Upon completion of the acquisition, the Group holds
91% equity interest in the Finance Company, which became the
subsidiary of the Company. Subsequently, the Group further
injected RMB1,092 million, increasing the registered capital of
the Financial Company to RMB1,500 million.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

2.

the Financial Service Framework Agreement with HE Finance
Company Limited (the “Finance Company”), acquisition of
equity interest in the Finance Company, and the Financial
Service Framework Agreement with Harbin Electric
Corporation (“HE"”) (continued)

On 31 December 2013, the Finance Company and HE entered
into continuing connected transaction — the Financial Service
Framework Agreement, pursuant to which, the Finance Company
will provide financial services to HE (together with its subsidiaries
excluding the Group, “the Parent Group”), including deposit
services, loan services, clearance services and other financial
services for a term of three years from 31 December 2013 to 30
December 2016. For each year ended 30 December 2014, 30
December 2015 and 30 December 2016, the transaction cap of
value of loan services provided by the Finance Company to the
Parent Group are as follow:

(in terms of RMB)

31 December 31December 31 December

2013 to 2014 to 2015 to
30 December 30 December 30 December
Item 2014 2015 2016
The accumulated daily maximum
outstanding balance due from
the Parent Group to
the Finance Company
under the loan services 250,000,000 250,000,000 250,000,000
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

38

the Management Entrustment Agreement with Harbin
Electric Corporation (“HE")

On 23 March 2013, the Company entered into the Management
Entrustment Agreement with HE, pursuant to which, the
Company will provide management services to Harbin Electric,
including but not limited to administration management, human
resources and compensation management (including external
affairs management), technology and quality control, assets and
financial management, integrated organization management,
statistic and economic operations management, auditing and
internal control management, investments management,
strategic developments management, legal affairs management,
communications management, marketing management, projects
management, production safety management, procedure
monitoring management, political affairs and other affairs
management. HE will pay an annual management entrustment
fee of RMB3.28 million to the Company, among which
RMB2.067 million was received in 2013.

CONFIRMATION ON CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

The Independent Directors of the Company have reviewed the related

party transactions (as defined in the Listing Rules) referred to in Note

44 to the financial statements and confirmed that:

1.

Such transactions have been entered into by the Company in the
ordinary and usual course of its business;

Such transactions have been entered into either (I) on normal
commercial terms (which term shall be applied by reference to
transactions of a similar nature and to be made by similar entities
within PRC) or (Il) (where there is no available comparison) on
terms that are fair and reasonable so far as the shareholders of
the Company are concerned;

Such transactions have been entered into either (l) in accordance
with the terms of the relevant agreements governing such
transactions or (ll) (where there is no such agreement) on terms

no less favorable than those available to third parties.
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CONFIRMATION ON CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

The auditor of the Company were engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules"” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
have issued their unqualified letter containing their findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF THE
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has already received annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director on his/her independence
confirming that his/her independence was in compliance with all
independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and he/
she is an independent person.

SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2013, the share capital of the Company comprised
of 1,376,806,000 shares, of which 701,235,000 shares were held by
the promoter (representing 50.93% of the entire share capital) and
675,571,000 shares were held by overseas holders of H shares
(representing 49.07% of the entire share capital).
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R-E—=FE+=-HA=+—08 ' AARIKRZM As at 31 December 2013, the top ten registered shareholders who hold
FERERZ0E TE2RENFRBROT : the largest quantity of shares were as follows:

BRE BFRESL

a5 BRREB Number of Percentage of faat
Number Name of Shareholders Shares Shares Held Remarks
il s RREEREEAR 701,235,000 50.93% BB EARX
2 HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED 640,510,597 46.52% H A&
8o TANG KEUNG LAM 17,000,000 1.23% H A&
4 - TANG'S INVESTMENTS LIMITED 15,000,000 1.09% H A&
B © YIP CHOK CHIU 360,000 0.03% H &
6 LU NIM KWOK ALBERT 250,000 0.02% H &
7 CHEUNG YUM TIN 200,000 0.01% H &
8 HO YUN HUNG 200,000 0.01% H &
9o LAM MAN LAl 200,000 0.01% H &

10 - NG KAM WAN 110,000 0.01% H A%
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ANALYSIS FOR SHAREHOLDING OF HOLDERS
OF H SHARES (AS RECORDED IN REGISTER OF
MEMBERS AS AT 31 DECEMBER, 2013)

HE &7

AE R HRBZ

Number of Number of Percentage to

£E Range Shareholders Shares Held Issued H Shares

1-1,000 1-1,000 5 403 0.00%

1,001-5,000 1,001-5,000 66 182,000 0.03%

5,001-10,000 5,001-10,000 49 414,000 0.06%

10,001-100,000 10,001-100,000 37 1,144,000 0.17%

100,001-A 100,001 and above 9 673,830,597 99.74%

aEr Total 166 675,571,000 100%
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of the Board complied with the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules throughout the period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied throughout the year of 2013 with the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (“CG
Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee had reviewed the audited financial statements
and connected transactions of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2013, and discussed with the Board the financial reporting
procedures as well as the internal control system of the Group.
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AUDITORS

The current PRC auditor of the Company is Ruihua Certified Public
Accountants, and the Hong Kong auditor is Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA
Limited.

By order of the Board
Gong Jing-Kun
Chairman

21 March 2014
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To all shareholders:

For the year ended 31 December, 2013 (the Year), all members of the
Supervisory Committee (“the Supervisory Committee”) of Harbin
Electric Company Limited (“the Company”) duly performed their
Supervisory Committee functions in the best interests of the Company
and minority shareholders as a whole in accordance with the relevant
regulations of the PRC Company Law, the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the
Articles of Association of the Company. The Supervisory Committee
has carried out an all-round supervision on areas including assets
allocation, operation management, financial conditions and senior
management's performance of the Company. In addition, the
Supervisory Committee actively participated in significant events of the
Company, such as the Company's production and operation etc., which
pushed forward the Company’s work in a smooth manner.

For the Company's work during the Year, the Supervisory Committee
presents the following independent opinions:

1. During the year, the Company strictly complied with the nation’s
laws and regulations, operated in accordance with the procedures
regulating listing companies, and duly executed various
resolutions passed at the shareholders’ meetings. The Company
achieved satisfying results from all works during the year,
resulting in a strong and excellent company which laid a solid
foundation for the smooth and faster development.

2. The Supervisory Committee is aware that the directors and its
senior management of the Company have duly and actively
carried out their duties and protected the best interests of the
shareholders. They have seriously carried out the resolutions and
decisions passed at the general meetings and meetings of the
Board. In addition, no violation against the nation’s laws and rules
and the Articles of Association of the Company or acts against
the interests of the Company, the shareholders and the
employees were reported.
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3. The Supervisory Committee has reviewed the Company's
financial system and conditions and concludes that the
Company's financial system has an integrated structure and a
sound system, and the financial works have been operated
orderly according to the internal control system and risk
management. Relevant information such as the annual financial
report and the dividend payment scheme proposed by the Board
of Directors for approval at the Annual General Meeting, has
objectively and comprehensively reflected the financial position
and operating results of the Company. The dividend payment
scheme has taken into account both the interests of the
shareholders and the Company's long-term development. Both
statutory surplus reserve fund and public welfare provided in the
year have observed the provisions of the laws and regulations
and the Articles of Association of the Company.

4, The Supervisory Committee has reviewed the Report of the
Directors and concludes that the report gives an objective and
true picture of the works performed by the Company during the
Year.

The Supervisory Committee sincerely appreciates the trust and support
from every colleague and the shareholders of the Company. While
continue to explore new supervisory approaches and methods, the
Supervisory Committee will further consolidate resources for
supervision so as to enhance our management, helping and ensuring
the realization of the Company'’s targets for all works in 2014.

By order of the Supervisory Committee
Bai Shao-tong
Chairman

Harbin, the PRC, 21 March 2014
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The Company has been actively perfected the Company's corporate
governing structure and standardized the Company's operation through
strictly complying with the Company Law of the People’'s Republic of
China, the Securities Law of the People’s Republic of China and the
relevant provisions of China Securities Regulatory Commission.

During the year 2013, the Company fully complied with all code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report contained in the Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
of the Stock Exchange.

ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE

In March 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company passed the
resolution to reorganize the Company’s organization structure, resulting
in the company structure as follows:

RRAE
Shareholders'
General Meeting

ay av

Board of Directors

E=g

Supervisory Committee

B

President

JJJJ;;J,JJJ,LLLL

REBES HREER ANERE KEETH LEVHH ESeWER BB EFAAER  T5H HAR  OEEER AEEHH % ERH
Planning  Technologies ~ Human Economics  Assetsand Secretariat of ~ General Auditand  Marketing Projects Corporate Legal b¢la: Supervisory
and and Resources and Finance the Board Office Internal ~ Department Department Management  Affairs Corporate  Department
Development  Quality ~ Department ~ Operation  Department Control Department Department  Culture
Assurance Department Department Department

Department
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SHAREHOLDERS AND SHAREHOLDERS'’
GENERAL MEETING

The Company safeguards shareholders’ interests, treats all
shareholders equally, and initiates active participation of shareholders
in corporate governance and management. As the stakeholders of the
Company, shareholders enjoy the rights provided by laws and
regulations and undertake commensurate obligations. The shareholders
enjoy rights to information and rights to decision-making for the
Company's important matters. The general meeting of Shareholders is
the organ of authority of the Company, and it exercises its functions
and power according to laws.

Harbin Electric Corporation, a state-owned company registered in the
People’s Republic of China, is the controlling shareholder of the
Company.

In 2013, the Company held one Annual General Meeting and one
Extraordinary General Meeting.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The major duties of the Board of Directors are to exercise the
discretion in management decision according to the authorization by
the general meeting with respect to the development strategies,
management structure, investment and financing, planning and
financial control, which are set out in details in the Articles of
Association.

1. Composition

In 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company is the seventh
session Board since its establishment, which is comprised of
eleven Directors, five of whom are independent Directors. The
Company held an Extraordinary General Meeting in January 2013,
during which Mr. Gong Jing-kun, Mr. Zou Lei, Mr. Wu Weizhang,
Mr. Zhang Ying-jian, Mr. Song Shi-gi, Mr. Shang Zhong-fu, Mr.
Sun Chang-ji, Mr. Jia Chengbing, Mr. Yu Bo and Mr. Liu Deng-
ging were elected as Directors of the Company. The Directors
serve a term of three years from the date of the extraordinary
general meeting. In June 2013, the Board appointed Mr. Fan Fu-
chun as a Director of the Company, his term will expire at the
end of the next general meeting of the Company.
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Positions of the Chairperson of the Board of Directors and the
President are held by different individuals with distinct
responsibility. The Chairperson of the Board of Directors presides
over meetings of the Board of Directors and reviews on the
implementation of matters resolved by the Board of Directors.
The President is responsible for management and coordination of
the operation of the Company, implementation of the resolutions
passed by the Board of Directors and making decisions on a daily
basis.

Biographies of the members of the Board of Directors are
included in the section headed “Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management” in the annual report.

Independent Directors

The seventh session of the Company’s Board of Directors has
five Independent Directors. All the Independent Directors are
familiar with the rights and responsibilities of the directors and
independent directors of a listed company. During the reporting
period, all the Independent Directors attended the meetings of
the Board of Directors with prudent and responsible attitude.
They fully utilized their experiences and expertise, made
enormous contribution towards the improvement and perfection
of the corporate governance mechanism and the important
decision making process. They also provided balanced and
objective advices with regard to important decisions and
connected transactions of the Company, further standardized the
decision making process of the Board of Directors and made this
process more scientific, thereby protecting the interests of the
Company and the shareholders as a whole.

The Company has received annual confirmation from each
Independent Directors about his/her independence.
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3- E=Eggd 3.  Meetings of the Board of Directors
FERARRABHEBITOREETES S i During the year, six Board of Directors’ meetings were held to
AAIMERER KREFR BB discuss the overall strategies, investment plans, connected
EENIERIR c AR BUEEFH AR transactions, operation and financial performance of the
ARREEARBEZ - SREFBEROT - Company. The Independent Directors of the Company have no

dissenting opinions regarding any of the Company's resolutions.
Attendances of the meetings are as follows:

CE-CEEEEHEEFEERER Attendances of the meetings of the Board of Directors
during the year of 2013
EsmEs
BB B HERE

Number of Number of HE=
BEEHR Attendance Attendance in Attendance
Name of Director Required Person Rate
SmZEE Mr. Gong Jing-kun 6 6 100%
B ZhE Mr. Zou Lei 6 5 83%
REELE Mr. Wu Weizhang 6 6 100%
REREE Mr. Zhang Ying-jian 6 5 83%
NS Mr. Song Shi-qi 6 6 100%
[k P Mr. Shang Zhong-fu 6 6 100%
REELE Mr. Sun Changsji 6 6 100%
ERELE Mr. Fan Fu-chun 2 2 100%
B RS AE Mr. Jia Chengbing, 6 6 100%
T BEE Mr. Yu Bo 6 5 83%
2B/ AE Mr. Liu Deng-ging. 6 5 83%
FBESHERBARMERNESARESY The relevant information and current development of the statutory,
WEBTHEAE BEERETCHEEANERE regulatory and other continuous responsibilities of the Company's
B RsFER - ARREERBESOBE R Board of Directors can be obtained by all Directors through the
BEENREFESUERRITURBERAEE Company Secretary in a timely manner, so as to ensure all Directors
FERBUREEST - ARREZNERESEME understand his/her duties, and the procedures of the Board of Directors
BEeAERETEEREFBEYEERBEAER are consistently followed and applicable laws and regulations are
% AUILBEENSIEERRARRIE- properly complied with. The Directors and the Board of Directors’

special committees of the Company have the right to engage
independent professional organizations for their service according to
the requirement of their duties; the reasonable costs incurred in those
occasions are born by the Company.
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The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited as a model code for Directors of the Company. Specific
enquiries have been made to all Directors, who have confirmed their
compliance with the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers during the reporting period.

SPECIAL COMMITTEES UNDER THE BOARD

The Board of the Company has established four special committees,
namely the audit committee, the remuneration committee, the
nomination committee and the strategy development committee,

whose members are all Directors.

The members of the Audit Committee of the seventh session of the
Board of Directors include Fan Fu-chun, Yu Bo, Liu Deng-ging and
Zhang Ying-jian. Three fourth of the members of the audit committee
are independent Directors and Independent Director Fan Fu-chun is the
chairperson of the committee, in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules. During the year, the Audit Committee held four meetings
and had reviewed the Group's annual and half-yearly reports and
financial statements and matters relating to the continuing connected
transactions.

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Company’s Supervisory Committee consists of five supervisors, of
which two supervisors are representing staff and workers.

1. The Supervisory Committee Meetings in the period

The Supervisory Committee held two meetings in the period, the
main contents of which were as follows:

The Supervisory Committee held a meeting on 23 March 2013 to
pass the Company's Report of the Supervisory Committee,
Audited Financial Statements and the summary of Annual Report
for the year 2012.

The Supervisory Committee held a meeting on 23 August 2013
to pass the Company's Interim Reports of 2013 and other
matters.
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Independent Opinions of the Supervisory Committee to the
Related Matters of the Company in the Year 2013

The Company’s Operating Validity

According to related laws and regulations, the Supervisory
Committee has supervised and examined the convening
procedures of the General Meeting and the Board of Directors
Meeting 2013, resolution matters, the Board of Directors’
execution of the General Meeting resolutions, the enforcement
of the Company’s management system and the efficiency of the
Company’s operation and management, and the Supervisory
Committee considered that the Company has operated strictly
according to the related provisions of the Company Law, the
Listing Rules, the Articles of Association of the Company and
other relevant regulations; that the Company operates with
scientific and reasonable decision making procedure; and that the
Company further perfected its internal management and
established favorable internal control system in 2013.

Reviewing the Financial Conditions of the Company

The Supervisory Committee seriously reviewed the Company’s
Financial Balancing Report 2013, Profit Distribution Scheme
prepared by the Board and the Audited Financial Statements
2013 audited and submitted by the Company's auditor. The
Supervisory Committee considered that the Company’s audited
Financial Reports 2013 was true and reliable, which objectively
presented the Company’s financial situations and operation
results. The Supervisory Committee approved the Company's
audited Financial Reports submitted by both local and overseas
accountants.

The Implementation of the Resolutions Passed at General
Meetings

The members of the Supervisory Committee attended the Board
Meetings and the General Meetings. The Supervisory Committee
supervised the implementation of the resolutions passed at
General Meetings and considered that the Board of Directors
could seriously carry out the General Meeting decisions.
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3. The Implementation of Supervisory Duties by the
Supervisory Committee

The Supervisory Committee supervised the Directors and senior
management of the Company in accordance with the related
laws and the Articles of Association, and considered that the
Directors and senior management of the Company carried out
their duties lawfully, without any violation against the related
laws and regulations and the Articles of Association or the
interests of the Company.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND INTERNAL AUDIT

The Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining
the internal control system of the Company, and for establishing the
Audit Committee. The Company monitors and supervises the
disclosure of financial information by the Company, as well as operation
and internal control activities regularly or where necessary, so as to
ensure the transparency of information disclosure, operation efficiency
and effectiveness of its corporate control mechanisms. The Company
fully implements the relevant requirements of the Internal Control
Guideline and continues to optimize the internal control systems and
proceeds with self-assessments and continuous improvements.
Through incentive measures and the guidance of corporate culture, the
complete internal control system of the Company and its effective

implementation are ensured.

AUDITORS

The financial statements included in the annual report of the Company
for the year 2013 were prepared according to PRC Accounting
Standards and Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, and were
audited by Ruihua Certified Public Accountants, the PRC auditor, and
Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited, the international auditor.
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Information Disclosure and Supervision

The Company continuously improves information disclosure
management and enhances the investor relations management. The
Company discloses information on an open, fair, true, accurate,
complete and timely ground and strictly follows the related disclosure
requirements of relative laws and regulations, the Articles of
Association of the Company and Listing Rules. In our effort to improve
the management of investor relations, the Company issues its Interim
Reports and Annual Reports and discloses matters such as rotation of
directors, acquisition of equity interest in the Finance Company,
entering into the Management Entrustment Agreement with Harbin
Electric Corporation and the issuance of the medium and long term
corporate bonds in a timely manner. The Company serves to visiting
investors in good faith, receiving in aggregate over 40 visits from
investors for the whole year. It also participates in investor forums,
convening over 100 telephone conferences and organizing activities
such as press conferences, performance presentations and road
shows, with a view to updating the investors on the Company's latest
development and prospects, and in turn strengthening the relationship
with the investors and enhancing the transparency of the Company. On
28 November 2013, the Company was awarded the “Best Brand Value
Listed Company (5 £ @ ¥ & & £ ™ 2 7)” on the China Securities
Golden Bauhinia Awards Ceremony (FF Bl 55 % [ & K 7 | 8 42 H32)
jointly hosted by Takungpao and renowned securities organizations
from both Mainland China and Hong Kong.

The secretariat of the Board of the Company is responsible for the
information disclosure and investor relations management. The
Company will perform its duties, continuously enhance its governance
structure and improve its management standard by strictly following
the requirements of the related laws and regulations of the local and
overseas securities regulatory organizations.
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This is the first environmental and social responsibility report of the

Company as at 31 December 2013, covering the Company and its

subsidiaries (the “Group”).

(1) WORKING ENVIRONMENT

1.

Working Environment

The Group adheres to its “people-oriented” principle of
development, which emphasizes staff management, and
has established various systems, including the “Staff
Management System”, “Labour Contract Management
Measures”, “Requirements on Labour Contract
Termination” and “Implementation Measures for Paid
Leave"”. It endeavours to create better working
environment for its staff, and at the same time reduces

exposure to labour employment risks.

The Group is implementing the five-day week and eight-
hour day working arrangement. Its staff members enjoy all
holidays set by the State and local governments and are
entitled to paid leaves ranging from 5 to 15 days depending
on their years of service. Staff of the Group is entitled to
“Five Insurances and Housing Fund” and other benefits.
The Group has also established the supplementary pension
system to provide better assurance to our staff.

The Group is implementing a master budget management
regarding staff remuneration, which constitutes a
performance-based reward system that can effectively
motivate the staff to make positive contribution to the
Group. The Group has established various systems such as
the “Provisional Measures for Assessing Operating Results
by Officers of the Company and Subsidiaries” and
“Provisional Measures for Annual Salaries of Officers of
the Company and Subsidiaries” whereby the remuneration
of the management is linked to the Group's performance,
forming a floating mechanism for the remuneration of the

management.
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The Group places high importance on the career
development of its staff and therefore has set up various
systems including “Staff Training Management System” to
ensure staff's career development and, at the same time,
the Group's corporate development. Staff can seek
development in two ways: getting promotion to
management positions or getting transfer to technical
positions through enrichment of professional knowledge. It
has also set up relevant systems, such as “Interim
Requirement for Recruitment, Assessment and
Management of Chief Professionals and Supervisors”,
“Interim Measures for Assessment and Management of
Technical Experts (Chief Technical Experts)” and “Interim
Measures for Assessment and Management of High-tech
Experts”, to encourage talented staff to “opt for
professional qualifications instead of official duties”.

In 2013, the Group had a total workforce of 19,358
employees. By duties, there were 4,120 employees
responsible for corporate management, 4,168 professional
technicians, 6,877 front-line production workers and 4,193
supporting production workers. By education background,
there were 35 doctorate degree holders, 1,170 master
degree holders and 5,248 bachelor degree holders.
Besides, there were 4,021 tertiary graduates, 3,951
graduates from vocational schools and technical schools
and 4,933 school leavers with education at secondary or

below levels.

Furthermore, as at 31 December 2013, the Group had over
8,000 professional technicians of different disciplines, of
which there were 2 academics of the Chinese Academy of
Engineering, 86 experts entitled to government special
subsidies from the State Council, 3 national candidates for
the “New Century Talent Project”, 1 candidate of the
“Introduction Scheme of Overseas High Level Talents
(Thousands Scheme)” and 14 national technical talents.

In 2013, approximately 190 staff members left the Group.
Most of them were newly-recruited university graduates,
who opted for government posts or furthered their studies,
representing 85% of the total staff turnover.
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Health and Safety

The Group attaches great importance to the health and
safety of our staff members. Each subsidiary has set up a
regulatory system for production safety and occupational
diseases prevention and control. Specific department is
assigned to oversee the safety in production, striving to
create a safe working environment for the Group's staff
members and keep them out of harm's way.

The Group is effectively operating the Occupational Health
and Safety Management System (OHSMS18000) and
Environmental Management System (ISO14000). Insisting
on the policy of “placing safety on top of the priority list,
taking precaution as the main task and providing
comprehensive treatment”, we continue to emphasize
major responsibilities in ensuring production safety.
Promotion, education and training on production safety
were commenced extensively. We continued to work on
meeting the targets of production safety and established
sound mechanisms on contingency and reaction for
overseas safety issues for foreign investment cooperation.
Large-scale inspections on production safety are performed
regularly to eliminate any potential hazards in a timely
manner. The Group also arranges regular medical check-
ups for staff members. For those who work under harsher
environment, the items checked and frequency of check-
ups will be increased accordingly and treatment are
regularly organized to minimize occupational threat to their
health. These have enhanced our level of occupational
health and safety and environmental management. In 2013,
the Group committed more than RMB23 million to staff
health and safety.

In 2013, no death and serious injury cases occurred in the
Group. There were 34 slight injury incidents with 34
employees suffering from slight injuries. Rate of work
injury involving a thousand workers was 1.75%. The status
of production safety remained stable.
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BRERIE 3. Development and Training
ZE—=F  AEBEAHSEEIIE In 2013, the Group organised various trainings as follow:
AR
o5 EHA E§= By
Serial number Item Quantity Unit
1 B TAAR 19,358 A
Total Workforce Number of persons
2 8 TIFFIAR 70,903 AR
Number of employees receiving training Person-time
3 B THIRA 1,1562.26 BT
Investments in staff training RMB million
4 EEpLE 29,883 B
Training for management Hours
5 RS LPN b 51,922 N
Training for engineering technicians Hours
6 ag A B 162,219 N

Training for Technical staff Hours




REEAdEEEHRE @

= RERE

1 -

237 €7)

NEERHE BT IR IR R E TS0 AL BE
T BBREBAEEEM  BKIK
B RR BRESR _T—=
REBFERARRSGBRGECES -
BEITEERB%IA L 2FS0,H
WE A2 COD(LBZAE) B
WE 2630 - RE/WHERE & 20
MR- AN ER17THE - CO,HEM
E4)/579,033W - & JT E{ECO, HF
WE /50.0450F 75 W BERE B B
FABRAIRAE

REBEREATRBREYELERR
ERRE B2RESREREE
B RETEERBEYIREERE  ©
EREMMNE FREMREABEEET
AENENRE  — T =F5Zk
YK E 51,3088 - EEEA100% °

BRERA

AEEHE TCREREBGIE) (&
REHERRBEERRENE) (G
EEEHE)  HMNRAFEREIES
B) WHELET R ERBIRRGIE
AT~

AEEMEEZRMEEEMAEE
SEME - BBRERRFT I TER
# o REMERAE  BRIEZRM
KAAELA80% °

Environmental and Social Responsibility Report (continued)

(2) ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

1.

Emissions

The Group always concerns itself with environmental
protection and works on energy saving and emission
reduction. We actively assume social responsibility to
reduce water, air and noise pollution. In 2013, the Group's
prevailing environmental equipment operated stably, with a
performance rating of over 95%. The annual emission of
SO, (22 tonnes), COD (Chemical Oxygen Demand) (263
tonnes), nitrogen oxides(20 tonnes), ammonia nitrogen(17
tonnes), CO, (79,033 tonnes) and CO, per ten thousand
yuan output value (0.045 tonnes) all complied with the
State's related standards.

The Group rigorously complies with regulations regarding
the declaration, transfer and disposal as well as
contingency plan of hazardous wastes. It perfects the
environmental management of hazardous wastes by
engaging operators holding valid licence for processing
hazardous wastes and electronic wastes. In 2013, the
aggregate amount of hazardous wastes produced by the
Group was 1,308 tonnes with a 100% disposal rate.

Usage of Resources

The Group has established “Energy Management System”,
"Rewards and Punishment Assessing Measures for Single
Major Energy-consuming Equipment”, “System for
Measurement Management” and “Energy Management
System for Outer-ring Users”, and strictly follows the
measures in the production process.

The major raw materials required by the Group are steels
and non-ferrous metals. By continuously improving our
designs and techniques to promote utilization rate of
materials, our current utilization rate of major raw materials
is approximately 80%.
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Environmental and Social Responsibility Report (continued)

As regards energy consumption, throughout 2013, the
Group has consumed 17 thousand tonnes of raw coal,
200.99 million kW/hours of electricity, 22.79 million m? of
natural gas and 830 tonnes of petroleum. Thus, the
aggregate amount of energy consumption was 74,395
tonnes of standard coal and the aggregate consumption
per ten thousand yuan output value was 0.04 tonnes of
standard coal. Industrial usage of new water was 1,510,011
tonnes and the water consumed per ten thousand yuan
output value was 0.85 m®.

The Group continuously launched the promotion and
education on energy saving and emission reduction. \We
procured our subsidiaries to launch a promotion campaign
on energy saving, with the theme of “acting on the
concept of energy saving and low carbon to build a sweet
home". The activity aims at enhancing all staff members’
awareness of energy saving, emission reduction and low
carbon and striving to further reduce the aggregate
consumption of energy and water per ten thousand yuan

output value.

(3) OPERATING PRACTICE

1.

Supply chain management

The Group has adopted an operating model that integrates
concentration and diversification in its supply chain
management. Some materials are purchased by each
subsidiary through tenders according to their own
procurement procedures. Some materials are purchased by
the Group through centralized tenders, the proportion of
which has been growing. Meanwhile, the Group will fully
capitalize on the functions of auction centers as well as
perfect the tender system so as to enlarge the scope for
tender, regulate management and enhance efficiency.
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The Group regulates the management of suppliers by
exercising stricter credit control and implementing
transparent procurement process by open tenders. The
Group has over 6,300 suppliers, of which more than 2,000
are within the territories of Harbin while 4,300 spread
across other provinces and cities.

The engagement of suppliers is strictly subject to the
following selection process:

(1) Nominated suppliers are subject to a screening
process according to the “Assessment and Control
System for Suppliers” in which their experience,
technical expertise and capacity will be taken into
account. Those who are accepted will be added to a
list of qualified suppliers.

(2)  When procurement of materials is to be made, the
Group will select certain qualified suppliers from the
list to submit tenders for supply contract. In this
case, 5 or more qualified suppliers (3 or less in the
case of specific materials which are confirmed as
strategic or bottleneck supplies) will be issued an
invitation for tender. Preliminary review of
documents and discussion on bidding proposals will
be conducted. When the final decision is made after
deliberation, the Group will enter into a purchase
agreement with the selected supplier.
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For some suppliers, the Group may demand information in
connection with environmental and social responsibilities
for review, the process of which is as follows:

(1) When review of environmental management and
control procedures, social responsibilities report and
other supporting documents is required, relevant
documents must be available for inspection 1-3 days
in advance. Enterprises failing the certification criteria
of environmental system or lacking social
responsibilities report must provide documents in
support of their environmental management and the
performance of social responsibilities.

(2)  Personnel with certifications in environmental
management system and experience of corporate
management will be appointed to conduct on-site
inspection according to the documents provided.

Product liabilities

With the rising demand for energy across the globe and
the growing awareness of environmental protection, the
promotion of clean energy has become a necessary trend,
which has imposed new pressures and challenges on
conventional power generating equipment manufacturers.
In order to meet the target of reducing by the year 2020
the emission of CO, by 40-45% as compared to 2005,
developing a manufacturing industry for power generating
equipment running on high performance and clean energy
has become a new requirement for national economy.
Among all the thermal power generating equipment in
China, the coal-fired power generating equipment running
on high performance and clean energy will be the mainstay
in future while hydropower, nuclear power, hybrid power
and wind power as well as solar power will enter a new
development phase. The Group will adhere to the concept
of sustainability and continue to step up its efforts in
developing power generating equipment running on high
performance and clean energy, wind power and solar
power, synchronizing the growth of the enterprise and the

environment.
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In 2013, the Group was granted 236 patents, 30 of which
are related to inventions, and received 18 accolades for
technology achievements, 10 of which are at provincial or
ministerial level. Currently the Group owns in aggregate
more than 800 patents, over 100 of which are related to
inventions, and more than 250 accolades for technology
achievements, 185 of which are at provincial or ministerial

level, including 18 at national level.

Acting on its philosophy of “users first”, the Group aims at
providing its customers with qualified products and
satisfactory services. Product design and manufacturing
processes strictly follow the stated procedures to ensure
the products manufactured meeting technical
specifications. Before leaving the factory, products are
required to undergo a thorough inspection process and
detailed documentation in respect of this inspection
process are prepared and on file so as to ensure customer
satisfaction.

The Group maintains a system of aftersales services and
warranty by setting up specific departments in charge of
these functions. A warranty period of one year
commencing from the completion of trial running which
lasts for 168 hours is provided. The coverage of such
warranty is determined according to specific product
design and complaints will be entertained in accordance
with standard procedures upon receipt of customers’
feedback, providing the best possible aftersales services
and quality assurance.
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Anti-corruption

The Group always attaches importance to the
establishment of a system advocating anti-corruption and
promoting moral cleanliness, and has issued 16 relevant
directives, such as “Code of Ethics for Top Leadership of
Enterprise”, “System for Cautioned Statement and
Inquest”, “Implementation Measures for the Decision
Making Policy Regarding ‘= & — X (Important issues,
Important Personnel, Important Investments and

rn

Substantial Investment Amount)'”, and “Provisional

Measures Regarding Monitoring”.

The Group has been actively working on the establishment
of punitive and preventive measures against corruption,
aiming at promoting the concept of moral cleanliness and
clean corporate culture among the leadership and key
personnel. The goal is to establish a supervision
mechanism in which the disciplinary committee plays a
leading role with concerted efforts from the compliance
department, audit department, the board of supervisors,
risk control department and other departments of relevant
functions, further perfecting the corporate supervision
system by ensuring an organic integration of anti-corruption
and business management.
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(4) SOCIAL PARTICIPATION

Interested parties

%548 B 75 BRE R0 R R

key issues of concern

DENE R

Response from the Company

IR

Shareholders

EEE

Regulatory bodies

B

Government

TETRSHERMEE
REFREFNERER
RAGCEZOBRFE

Persistently increasing profitability
Maintaining good credit rating
Enhancing core competitive strengths

BERESLE

BREBIR LB AEER

BRI ERETE

Ensuring maintenance and appreciation
of assets

Ensuring implementation of the
state austerity measures

Ensuring compliance and integrity
in operations

BT AR

RitpEKE

REREXBREHENRBRE

Ensuring tax contributions

Creating job opportunities

Providing maximum protection for
equipment facilitating development
of industries

THABIEREERES
EHERRRAS
Disclosing operating information on a regular basis;
Convening general meetings of shareholders
from time to time

HRRPORERME 58 &E

AR ) B 428 ) 0 [ B A

ELREHRER

Interpreting, publicizing and implementing
state policies and regulations;

Exercising risks control and assessment;

Achieving operating and strategic goals

FEHBR D
ARAES  TRHEBEARE
SIERRARE

P 32 B PIHAE (31 P B SR 1 e

Paying taxes in accordance with laws;

Providing job placement assistance to discharged
soldiers and the disabled by organizing recruitment
activities;

Setting up a task force addressing state policies
and measures
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key issues of concern

DENE EEE

Response from the Company

RPE

Users

HrER
Suppliers

8 R

EmitER  EE2r%E

RIFEOEE R

Timely delivery

Good performance and reliable quality
of the products

Good aftersales services

BEROBEHERE
BERER

Building a long-term and stable supply chain

Realizing a win-win situation

et

t

MEERSE

EEEET

EXwmiE

AP E#E

Conducting satisfaction survey;

Acting on the philosophy of “Quality Reigns
Supreme”;

Holding industry forum;

Organizing seminars for users

RIS HERERCR - DRRERIE

HEERETHEETERER

Adopting a “sunshine” policy in procurement and
a transparent procurement process;

Conducting review on the suppliers” performance
of social responsibilities
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key issues of concern

DENE EEE

Response from the Company

8T

Employees

BH

Business associates

SERENMERFI TR E
AFHREZ 2GR IRE
A AR IR EE R
BRITEREERER R
Fully satisfying their rights and

interests of employment
Fully protecting their personal

health and safety
Building a self-enhancement system
Effectively implementing management

and safeguarding their rights in

a democratic manner

RMEB

B A1E

BEEH

FRHLZE

Exchanging ideas and cooperating
Ensuring strategic cooperation
Complementing each other” s strengths
Sharing information

BIERBREIEL  BEREBRERL

ﬁﬁ%@éﬁﬁ@’%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ik’
EVATERE - REFMENE

AERZEDBARDEE - ﬁ@mﬁﬁA
HArt RS - BB TRERER SN
Fh

EREBRARAGNRIRRASER  RE
BEERRNMBIARRR  BUEAFH
HIE - BT AR

Conducting general medical check-ups systematically
and providing regular check-ups on occupational
diseases;

Standardizing the management of employment
contracts, promoting an equality-based corporate
culture, setting up a fair recruitment system and
safeguarding employees’ remuneration and
benefits package;

Providing training programmes for staff of all levels
according to their positions, duties and categories,
comparing staff performance and providing the staff
with opportunities and platforms
for self-development;

Convening meetings to be attended by
representatives from the Party and staff as well as
implementing the resolutions passed thereat,
setting a reception day to safeguard the lawful
interests of the staff

RERMBAFERGZ SRS

=EED - B

THEEEEE

2IMTEBE

Signing strategic cooperation framework
agreements, strategic agreements;

Arranging visits and meetings between
senior management of both parties;

Holding conferences on specific subjects;

Joining industry associations
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key issues of concern

DENE EEE

Response from the Company

I

Community

e
Society

R

Environment

XEAMEEBEERMEEES
SRzl YN
Supporting economic development and
social advancement of the local community
Supporting activities contributing to the
well-being of the community

2EM EEBEER
THEBEMELEER
HREROZRNIERR
Participating social activities
Supporting the activities towards
building a harmonious society
Reporting on the activities of the
voluntary services team

58 EIREKIMIRIF RE
ZEBRBAFHESRREARE
Strengthening conservation of resources
and environmental protection
Drawing up and implementing contingency
plan for environmental incidents

TERMEER  ARARES 2R
EBHRL - RBEEER

Supporting construction of the community,
initiating activities for the community,
establishing community centers and
serving the residents of the community;

PEABBEERR AKREK  BHZES

EfesdfEER T e RENEERRE
o BB AESER

FEIZREBGAERT - BERIRERL

KEEMETHEEENERES

BREERERLKE  2EEERRER

HEBARZ 2L ERTE

Members of the management being
elected representatives of the CPC,

NPC and CPPCC;

Actively promoting the concept of social
responsibilities by vigorously contributing to
different segments in industry associations
or organizations;

Performing the duties of a founder by
founding non-governmental organizations;

Releasing information regarding the performance of
social responsibilities in a timely manner;

Participating community services by
setting up a voluntary services team;

Maintaining national security and social stability

HEE B EETARITE S - EEWHEESHK
B RRIREmEVEE

HEIREE B ETIRFEAM

Promoting self-initiated innovation and
technology advancement, manufacturing
and promoting R&D of high performance
green products;

Conducting environment assessment

for new investments
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key issues of concern

DENE EEE

Response from the Company

%8
Media

XEHRELE

=EEH

LS oy 3

Supporting the media

Maintaining transparency in information
Maintaining communication with the media

BUREMBEESAGNE
BREERRPBAGER
BB AFEERESR
Establishing a solid system of spokesman;
Releasing corporate news through

the Company’ s websites;
Voluntarily providing information for the media
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Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited

Member Crowe Horwath International

B INEESEBT7IBED LR
9/F, Leighton Centre,

77 Leighton Road,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

HARBIN ELECTRIC COMPANY LIMITED

(A joint stock company established in the People’s Republic of China
with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Harbin
Electric Company Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group") set out on pages 81 to 245, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31
December 2013, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2013, and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 21 March 2014

Lau Kwok Hung
Practising Certificate No.: P04169
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

BHE-ZT-—=+-A=+—HBLEE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

2013 2012

ihg=s AR¥T T AREEFIT

Note RMB’'000 RMB’000

(&&=751)

(restated)

ON Revenue 4 20,500,705 25,995,186
BRAR Cost of sales (16,179,823)  (20,414,447)
2l Gross profit 4,320,882 5,580,739
HE A NFEE Other revenue and net loss 5 463,345 501,036
-0 Distribution expenses (528,425) (644,951)
BEIEEH Administrative expenses (3,066,749) (3,320,967)
Hh Bz H Other operating expenses (211,461) (330,702)
R Finance costs 6(a) (228,478) (56,439)
FE(RE & R A m AR e 18 Share of profits less losses of associates 17 28,980 42,110
o 250 Al A Profit before taxation 6 778,094 1,770,826
THIE Income tax 7(a) (152,488) (414,105)
NG & Vi ) Profit for the year 625,606 1,356,721

EEER Attributable to:

KRB/ DEFE A Equity shareholders of the Company 705,813 1,420,947
FEIZE R R Non-controlling interests (80,207) (64,226)
625,606 1,356,721

BERER Earnings per share AR¥RMB AR RMB
—EARNEE — Basic and diluted 9 51.3%cents  103.2% cents
METBA It EMBEHRERN—ED - BAFERF The annexed notes form part of these financial statements. Details of
KHENTARRIBROIEE A ZKRBFINHF dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable

38(b) ° to the profit for the year are set out in note 38(b).
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For e yoa onded 31 Decerber 2013

2013 2012

AR¥T R ARBTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

(g =E3))

(restated)

IR i A Profit for the year 625,606 1,356,721
AEEFEHMEEWE(EE) Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year,

HEEE net of income tax
A EFoEEERIER ¢ [tems that may be reclassified subsequently to

profit or loss:

ReEREBEM Cash flow hedges:

NEEZ W= Gains arising during the year 115,292 48,093

W ETARE RSB D EAR Less: Reclassification adjustments for gains

to profit or loss - (12,781)
Hif& AT B3 FHIE B MABREFT IS EE Income tax relating to items that may be
reclassified subsequently (17,294) (5,297)
REEZHEMEEWE Other comprehensive income for the year,

HIBR PSR net of income tax 97,998 30,015
AFEEXHNHREHE Total comprehensive income for the year 723,604 1,386,736
EEER Attributable to:

E/NETSHESZ PN Equity shareholders of the Company 803,811 1,450,962

Bl T Non-controlling interests (80,207) (64,226)

723,604 1,386,736
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZZE—=F+=-A=+—H
At 31 December 2013

31/12/2013 31/12/2012 1/1/2012
ihg=s AR®T R AREEF T AREEF T
Note RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
(&E5) (gEE5)
(restated) (restated)
FREBEE Non-current assets
EME Investment properties 11 4,448 4,629 4,810
W - WE MR E Property, plant and equipment 12 6,633,287 6,416,132 5,804,470
BN E R Prepaid lease payments 13 492,512 420,946 433,000
EREE Intangible assets 14 218,357 233,393 261,732
EEFRIBEEE Deferred tax assets 15 297,354 288,542 277,366
RN Interests in associates 17 234,614 424,316 399,612
HEMIEREBEE Other non-current assets 18 70,538 109,637 96,637
HEihemEE Other financial assets 19 51,095 248,327 236,085
8,002,205 8,145,922 7,513,712
REEE Current assets
FE Inventories 20 14,346,742 12,356,211 11,616,296
FEUBR R Trade receivables 21 14,452,023 15,286,812 12,918,135
FEU 5 Bills receivable 21 1,997,282 1,278,348 1,052,526
BRI ZEE N R E R Discounted bills and loans
receivable 22 21,855 22,536 7,406
Hipelsk - %4 MFENFIE  Other receivables, deposits
and prepayments 23 5,673,638 4,595,102 4,484,131
N T EER Prepaid lease payments 13 14,286 12,300 11,922
EiEA R Amounts due from customers
for contract work 24 970,378 2,079,367 1,849,593
JEWR Z I B~ =3 TE Amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries 25 175,206 111,832 59,929
Hibom&E Other financial assets 19 528,040 15,422 92,641
RS EBFH Trading securities 26 1,532,390 1,601,800 2,001,530
CIRLqEIE TR Tax recoverable 36 43,402 - -
SR & B IR IRTTIF K Restricted and pledged
bank deposits 27 219,456 346,077 159,395
PR ERTTIEK Deposits with central bank 27 519,145 133,645 266,074
WITER Bank deposits 28 1,326,913 472,913 47,404
RNERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 28 10,538,171 8,488,162 8,836,358
52,358,927 46,800,527 43,403,340
REBEE Current liabilities
FEiEA R EN R Amounts due to customers
for contract work 24 1,128,844 1,563,378 1,413,194
TESRTA Derivative financial instruments - - 3,730
FETBRR Trade payables 29 15,071,799 17,260,871 14,647,604
=R Bills payable 29 4,018,619 3,555,642 1,900,795
HipfESk - FEsTE A KR Other payables, accruals and
provisions 29 1,564,735 1,684,451 2,073,247
B iz e Deposits received 30 10,331,026 7,238,055 7,483,656
FEASH R 2 B B A B FOE Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 25 65,336 48,993 36,266
RIERE A BIFRIE Advance from holding company 31 1,768,182 400,478 2,785
EPER Customer deposits 32 454,236 155,550 288,165
BR—FRNEEZER Borrowings — due within one year 33 738,464 1,098,595 581,623
JEXHi 2 Tax payables 36 254,009 906,893 925,745
BAR—FANEBZRE Obligation under finance lease
FREHRE — due within one year 34 39,289 36,988 -
35,434,539 33,949,894 29,356,810
RBEEFE Net current assets 16,924,388 12,850,633 14,046,530
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

RZE—=F+-A=+—H
At 31 December 2013

31/12/2013 31/12/2012 1/1/2012
ihg=s AR®T R AREEF T AREEF T
Note RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
€ s-=x7)) (re=EH)
(restated) (restated)
HRABHEEENEEE Total assets less current liabilities 24,926,593 20,996,555 21,560,242
EREBERS Non-current liabilities
TESRT A Derivative financial instruments - - 28,941
(S ¢i e Deposits received 30 6,533,021 4,655,159 6,337,141
RIERR A BIRIE Advance from holding company 31 3,500 1,357,108 1,169,838
BR—FREEZER Borrowings — due after one year 33 988,200 981,317 1,314,244
BR—FEEEZRE Obligation under finance lease
THE A — due after one year 34 97,245 136,391 -
NEEH Corporate bond 37 2,992,688 - -
ELEFRIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 15 17,690 396 -
10,632,344 7,130,371 8,850,164
EEFE NET ASSETS 14,294,249 13,866,184 12,710,078
BRAREE CAPITAL AND RESERVES 38
LN Share capital 1,376,806 1,376,806 1,376,806
& Reserves 11,150,277 10,647,189 9,382,200
RATRAD A AFEIG4A#E2E  Total equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company 12,527,083 12,023,995 10,759,006
IR R Non-controlling interests 1,767,166 1,842,189 1,951,072
DB TOTAL EQUITY 14,294,249 13,866,184 12,710,078

BEERN_E-NOE=R -+ HILERKET

o

March 2014.

REE

Wu Wei-zhang

B SE AU BF I TS AR R —H#E D

EE

Director

The annexed notes form part of these financial statements.

BHE

Shang Zhong-fu

EE

Director

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 21
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At 31 December 2013

Statement of Financial Position

2013 2012
F & AR¥T T AREFTT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
FREBEE Non-current assets
WME - ME KRG Property, plant and equipment 12 1,410,571 1,252,820
B LA ER Prepaid lease payments 13 111,274 35,861
RIEN A& 2= Deferred tax assets 15 - 10,696
KRB REZIRE Investments in subsidiaries 16 4,556,044 2,867,987
N EENCI: Fo Interests in associates 17 17,740 80,740
HMIERBEE Other non-current assets 18 21,246 60,346
6,116,875 4,308,450
RBEE Current assets
TE Inventories 20 1,699,598 1,630,735
FEUT AR R Trade receivables 21 484,446 1,456,805
[ AES Bills receivable 21 5,000 75,407
HEMEBGK - e RIBRIE Other receivables, deposits
and prepayments 23 226,470 272,618
Taff LR E K Prepaid lease payments 13 1,726 854
FEUL BB A 7 FOR Amounts due from subsidiaries 16 1,997,122 1,640,468
R 54 Trading securities 26 1,532,390 1,601,800
AR EIRIAE Tax recoverable 36 21,930 -
BeMAeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 28 1,769,877 511,265
7,738,559 7,089,952
mEBE Current liabilities
FEATBRFK Trade payables 29 314,965 154,474
NS Bills payable 29 - 35,911
HEMERMK - B BRREE Other payables, accruals and provisions 29 165,169 216,732
SR E7E Deposits received 30 1,769,616 1,368,345
YL ENGIE S Amounts due to subsidiaries 16 2,867,801 3,130,267
RN BIFRIE Advance from holding company 31 398,730 400,000
JER T & Tax payables 36 8,188 129,045
5,524,469 5,434,774
REBEEFEE Net current assets 2,214,090 1,655,178
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Statement of Financial Position (continued)

RZZE—=F+=-A=+—H
At 31 December 2013

2013 2012
B aE AR¥T T ARBEFT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
HBRRBEEENRAEE Total assets less current liabilities 8,330,965 5,963,628
e =R Non-current liabilities
BUIES Deposits received 30 497,073 891,010
RIZRR A BI5RIE Advance from holding company 31 - 392,960
BER—FREEZEBR Borrowings — due after one year 33 52,271 11,364
NaElEH Corporate bond 37 2,992,688 -
3,542,032 1,295,334
EEFE NET ASSETS 4,788,933 4,668,294
RAREE CAPITAL AND RESERVES 38
PR Share capital 1,376,806 1,376,806
& Reserves 3,412,127 3,291,488
R TOTAL EQUITY 4,788,933 4,668,294
EExeN - E—NE=F _+—BHEREET Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 21
2% o March 2014.
REE BmHE
Wu Wei-zhang Shang Zhong-fu
EF EF
Director Director
M EERE AR I SRR R — 2B o The annexed notes form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-T-=F+-A=t+—ALFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

KARBEEARG2RE
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
EE EEER
ErEE 0RE FERRE B2
B BEEE Sattoy Stawtoy KHEE EREE  EEEE  REEA Non- ]

Share Share capital  surplus  Special Other  Hedging  Retained 3 controlling Total
capitl  premium  reserve  reserve  reseve  reseves  reserve  profits Total  interests equity
ARETL ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETRH
RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOOD  RMBOO0  RMB'OO0  RMB'0O0  RMB'0O0  RMBO0  RMBOO0  RMBIO00  RMB'000

W-B-CE-F-R2RENLR
KEREH (27
KEEENRENE

REnEEY MhEE

FERRENEES

Ek%#ﬂxﬁxw&
HENERF (s
O WE?\\M
fEmoEs
& (H3an)

=

At 1 January 2012 1376806 1980295 703229 596,936 - 60131 @70 5911993 10601620 1921614 12523234
Merger accounting restatement note 3| - - - - - 138,000 - 19386 157,38 9458 186,80

Restated balance at 1 January 2012 1376806 198025 703229 596,936 - 1131 Q7700 5931379 10759006 1951072 12,710,078
Profitfor the year [restated) - - - - - - - 14097 140947 (64226 1356721
Other comprehensive income for the year:

Cash flow hedges, net of tax - - - - - - 30 - 0% - 00
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - 0015 1420947 1,450,962 (64.226) 1,386,736
Dividends distributed to non-controling shareholders - - - - - - - - - (752) (752)
Disposal of subsidiaries note 41) - - - - - - - - - (150) (150]
Additional interests in the subsidiaries (note 40(d) - - - - - 6,780 - - 6780 (3758 (3697

Transfer between reserves - - - bR - - - (25060 - - -
Dividends (note 381b) - - - - - - - (192753 (192,783 - (192753)

WoE-ZEtZfz1-8 Restated balance at 31 December 2012
PR 1376806 1980,295*  703229*  621,998* S 2205%  T134511 1200399 1842189 13,866,184
R-E-=%-5-A At 1 January 2013 13716806 1980295 703229 6219% - 66911 2245 7102433 11853917 1,810,284 13,664,201
AlgihEEs| () Merger accounting restatement [note 3) - - - - - 138000 - o oems N 20198
H-E-=E-F-RzRENILR Restated halance at 1 January 2013 1376806 198029%* 703229 621,998 St 2205%  T134511% 1202399 1,842,189 13,866,184
FEEEH Proft for the year - - - - - - - 05813 05813 (B0.207 625,606
KEEEp2ENE Other comprehensive income for the year:
RERSER NRFE Cash flow hedges, netof tax - - - - - - U - o9 - 919
rEERANGEE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - 198 705813 803811 BT 73604
AEFHERENRE Dividends distrbuted to non-controling shareholders - - - - - - - - - (5080 (25080)
R ThERARTE Arising from business combination under common conrol - - - - - (149890 - - (149890) - (149890
U&E%WE 7] (B3 40(a)) Acquisiion of subsidiry (note 401a) - - - - - - - - SN 0801
PBATHENER (K00 F()  Addiional interests n the subsiciaries (note 401b1c) - - - - -1 - - 138 986G (848
HERERTE Capitalnection by non-controling nterests - - - - - - - - - 108000 108000
HEATAMARASERRAR 2RE  Diidend paid to HE Corporation before combination of
Finance Company - - - - - - - (31459 (31.459) - 31459
fﬁ% IR Transfer between reserves - - - bl - - - (B - - -
& (b)) Dividends fote 33t - - - - - - - (137881 (137881) - 13881
TEERNBEENSE Net increase in specialreserve for the year - - - - 4485 - - - 4485 19 4614
RoE-=E+ZB=1-H At 31 December 2013 1376806 1980295* 703229 647, 740* 4480 68843*  100243* 7645442 12527083 1,767,166 14,094,249
M]“H%}ﬂwt Bk a— The annexed notes form part of these financial statements.
ZEFEEBREE Eﬁﬁ%ﬂj{/ﬂzﬁ%tﬁ’] /E\ * These reserve accounts constitute the consolidated reserves of
ek 5 A KM 11,150,277,000 70 ( = % — = RMB11,150,277,000 (2012: RMB10,647,189,000) in the consolidated
F: AR#10,647,189,0007T) °

statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)
Eﬁc\)%th:e%g rzefdJerd:Z%? DEeJcreTnEeﬁr: 201%

RBEPEARKMBE ((HE]) ABE - BRB&RE

Mz HERIEFIAT

(1) FEEE

(2) REVEEBSATEE R

3) IRFEEBAZE -

BRI LA R (3) EEAFE 2 2Rt HIAR R

MEBRERNEARFREME QR OLLIE N &3
REEET  WARBRASEBBRRAE -

RIEFBERAREMEEATER » AAE &EH
BRARHERRI0% BFEE AN (BRIETHHes
ERETE)  BARLLITRBAEEEAN -

BARBROER DX PERBELE -

ETEBBRABE AR RRAROIFEABGETZD
—%B’ﬁ'zéﬁ LERFRE N A .&Hﬁ§$250%ﬂw

TABIR - RERBEREE  EEBHBA
iT AR d T EE - ﬁ%ié&%ﬁﬁé‘
YBBERN TR RER - EARBZETR
BRAESETABELR  ZERABREAZS
BTELREMER25% -

/

EEEARBEAMAREREEAR((MEEE
REDAAEEERTI BLEEBFEENDR
BE BERARAKIKHEETTREEEAQG
RN EEME 2O EZREER

In accordance with the People's Republic of China (the “"PRC")
Company Law, the profit after taxation is applied in the following order:

(1) making up of losses;

(2)  allocation to statutory surplus reserve; and

(3)  payment of dividends in respect of ordinary shares.

The amount of appropriation in respect of item (3) above for any year
shall be recommended by the directors in accordance with the
operational conditions and development requirements of the Company
and its subsidiaries and shall be submitted to the shareholders in

general meeting for approval.

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the relevant Articles of
Association, the Company and its subsidiaries are required to
appropriate amounts equal to 10% of their profit after taxation as
determined in accordance with the PRC accounting standards to

statutory surplus reserve.

The application of the share premium account is governed by PRC
Company Law.

Statutory surplus reserve is part of equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company and when its balance reaches an amount
equal to 50% of the Company's registered capital, further appropriation
needs not be made. According to the PRC Company Law, statutory
surplus reserve may be used to make up past losses, to increase
production and business operations or to increase capital by means of
conversion. However, when funds from statutory surplus reserve are
converted to capital, the funds remaining in such reserve shall amount
to not less than 25% of the registered capital.

Statutory capital reserve represents the surplus arising from the
difference between the fair value of the net assets of the principal
business undertakings transferred from Harbin Electric Corporation
("HE Corporation”) to the Group and the nominal value of the shares
issued to HE Corporation by the Company when the Company was

formed.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

HE-_Z—=F+-A=+—RHLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

FhlFEEARERETELZ2EEERANR
2ES - WEPREARBEBIZE2FHaEN
ETBEDLBEARN -2 BASRIHE  AR
HPBBEXBRALZ2ES R_F—=F
TZA=+t—R  AEENKREBHARFEHIHE
AR 4,485,000 7T ©

H b R B A SEE A i o W I B A Rl RS
SN RERREFEERRREEMERNE
oo AWBHARZHIBRREMELE ARG
RHAHETNTELRERELL -

ENRERRANREAEMNENTARARE
EREEHFENARSD - FHRREME
2(ab) RS REHRANSABRERREY

BEM °

o

EEFRBRBEARRIAERBAMS 2 A - &
DE R B D TR E R S

REBEF BTN —NANAFENABMGEBEF D E
23X DR TREZSEABBEPEGTE
AIFfst B BB E S B ARG ERIFTHE
e MENRKERE RZTZ—=F+=
A=+—8 AR TFARIRDIFEEAZER
BEEARBEEELARGIERMEE 2 REB
FAR®237,471,000t( Z T —ZF : AR
142,574,000 7T) ° 20 EXFrill - 577 KA TE B
AEERETFERTIFANRE TR -

ARRBRDIFBABEEESHRIEEIALR
A B 7% 2k 89 6 M) A R 6 258,320,000 T ( =&
— ZF H R A R #138,962,0007T ) ( M 5E
38(a)) °

Special reserve represents a safety fund accrued by the Group in
accordance with the Production Safety Law of the PRC. The law
requires the Group to accrue a safety fund for its manufacturing
business in PRC by appropriating a portion of its net profit to the
special reserve based on certain percentage of its annual revenue. As
at 31 December 2013, the Group's special reserve accrued but not
utilised, amounted to RMB4,485,000.

Other reserves represent the difference between the consideration
paid to acquire additional interests in subsidiaries from non-controlling
interest and the relevant carrying value of the net assets acquired. In
addition, the capital reserve and effect on merger accounting arising

from acquisition of a common control entity was also included therein.

Hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net
change in the fair value of hedging instruments used in cash flow
hedges pending subsequent recognition of the hedged cash flow in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for cash flow hedges in
note 2(ab).

No dividends shall be paid by the Company and its subsidiaries before
they have made up their losses and made allocations to the statutory

surplus reserve.

Pursuant to a document issued by the Ministry of Finance in August
1995 in respect of profit appropriations, the amount available for
distribution to shareholders is the lesser of the amount determined in
accordance with the PRC accounting standards and the amount
determined in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. At 31 December 2013, the aggregate amount
of reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company was RMB237,471,000 (2012: RMB142,574,000) representing
the retained profits of the Company prepared under accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. As also mentioned above,
the balance of statutory surplus reserve can also be distributed to
shareholders in certain situations.

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company includes a profit of RMB258,320,000 (2012: profit of
RMB138,962,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company (note 38(a)).
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE-_Z—=F1+-A=+—RHILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

2013 2012
MIsE AR¥T T ARET T
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000
(&E=71)
(restated)
REXBCRERE Cash flows from operating activities
R 2t A& A Profit before taxation 778,094 1,770,826
FE Adjustments for:
RERAEE Allowance for doubtful debts 6(c) 486,258 766,307
H I GRRE Impairment of other receivables 6(c) 15,471 -
GFEMNEERE Allowance for inventories 6(c) 156,751 34,531
TR L ih FE & FRH 5 Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 6(c) 13,186 12,301
| B E B Amortisation of intangible assets 6(c) 27,575 29,292
R 5 BHRBMA Dividend income from trading securities 5 (51,800) (44,000)
FHEEHERERERA Dividend income from available-for-sale
investments 5 (2,331) (769)
ME - BERFETE Depreciation for property, plant and
equipment 6(c) 666,407 591,496
WEMERE Depreciation for investment properties 6(c) 181 181
B2 Finance costs 6(a) 227,124 55,085
HEYE  BE& (Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant
Bl (W), /B 1E and equipment 5 (3,771) 2,774
S BB A Al E Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 5 - (2,194)
HEFHERE W= Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
investments 5 (5,216) (3,020)
HEBE QAW Gain on disposal of associates 5 (2,123) -
TEERRGZITERR Fair value gains on derivative financial
TEAREEKS instruments not qualifying as hedges 5 (12,930) (18,535)
MESRTIAEAREBEEY Fair value changes on derivative financial
—BeREEH instruments — cash flow hedge (transfer
(B aEHRE) from hedging reserve) 5 - (12,781)
FEHA Interest income 5 (200,435) (148,775)
NG Finance Company:
R ERIT M E MBS 2 Interest income from banks and
FEWA other financial institutions 5 (99,369) (82,556)
BRI EBE R ERER Interest income on discounted bills and
FBUA loans receivables 5 (1,459) (1,310)
BPEHRZMERX Interest expense on customer deposits 6(a) 1,354 1,354
RGEBF AN EEEE Fair value losses on trading securities 5 121,660 243,095
RERE R Reversal of allowance for doubtful
debts 6(c) - (3,234)
JE (B & R B AR & 18 Share of profits less losses of associates (28,980) (42,110)
& 5 Esie, (as) Foreign exchange loss/(gain) 42,603 (14,810)
2,128,250 3,133,148
BEESEE Movements in working capital
F& (38hn) (Increase) in inventories (2,128,224) (778,029)
EUER TR, (38 h0) Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables 364,082 (3,142,302)
FEUREE 42 (1) (Increase) in bills receivable (718,934) (225,822)
HEMEBEK - e RFBMRIE (Increase) in other receivables, deposits
(3h0) and prepayments (862,555) (112,795)
BiEARERFURD (5 ) Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from
customers for contract work 1,108,989 (229,774)
JE U [R) 2B B A B R IE (36 hn) (Increase) in amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries (63,375) (51,903)
EEAREMAZRORD), /&N (Decrease)/increase in amounts due to
customers for contract work (434,534) 150,184
FEATERFR CRi ), /12N (Decrease)/increase in trade payables (2,197,420) 2,614,410
FET =B Increase in bills payable 462,977 1,654,847
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

BHE-ZT-—=+-A=+—HBLEE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

2013 2012
B RE ARBT ARET T
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000
(gg=5)
(restated)
HMpERK - FERTER (Decrease) in other payables, accruals
K48 ORid) and provisions (341,028) (388,796)
BlizeEm Crd) Increase/(decrease) in deposits received 4,969,793 (1,924,966)
P R Y B 2 B 5RIE IS hn Increase in amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 16,343 12,727
R HMFEF ), (Decrease)/increase in trading securities (52,250) 156,635
FERIGER R H AL FERS (Decrease)/increase in value added tax and
BizE Clid), /150 other taxes payable (313,430) 102,942
REEBELEZRS Cash generated from operations 1,938,684 970,506
EHFPETER PRC income taxes paid (542,854) (5652,477)
REEREE RS FHE Net cash generated from operating activities 1,395,830 418,029
REXBZRERE Cash flows from investing activities
HEWBARZFRSE (ORE) Net cash (outflow) from disposal of
subsidiaries 41 - (22,109)
WHEMB AR Z/FRERA Net cash inflow from acquisition of
the subsidiary 40(a) 6,849 -
RITIEER (42 50) (Increase) in bank deposits (854,000) (425,509)
FLESA Interest received 286,692 220,399
BB & N RIS K Proceed from disposal of associates 50 -
S E IS EFTS K Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale
investments - 44,889
BRIREIE K EWE UMD (3E0)  Decrease/(increase) in discounted bills and
loans receivable 97 (15,130)
HEYE - BE KRBTSR Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment 6,540 10,789
B S BHFRE Dividend received from trading securities 51,800 44,000
[SAL QNG #S) Dividend received from associates 18,288 19,406
B HEHRERE Dividend received from available-for-sale
investments 2,254 769
BERERES (EM) (Increase) in guarantee monies for
finance lease - (18,000)
RRERTTER(GEM), SR (Increase)/decrease in deposit with
central bank (385,500) 132,429
HBERBEIHKRE Purchases of held-to-maturity investments (200,000) -
BEME - WERKXE Purchases of property, plant and equipment (859,412) (1,216,735)
TEfT T b AR & FE 0 Additions to prepaid lease payments (78,011) (625)
HBEEFEE Purchases of intangible assets (11,661) (953)
TEEBGHEZITESRMTIA Realised fair value gains on derivative
FRAABERA financial instruments not qualifying
as hedges 25,711 111,175
ZRR &2 EIFRITIFER Decrease/(increase) in restricted and
w5 hn) pledged bank deposits 126,621 (186,683)
mEtEQNEEE Capital injected to an associate (2,679) (2,000)
BREEK(FTRA)2HEESE5E Net cash (used in) investing activities (1,866,361) (1,303,888)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

HE-_Z—=F+-_A=+—ALHFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

2013 2012
B RE ARBT ARET T
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
(gg=5)
(restated)
MEXBRERE Cash flows from financing activities
HEES 2 ZEBE 0 Business combinations under
common control 3 (149,890) -
HGIRITER New bank loans raised 671,918 1,061,153
g EMmER Other loans raised 205,737 73,609
NEEHFER Proceeds from corporate bond 2,991,225 -
TR EHEER Proceeds from new finance lease - 200,000
Uk BE R BB A B 2 B SME R Purchases of additional interests
in subsidiaries - (36,975)
RIEWARIFRIE Advance from holding company 1,188,878 584,963
MIER A FER Repayment to holding company (1,176,182) -
ERRITER Repayment of bank loans (1,114,142) (894,011)
BEFEZEMNCGRD) Increase/(decrease) in customer deposits 298,686 (132,615)
IRITREMEEF A Interest on bank and other borrowings (93,792) (47,360)
EEEMER Repayment of other loans (126,761) (56,706)
BEREREBRET Repayment of obligation under finance lease (36,845) (26,621)
BERERENBER Finance charge on obligation under
finance lease (9,513) (9,079)
IR ERTE Capital injection by non-controlling interests 108,000 -
BERARRRMNFRARE Dividends paid to equity shareholders of
the Company (137,681) (192,753)
AHFRTE RIS Dividends paid to former shareholder before
combination (31,459) -
ERIEERERARE Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (25,036) (752)
BMEXREECRESTFE Net cash generated from financing activities 2,563,143 522,853
ReRESZSEYEM Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
(D) 38 cash equivalents 2,092,612 (363,006)
FHORERALSEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of the year 8,488,162 8,836,358
RSB e Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net (42,603) 14,810
FRESRESZEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the year 28 10,538,171 8,488,162
ERAESRBAEZEEBYZOM Analysis of cash and cash equivalents at
the end of the year
RITFERRFERE Cash at bank and in hand 28 10,324,135 6,646,650
RITFR Bank deposits 28 214,036 1,841,512
10,538,171 8,488,162

B SE AL B TS R A —HE D

The annexed notes form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
HE-Z-=6+-A=+—BIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

—RER

ARBR—FREFEARKME([HE])
L 2B AR EHERBEBRER S
BERAR LT - KRB ZERER&EE
RARRREEREBERR(MEEHE
RE) AR —REFERIZBEARE -
AEEERFRERRABEBEMBEHRR - K
NE M E R N T BE MR 2 R
RERZ RBEERPIEE -

TERUBHRRUAREEZD BB EH
RN MBEBEONBRIAZREOZT
7 - ARERARRININERZINE

AIRHEWBAR FEBEBALE
EERELERBHEEHIRRE -
EMBRARIRBERRIZEEERD
(AT 49 R FTEE17 -

FREFHBER
(a) mplEHA

AP B HRFERRAAEANEEY
BREEA((FEMBREEL]
BREAEEGTMAS([BEGA
ﬁDﬁ%%%ﬁﬂ%m%%é%%%

A BAGFER(BEG
Q‘EE‘JJ)&%&) FERARERA
REBRAGPINRERERE - %
EMBBRARTAEEHARSM
BRARESF LR (T ETRAD)
HEREERE - AREMRENE
SETBRRMEHIIOT

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was established as a joint stock company in the
People's Republic of China (the “PRC") and its H shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Its parent
and ultimate parent company is Harbin Electric Corporation (“HE
Corporation”), a state-owned enterprise established in the PRC.
HE Corporation has not produced financial statements available
for public use. The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB"), rounded to the nearest thousand unless otherwise
indicated. RMB is the Company's functional and presentation

currency.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries are
mainly engaged in manufacturing and sales of various kinds of
power equipments and provision of power station engineering
services. The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries and
associates are set out in notes 49 and 17 respectively.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BE—FT—=F+-A=+—ALEE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

FESTTHER®

(a)

(b)

BEIEAHGE)

BRGNS EREME T L
ERTEAHHREER - WRAKE
RARBNE G R EREREL
AR R o pLEAKE AN
EFR R FE R 5| 2R 1 R B
RERE AT RIAE S FT IR 2 @R R
HBRZEBER - DEIINHIEES

MBRREREE

HE-_ZT—=F+-_A=1+—HLHF
EHERE MG mKR BB ARR T REM
EMNCIEEAIN SEDR: )b
AR AR S BB A R R R o

BATEERBERTINEK
REE) LA EEIIRIN - REY
BMERRAELRAERERFTEE

i

i3

+

— DERRIUBEFHNERMIA
(RIFE2() : &

—  TAESRIEAE(BEE2h) -

MBBROBRETEBTEMBREE
AIMRE  BRERBHEHEFER
REANEE  AF  WAERMSH
WEBE A - SR RRE o fhET
KA BRBRRIREBE &R M ZER
EEAEBRTEBAENEMBERM
e+ ELAE SRR HI BT E SRR
BAZGRANEERABRAENE
- BIRAERTREB BERNZF A -

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group and the Company.
Note 3 provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected
in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2013 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) and the
Group’s interests in associates.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
the following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair
value as explained in the accounting policies set out below:

— financial instruments classified as trading securities
(see note 2(g)), and

—  derivative financial instruments (see note 2(h)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in note 46.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values,

except that:

° a deferred tax asset or liability arising from the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in a business
combination and the potential tax effects of
temporary differences and carry forwards of an
acquiree that exist at the acquisition date or arise as
a result of the acquisition are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12, “Income

Taxes”,
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

(continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(c)

Business combinations (continued)

o assets or liabilities relating to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 19, “Employee Benefits",

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-
based payment arrangements of the Group entered
into to replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance with
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition

25 [URD BERZ Z 1] 5t date; and
2K
. BEE BT FREEESHR . assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
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for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5, Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
are measured in accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If,
after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’'s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c)

Business combinations (continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be
initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests
are measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on the
basis specified in another HKFRS.

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the
contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date
fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed
one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c)

Business combinations (continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of
the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how the
contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance
with HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement, or HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest
were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete.
Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the
measurement period (see above), and additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information
obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognised at that date.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c)

Business combinations (continued)
Merger accounting for common control combinations

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements items of the combining entities or
businesses in which the common control combination
occurs as if they had been combined from the date when
the combining entities or businesses first came under the
control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
consolidated using the existing book values from the
controlling party’s perspective. No amount is recognised in
respect of goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest in the
net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common
control combination, to the extent of the continuation of
the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss includes the
results of each of the combining entities or businesses
from the earliest date presented or since the date when
the combining entities or businesses first came under the
common control, where this is a shorter period, regardless
of the date of the common control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities or businesses
had been combined at the end of the previous reporting
period or when they first came under common control,

whichever is shorter.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of

impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and

the equity shareholders of the Company.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see note 2(g)) or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of investments in
associates (see note 2(e)) or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(m)), unless the investment
is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale).

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the
Company has significant influence, but not control or joint
control, over its management, including participation in the

financial and operating policy decisions.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(e)

Associates (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale). Under the
equity method, the investment is initially recorded at cost,
adjusted for any excess of the Group's share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter,
the investment is adjusted for the post-acquisition change
in the Group's share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment (see notes
2(m)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group's
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
whereas the Group's share of the post-acquisition post-tax
items of the investee's other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group's interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee.
For this purpose, the Group's interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group's long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's interest in the investee, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(e)

(f)

Associates (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in
a joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be

accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate, it is accounted for
as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former investee at the date when
significant influence is lost is recognised at fair value and
this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset.

In the Company's statement of financial position,
investments in associates and joint venture are stated at
cost less impairment losses (see note 2(m)), unless
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale) (see note 2(m)).

Goodwill

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for

impairment (see note 2(m)).

On disposal of the relevant cash generating unit, the
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in
the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(9)

Investments in debt and equity securities

The Group's and the Company's policies for investments in
debt and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries and associates, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated
at fair value, which is their transaction price unless it is
determined that the fair value at initial recognition differs
from the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced
by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset
or liability or based on a valuation technique that uses only
data from observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise
below. These investments are subsequently accounted for
as follows, depending on their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified as
current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not include
any dividends or interest earned on these investments as
these are recognised in accordance with the policies set
out in note 2(w)(v) and 2(w)(vi).

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the Company
have the positive ability and intention to hold to maturity
are classified as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-
maturity securities are stated at amortised cost less

impairment losses (see note 2(m)).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(9)

(h)

Investments in debt and equity securities (continued)

Investments in securities which do not fall into any of the
above categories are classified as available-for-sale
securities. At the end of each reporting period the fair value
is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value reserve.
As an exception to this, investments in equity securities
that do not have a quoted price in an active market for an
identical instrument and whose fair value cannot otherwise
be reliably measured are recognised in the statement of
financial position at cost less impairment losses (see note
2(m)). Dividend income from equity securities is recognised
in profit or loss in accordance with the policy set out in
note 2(w)(v).

When the investments are derecognised or impaired, the
cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is reclassified
to profit or loss. Investments are recognised/derecognised
on the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the
investments or they expire.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at
fair value. At the end of each reporting period, the fair value
is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair
value is recognised immediately in profit or loss, except
where the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting, in which case recognition of any resultant gain
or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged

(see note 2(ab)).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(i)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(l)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future use
and property that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment property.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses (see note 2(m)).
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
investment properties over their estimated useful lives and
after taking into account of their estimated residual value,
using the straight-line method. The accounting policy for
rental income from leasing of investment properties is set
out in note 2(w)(iii).

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of investment properties to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principle
useful lives used for this purpose are 30 years.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(i

Property, plant and equipment

[tems of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses (see note 2(m)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which
they are located, and an appropriate proportion of
production overheads and borrowing costs (see note 2(y)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit
or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

3.23%-6.47%
6.47%—-13.86%
10.78%-19.40%
16.17%-19.40%

Buildings

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and

its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(i)

(k)

M - BERRE(E)

ERIEBRERENKEMACE
BN - THR ARG A 2
RBEEBARK - BEERARER
BT BB TEABEKE - %%
AR BEARL - MAEZTIZRE
BEWE  BER&E2ERER -
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B R MR ERE B -

BREE (BERHN)
i) AERBZEREE

DREEELRAEAFHERZ
BIVEE  BRIEINENE
M RS R AT & RE
ERESIR (R 2m)
BEREAERFHNE
BORT ARER - R AIE RS
HIR D EN S ME R RS
A AR ES R ERE
REEANRR - 7 FUERA] &
RERER 2 BVEE 2K
R RHRERERIIER -

=R RS ENERERA
S5EI16F W B EGEEEA
FIRAEESY o

(i

(k)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Construction in progress comprises direct costs of
construction during the period of construction and
installation, which are carried at cost, less any identified
impairment losses. Capitalisation of these costs ceases
and the construction in progress is transferred to the
relevant class of property, plant and equipment when
substantially all of the activities necessary to prepare the
assets for their intended use are completed. No
depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress until it is substantially completed and ready for its
intended use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(i)  Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets, comprising patents and rights, with
finite useful lives that are acquired separately are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses (see note 2(m)).
Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated
useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Patents and rights with finite useful lives are
amortised on a straight-line basis over 5 to 15 years.
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(ii)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(k)

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill) (continued)

(ii)

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as

an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

— the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for

use or sale;

— the intention to complete the intangible asset
and use or sell it;

—  the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

—  how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

— the availability of adequate technical, financial
and other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the intangible
asset; and

—  the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its

development.

—
o
[de]

€10z Hoday [enuuy polwi Auedwo) ou108|3 uigleH



110

[ERASIEAUREESE Y-

B €L0Z

2.

Bt 75 3 3% MY & ()

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BE-T—=F+-A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

FESTHER®

(k)

B/ EE (BERM (E)

(ii)

(iii)

HERF R H ()
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(k)

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill) (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Research and development expenditure
(continued)

The amount initially recognised for internally-
generated intangible assets is the sum of the
expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria
listed above. Where no internally-generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are reported at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (see note 2(m)), on the same
basis as intangible assets that are acquired

separately.

Intangible assets acquired in a business

combination

Intangible assets that are acquired in a business
combination and are recognised separately from
goodwill are initially recognised at their fair value at
the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination are reported at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (see note 2(m)), on the same
basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.
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(k)
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(iv)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(k)

n

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill) (continued)

(iv) Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected from
use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of

transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines

that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific

asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a

payment or a series of payments. Such a determination is

made based on an evaluation of the substance of the

arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement

takes the legal form of a lease.

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as being
held under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases.

—
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

HEEE(E)

(ii)

REBEHERBEE

HAKREREREHERESE
EERE RXBEEEEQR
EEMEBEIFERERAR
BZBEE  FFAME  BFE
K - MR B ER IO R
BEMRK  RBEHEREA
B TERRABEAEHEM
HEERA LR EE - i
REEAREBMSEEMB ] -
AR 2 B EEF B -
B AR AR P SE 2(m) P& R
BEA R  HENRZBER
AREEHR ARD LR
B AEMAESRESEX

n

Leased assets (continued)

(ii)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair
value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments, of such
assets are included in property, plant and equipment
and the corresponding liabilities, net of finance
charges, are recorded as obligations under finance
leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which write
off the cost of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset,
as set out in note 2(j). Impairment losses are
accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policy as set out in note 2(m). Finance charges
implicit in the lease payments are charged to profit or
loss over the period of the leases so as to produce
an approximately constant periodic rate of charge on
the remaining balance of the obligations for each

accounting period.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

() Leased assets (continued)

(continued)
HEEE (B)
(i) HEHERHE (iii)
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Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over
the accounting periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in
the consolidated statement of financial position and
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease term except where the property is
classified as an investment property (see note 2(i)).

—
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(m) BERME (m)
(i) EEREZEFRERAME (i)
W E
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Impairment of assets

Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and other
current and non-current receivables that are stated at
cost or amortised cost or are classified as available-
for-sale securities are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about one or more of
the following loss events:

—  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

—  significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below

its cost.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(m)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables (continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is

determined and recognised as follows:

—  For investments in associates accounted for

under the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements (see note 2(e)), the
impairment loss is measured by comparing the
recoverable amount of the investment with its
carrying amount in accordance with note 2(m)
(ii). The impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount in
accordance with note 2(m)(ii).

—  For unquoted equity securities carried at cost,

the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset where the
effect of discounting is material. Impairment
losses for equity securities carried at cost are

not reversed.

—
—
ol

€10z Hoday [enuuy polwi Auedwo) ou108|3 uigleH



ENANERUR

B €L0Z

2.

Bt 75 3 3% MY & ()

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

FESTHER®

(m) BEREE)

HE-_Z—=F1+-A=+—RHILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
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Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables (continued)

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset's original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment is
made collectively where financial assets carried
at amortised cost share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively
are based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar to
the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior

years.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(m)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade receivables and
bills receivable, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the impairment
losses for doubtful debts are recorded using an
allowance account. When the Group is satisfied that
recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade receivables
and bills receivable directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly
are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may be
impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

—  prepaid lease payments;

— intangible assets;

— investment properties; and

— investments in subsidiaries and associates in
the Company'’s statement of financial position.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(m)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not yet available for use
and intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives,
the recoverable amount is estimated annually
whether or not there is any indication of impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

—  Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets
in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or
value in use (if determinable).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(m)

(n)

Impairment of assets (continued)
(i)  Impairment of other assets (continued)
—  Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(o)

(p)

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are contracts specifically negotiated
with a customer for the construction of an asset or a group
of assets, where the customer is able to specify the major
structural elements of the design. The accounting policy for
contract revenue is set out in note 2(w)(ii). When the
outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, contract costs are recognised as an expense by
reference to the state of completion of the contract at the
end of the reporting period. When it is probable that total
contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the
expected loss is recognised as an expense immediately.
When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Construction contracts in progress at the end of the
reporting period are recorded at the net amount of costs
incurred plus recognised profit less recognised losses and
progress billings, and are presented in the statement of
financial position as the “Amounts due from customers for
contract work"” (as an asset) or the “Amounts due to
customers for contract work” (as a liability), as applicable.
Progress billings not yet paid by the customers and
retention are included under “Trade receivables”. Amounts
received before the related work is performed are
presented as "Deposits received”. Provision is made for
foreseeable losses as soon as they are anticipated by
management.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 2(m)), except where the
receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties
without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the
receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(q)

(r)

(s)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 2(v)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated statement
of cash flows.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(t)

(u)

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans.

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of
tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(u)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from
the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will

reverse in the future.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(u)

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not

discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(u) Income tax (continued)

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

(v) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the "holder"”) for a loss the holder incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.
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(continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(v) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within other payables. The fair value
of financial guarantees issued at the time of issuance
is determined by reference to fees charged in an
arm’s length transaction for similar services, when
such information is obtainable, or is otherwise
estimated by reference to interest rate differentials,
by comparing the actual rates charged by lenders
when the guarantee is made available with the
estimated rates that lenders would have charged,
had the guarantees not been available, where reliable
estimates of such information can be made. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the
issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group's policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial
recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised in accordance with note 2(v)(iii) if and
when (i) it becomes probable that the holder of the
guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in other payables in respect of that guarantee
i.e. the amount initially recognised, less accumulated

amortisation.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(v) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Contingent liabilities assumed in business
combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination which are present obligations at the
date of acquisition are initially recognised at fair
value, provided the fair value can be reliably
measured. After their initial recognition at fair value,
such contingent liabilities are recognised at the
higher of the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation where appropriate, and the
amount that would be determined in accordance
with note 2(v)(iii). Contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination that cannot be reliably fair
valued or were not present obligations at the date of
acquisition are disclosed in accordance with note 2(v)
(iii).

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(w) Revenue
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Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the

economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue

and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue

is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i)

(ii)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at
the customers’ premises which is taken to be the
point in time when the customer has accepted the
goods and the related risks and rewards of
ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Contract revenue

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably:

— revenue from a fixed price contract is
recognised using the percentage of completion
method, measured by reference to the
percentage of contract costs incurred to date
to estimated total contract costs for the
contract.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot
be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to
the extent of contract costs incurred that it is
probable will be recoverable.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
WA (48) (w) Revenue (continued)
(iii) AREHEHEZUA (iii) Rental income from operating leases
e E W R S WA RE Rental income receivable under operating leases is
EFHMRENIRANY S recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
EERTER EEE—E&ES the periods covered by the lease term, except where
ERRERRERAEEEENS an alternative basis is more representative of the
RF B RIBRIN c LEFE pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
AT RSB S e 18 leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
mHRERASEWHEF AR recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
BERAK D - AAHESEH aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent
BRE Y 25T EARS N FER AU © rentals are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are earned.
(iv) RBERA (iv) Service income
RAE WA T IRIGIZ L AS RESR - Service income is recognised when services are
provided.
(v) EKE (v) Dividends
— JEMEBREIREKA —  Dividend income from unlisted investments is
A P& R U B FR TE 2 HE ) recognised when the shareholder’s right to
WEST B FERR o receive payment is established.
— A REZERBEBRAR —  Dividend income from listed investments is
ZEZREKRBIERE recognised when the share price of the
R o investment goes ex-dividend.
(vi) FIEYA (vi) Interest income

B A TR E LR IZ T
RIKTER o

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

—
N
[de]

€10z Hoday [enuuy polwi Auedwo) ou108|3 uigleH



ENANERUR

B €L0Z

2.

Bt 75 3 3% MY & ()

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BE—FT—=F+-A=+—ALEE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

FESTHER®

(w)

(x)

LONE Y
(vii) BRFH#EY

EANAEMBEARERE
Yo B BT 8 B B 1T 5% 48 B Bt
w2 AR RS - U R B B 7
MR AR - MR
AEBECDEERAX ZHBRZ
ERxELHMARGHRE
SR ERSWA - AR E/HA
SEEEKAZHEBRAINZE
ENRESETAER  HEgN
BMOFTERXZ T ARZEE
K AT AR N R R BRI o

IR

FANIINERHRR 5 ANEXK
B DINERHEZEREENAER
RBERRZERRE - [EHLRBR
BEPRER -

PASMNESIRIE R R ANETE 2 F BB E
RAEERRZE ZEXBE - SN
BHEAURABEIIRZIFEEE
EREE  ARZARBEFERY
ZEREITIE -

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(w)

(x)

Revenue (continued)
(vii) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as revenue in
profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset
and consequently are effectively recognised in profit
or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of
reduced depreciation expense.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair

value was measured.
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FESHBEER®

(y)

(2)

(CEN &N

NEXEBE EEHELRBEE
(ZEBEVSARBERNHEERFAE
BEMRSREE) BB

BERMEBZBEEZ R DA - Kt
ERAAIREEEHETIRMA -

BREEREERAS D ERK
FRZEERXESL BRREEE
REBEERARERERIHEMBA
B TEETTEIRMABE AL - 1
FREREERARTERERIHEN
WIRENBAR R D HE s THEP LR ERK
B ERRAEGEEHELER
&

)y
(@) HAHELBHREKBMTE
AT - RIBAR SRS B

Ry

() PEHIRAREHAER

(i) FAHAEEHRBEEAY

2%
(i) AAEEIAEEHR

AlCEEEEBAR -

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(y)

(2)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group's parent.

—
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FESHBEER®

(2) @A (&)

b) HEBMTEATES - B
BAREERERE T -

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

ERIA L Z R RAK B IR A A LD
BRIECHEER EEMA R ERERS

m

REREAEESR—
SEzZKEBEAISHR
IR = NG DA i)
BARRILERRE)

A
i)

XEBRS—EB W
BATHEERMN (E
EEKBZHBBATL
BERBME mMzs—&
B AZERZKE) -

MEERBER—F=77
ZREEH -
KERRE=-ERZ
REBH ME—ERE
ARZE=TERZH
BAL-
ZERBRRASER
HMEBEHWECERZE
B M 21 MR Z R IAE
EiE I

ZEBX @EMmE AL
Pk L R o

a)(i) T8 Pt A =+ A # 3%
I REEEATE N
AR EBCETEER
N=I

‘ﬂﬂfh}

0

MJ%

HEBZFEMKE -

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(z) Related parties (continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i

(ii)

(ifi)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of which the other
entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.



2.

S E  EANESC)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
HE—FT—=F+-A=+—ALEH
For the year ended 31 December 2013

FESTHER®

(ab)

DERIABRRFARENE S
THEWEER - EEHRREETAEE
%@?&ﬁ%%ﬂ$’il B|EB
REmETERD B RRIRF
ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ%’ﬁﬂ*ﬁ o

[ERIEWN:EE =53 % T Q@FJELA
WM BHRE 2
ﬁBﬂﬁ*ﬁMﬁ’]%&%@# fzﬁ( ' HEE‘EDD&
RIGHEE - £EIFUE - TPHAS
S E - o HEm SR E RSP

AR R EEREM I E E T E R
L BERIER - fi @B R ERAIL

BOEFA A EXREBHIZE - BIA] A
AOtETE -

BERER

AEBEEETTELIARBERS
MEMNENTA -

RERBEFMIGE Eﬁ%ﬁiﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁl,ﬁ
HWEHRANRE  ERERRE
BEAGEREETEEENZ SRR
—OFREERFE SR © ULIN - REHIFAH
FRIRFEERE  AEBSERT AR
HERERNRRABEMRENAR
EBEEXRSANES LRDREEIU
BB R 2R

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(aa)

(ab)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group's chief operating decision maker for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of,
the Group's various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

Hedging accounting
Cash flow hedges

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging
instruments for cash flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the entity
documents the relationship between the hedging
instruments and the hedged item, along with its risk
management objectives and its strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception
of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group
documents whether the hedging instruments is highly
effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows
of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BE—FT—=F+-A=+—ALEE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

FESTHER®

(ab) EHEF (B)

BEnER (E)

WMEBITESMIARIETRAERE
BREREENABREIERAE AL
MBAR S 2 RERIFEIBDAA L
KRR GWINERREE) - #H0T4ES
BTASHIEE2 AR EEMEET
EHNERBY - EEMEERR
FERBTEERFBETNERT R
5T o EfE A IEERR 3o AR
w A E R R o

HMABRARZR SN EREREHRHER
—HFEREENIGFTRAE - HE
BEREREEFRDE - BIIAZKIKE
TREEXBENTIRKAREMER
[ENi=R

WA BRARZNEREREHRER
—HEeREELTRAE  HEES
BRAEEESMARABRNATE
i ) XS 1B O [R) — Bk 2 B AR ()
INFERA BMA K ) B R ER
DEEEMHER

ERBREREMTTE - FR AT NI
REBPAMREES - HEBRETINH
EHIEAR S RAFZE RN HEE 2

FA—BXZRAREERENES

s Ak g8 o

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(ab) Hedging accounting (continued)

Cash flow hedges (continued)

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a
hedge of the variability in cash flows of a recognised asset
or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the
foreign currency risk of a committed future transaction, the
effective portion of any gains or losses on remeasurement
of the derivative financial instrument to fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the hedging reserve.
The ineffective portion of any gain or loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in
the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial
liability, the associated gain or loss is reclassified from
equity to be included in the initial cost or other carrying
amount of the non-financial asset or liability.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in
the recognition of a financial asset or a financial liability, the
associated gain or loss is reclassified from equity to profit
or loss in the same period or periods during which the
asset acquired or liability assumed affects profit or loss

(such as when interest income or expense is recognised).

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the
preceding two policy statements, the associated gain or
loss is reclassified from equity to profit or loss in the same
period or periods during which the hedged forecast

transaction affects profit or loss.
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FESHBEER®

(ab) EHEF (B)
BEnER (E)

ERBEMTAERITURHE &
LIESRITERE - AEBBIHEENES
ARERHREMNEIRZNEH
£ ERONRFESNEEEEA
HERZHERL - WRE EABER
TR - MBS ERRZ 5 T HET
RAARERBENEERSETNTNE
=M EE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(ab) Hedging accounting (continued)
Cash flow hedges (continued)

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated
or exercised, or the entity revokes designation of the
hedge relationship but the hedged forecast transaction is
still expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss at that
point remains in equity until the transaction occurs and it is
recognised in accordance with the above policy. If the
hedged transaction is no longer expected to take place, the
cumulative unrealised gain or loss is reclassified from

equity to profit or loss immediately.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

PE 3R] R ARG 5T & B B R 3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
EEA(HFEMBREER]) HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
RARZEFIEHBERZEHE STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND MERGER
at ACCOUNTING FOR COMMON CONTROL

COMBINATION
el REIET B BN ERE%ER New and revised HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA.

RAEE  AREREAUTHESS:
B BB 2 5T AR AT B AR R T
%) -

FEMBHRELD FAFBREEL
(&3]) —ETNEER

—E-—FEE Amendments to HKAS 1

FEs Comprehensive Income

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2009-2011 Cycle
Presentation of Items of Other

EEGEA
F15%(B5T)

I EMEEKERE

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities
Consolidated Financial Statements,

EERBREEN BE - AHEREER
F75(EET) TRAE

ERMBREED SAUMBHRR - AEATH
F105%  BAERE REOEBESIR

HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 Joint Arrangements and
Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities: Transition Guidance

REERENSN T BEES HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

BT RE2ER HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

£125% (B3FT) HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
EEVBWELR  SREMBERE Entities

FE105 HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
ERMBMEEN  AELH HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011) Employee Benefits

F115 HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) Separate Financial Statements
BEEMBRELD HEMEBER RE HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011) Investments in Associates and

F125% Joint Ventures
ERMBREEN  AABETE HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production

F135% Phase of a Surface Mine

BB ERE 195

(RZ2——53])

BRGHERE 275

(R=T——5&5])

B G ERIE 285

EEREH

ERPHHRE

REEREIREE

(M=T——F7]) LEZERE
& (BERMGHRE BRABZEERERZ
ZEZEg)-BE HRKA

205
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FE R ¥ a] R RAER] & B B 3R
HEA ([ HEMEREED )
FHEEFEHBERZEHE
EEC))

M RBETERMBREER(E)

ARER B0 B AN & 5t R PR A 1 R A
M2 HA BB EHMEER -

BTSN - AR E A E AR AT AR
ERTBERYBRE LD BAARERAN
FERBEFE2MBEERMAL, &L
ZEGEVBREMBEBREETREREAN

2 488
A o

ERNBRE RN —BENEE B ——
RN EERE

RNAMZ FESCEBRRIRER ZER]
HERIMHMER R RBZ ERER - XA
BRIER] T BEA G ERF1HRCEFTA
BE - EREPRA AT ERERMES
BISEH D BHRORBIRRAERTZ5
ERBREATER  HAZIBIME
AR - BRER]TBREB27 BN
BIRAKRKRAZINERBRABMEZR

T o

HRAEERS  KRZEGHARZEBLS
BT EMEN SN BMAREBREKN
TE HERLEYBRRFEI_-F
——F—A—-BZBINBARRAEK -

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND MERGER
ACCOUNTING FOR COMMON CONTROL
COMBINATION (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs (continued)

The Group has not applied any new HKFRS that is not yet
effective for the current accounting period.

Except as described below, the application of other new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group's financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

This cycle of annual improvements contains amendments to five
standards with consequential amendments to other standards
and interpretations. Among them, HKAS 1 has been amended to
clarify that an opening statement of financial position is required
only when a retrospective application of an accounting policy, a
retrospective restatement or a reclassification has a material
effect on the information presented in the opening statement of
financial position. The amendments also remove the requirement
to present related notes to the opening statement of financial
position when such statement is presented.

Since the group considers that the restatement resulting from
the business combination of company under common control
and has a material impact on the opening financial position, an
additional statement of financial position as at 1 January 2012
has been presented in these financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

PE 3R] R ARG 5T & B B R
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BEBREFENE1R (B 25 EMEEE
W#=EE |
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MEJNHMEEKEEER 273 - I
$‘$IE BENZEM BRI AERIER
BRaExR] EEkEMEEkER] -

EBMBREERE 105 [FEMHRRER]

EREMBMEERNFE 107K A BRI
BMBHRRZBAGHEFE 2757 [ A B
MBHRENEBYBEHRER AREL (BR
RRZEG)RBRASELRIAH —F
TRERER] ZHRE o ZERSIAE 2]
BIEA - UEERREQARES TIAA G
RIE TERTAHEREDAREHIR
KRERQR  2EBRENREBHMETE
BBz E sk RN LERENTE
ZEOHEEOEESN -

BRRAS A ERELRIE 105 - A%
EEENEHETS SR REEHRKRER
Al GEBE - RARBEERTSHE X
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Hih EEEBAMEST M EREREE
BAE R ©

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND MERGER
ACCOUNTING FOR COMMON CONTROL
COMBINATION (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other

Comprehensive Income

The amendments require entities to present separately the items
of other comprehensive income that would be reclassified to
profit or loss in the future if certain conditions are met from those
that would never be reclassified to profit or loss. The presentation
of other comprehensive income in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in these financial
statements has been modified accordingly. In addition, the Group
has chosen to use the new titles “statement of profit or loss”
and “statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income" as introduced by the amendments in these financial

statements.

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27 Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements relating to the preparation of
consolidated financial statements and HK-SIC 12 Consolidation
— Special Purpose Entities. It introduces a single control model
to determine whether an investee should be consolidated, by
focusing on whether the entity has power over the investee,
exposure or rights to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and the ability to use its power to affect the amount

of those returns.

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 10, the Group has changed
its accounting policy with respect to determining whether it has
control over an investee. The adoption does not change any of
the control conclusions reached by the Group in respect of its

involvement with other entities as at 1 January 2013.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND MERGER
ACCOUNTING FOR COMMON CONTROL
COMBINATION (continued)

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HKFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all the disclosure
requirements relevant to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and unconsolidated structured entities.
The disclosures required by HKFRS 12 are generally more
extensive than those previously required by the respective
standards. To the extent that the requirements are applicable to
the Group, the Group has provided those disclosures in notes 17
and 49.

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual HKFRSs with a
single source of fair value measurement guidance. HKFRS 13
also contains extensive disclosure requirements about fair value
measurements for both financial instruments and non-financial
instruments. To the extent that the requirements are applicable
to the Group, the Group has provided those disclosures in note
39.

Merger accounting for common control combination

HE Finance Company Limited (“Finance Company”) was
established in April 2010 with a registered capital of
RMB300,000,000, of which the Group contributed
RMB135,000,000, representing an equity interest of 45% in
Finance Company.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND MERGER
ACCOUNTING FOR COMMON CONTROL
COMBINATION (continued)

Merger accounting for common control combination

(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group acquired
42% of the equity interest in Finance Company held by its
ultimate holding company, Harbin Electric Corporation (“HE
Corporation”) and 4% of the equity interest in Finance Company
held by its fellow subsidiary, Jiamusi Electric Machine Company
Limited, at a cash consideration of RMB149,890,000. Upon
completion of the acquisition, the Group held 91% equity interest
in Finance Company and HE Corporation held the remaining 9%
equity interest in Finance Company. The Group has also
contributed to Finance Company in proportion to its respective
shareholdings thereby increasing the registered capital of Finance
Company from RMB300,000,000 to RMB1.5 billion.

The Group's acquisition is considered as business combination
involving entities under common control and has been accounted
for using merger accounting method, based on the Accounting
Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting for Common Control
Combinations” issued by the HKICPA, for the year ended 31
December 2013. Under the principles of merger accounting, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared as if
Finance Company has been a subsidiary of the Group since its
formation by HE Corporation in April 2010. As a result, the
comparative consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
ended 31 December 2012 and consolidated statement of
financial position as at 1 January 2012 and 31 December 2012
have therefore been restated, in order to include the results of
the combining entities since the date of which first come under

common control.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
HE—FT—=F+-A=+—ALEH
For the year ended 31 December 2013

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND MERGER

ACCOUNTING FOR COMMON CONTROL

COMBINATION (continued)

Merger accounting for common control combination
(continued)

The effects of the combination of the Finance Company on the
Group’s consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2012 by line items are as follows:

affestE
7l
Merger
accounting
31/12/2012 restatement 31/12/2012
ARBT T ARBT T ARET T
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(%RIZ25) € ==x7))
(previously
reported) (restated)
WA Revenue 25,995,186 - 25,995,186
BN Cost of sales (20,414,447) - (20,414,447)
EF Gross profit 5,580,739 - 5,580,739
HEMA R FEE Other revenue and net loss 451,753 49,283 501,036
EEER Distribution expenses (632,373) (12,578) (644,951)
EREH Administrative expenses (3,320,872) (95) (3,320,967)
Hth¥Bs Other operating expenses (330,694) 8) (330,702)
B Finance costs (56,767) 328 (56,439)
i3 d=NG| Share of profits less
AR 1B losses of associates 54,347 (12,237) 42,110
B B B s A Profit before taxation 1,746,133 24,693 1,770,826
HiIa Income tax (404,551) (9,554) (414,105)
NEEmF Profit for the year 1,341,582 15,139 1,356,721
BRI Attributable to:
EAN/NCIE S EST DN Equity shareholders of the Company 1,408,255 12,692 1,420,947
FEPERR Non-controlling interests (66,673) 2,447 (64,226)
1,341,582 15,139 1,356,721
BRER Earnings per share
AR RMB AERH#ERMB AR®RVB
— EARREE — Basic and diluted 102.3% cents 0.9%cents 103.2% cents
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
HE—2-=Ff-A=f—ALHFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

FE R ¥ a] R RAER] & B B 3R
HEA ([ HEMEREED )
FHEEFEHBERZEHE
EEC))

HEZEHEHERZEHE (BE)
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND MERGER
ACCOUNTING FOR COMMON CONTROL

COMBINATION (continued)

Merger accounting for common control combination

(continued)

The effects of the combination of the Finance Company on the

Group's consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2012 by

line items are as follows:

AOtERE
=7
Merger
accounting
31/12/2012 restatement 31/12/2012
AREFIT ARBEFTT AREEF T
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(FRI2%) (e&E51)
(previously
reported) (restated)
AL R F Profit for the year 1,341,682 15,139 1,356,721
EEHMZEWE Other comprehensive income/(loss)
(E8)  BEFER for the year, net of income tax
HEAEFHAEELEE  Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
REREEH Cash flow hedges:
REEFERE Gains arising during the year 48,093 - 48,093
W FEABEZ WamERH Less: Reclassification adjustments for
DI gains to profit or loss (12,781) - (12,781)
Hign sy EIEE Income tax relating to items that
KB REFTIS may be reclassified subsequently (5,297) - (5,297)
30,015 - 30,015
AEEZHEIRGZAE Total comprehensive income
for the year 1,371,597 15,139 1,386,736
BRI Attributable to:
PAYNSI L SGESEEDN Equity shareholders of the Company 1,438,270 12,692 1,450,962
FEIZ R i Non-controlling interests (66,673) 2,447 (64,226)
1,371,597 15,139 1,386,736
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND MERGER
ACCOUNTING FOR COMMON CONTROL
COMBINATION (continued)

Merger accounting for common control combination

(continued)

The effects of the combination of the Finance Company on the

Group's consolidated statement of financial position as at 1 January

2012 and 31 December 2012 by line items are as follows:

At ELi
B EES S
Merger Merger
accounting accounting
1/1/2012 restatement 1/1/2012 31/12/2012 restatement 31/12/2012
ARETT AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(%AIZ5) (z&5) (SLRI251) (BE7)
(previously (previously
reported) (restated) reported) (restated)
kRBEE Non-current assets
B Investment properties 4,810 - 4,810 4,629 - 4,629
ME - BB K& Property, plant and
equipment 5,799,944 4526 5,804,470 6,412,038 4,094 6,416,132
B EER Prepaid lease payments 433,000 - 433,000 420,946 - 420,946
EBAE Intangible assets 261,732 - 261,732 233,393 - 233,393
EIERIEEE Deferred tax assets 277,366 - 277,366 288,542 - 288,542
REERRIZIRE Interests in associates 546,899 (147,287) 399,612 583,840 (159,524) 424,316
HAIERB B E Other non-current assets 96,637 - 96,637 109,637 - 109,637
HitemEE Other financial assets 236,085 - 236,085 248,327 - 248,327
7,656,473 (142,761) 7,513,712 8,301,352 (155,430) 8,145,922
REBEE Current assets
TE Inventories 11,616,296 - 11,616,296 12,356,211 - 12,356,211
FE U AR R Trade receivables 12,918,135 - 12,918,135 15,286,812 - 15,286,812
EREE Bills receivable 1,052,526 - 1,052,526 1,278,348 - 1,278,348
ARIREE I E R Discounted bills and loans
receivable - 7,406 7,406 - 22,536 22,536
HbEW R - 424  Other receivables,
FEfRIA deposits and
prepayments 4,484,066 65 4,484,131 4,595,063 39 4,595,102
T b &R Prepaid lease payments 11,922 - 11,922 12,300 - 12,300
EiEE REUGK Amounts due from
customers for contract
work 1,849,593 - 1,849,593 2,079,367 - 2,079,367
[ EENIENG] Amounts due from fellow
B subsidiaries 59,929 - 59,929 111,832 - 111,832
Hib BB E Other financial assets 92,641 - 92,641 15,422 - 15,422
RS MESH Trading securities 2,001,530 - 2,001,530 1,601,800 - 1,601,800
ZRR IR E R Restricted and
RITIFR pledged bank deposits 133,661 25,734 159,395 346,077 - 346,077
FRIRITER Deposits with central bank - 266,074 266,074 - 133,645 133,645
RITIFR Bank deposits 247,404 (200,000) 47,404 472,913 - 472,913
ReERREEED Cash and cash equivalents 8,271,875 564,483 8,836,358 8,174,912 313,250 8,488,162
42,739,578 663,762 43,403,340 46,331,057 469,470 46,800,527

N
~
)

€10z Hoday [enuuy polwi Auedwo) ou108|3 uigleH



£

ENANERUR

B €L0Z

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

i 3

Tam

[0

ﬂﬁmﬁ

—~
e
I

5 75 R 2R Y & )

HE-_Z—=F1+-A=+—RHILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

HEEHEERZEsET (E)

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND MERGER

ACCOUNTING FOR COMMON CONTROL
COMBINATION (continued)

Merger accounting for common control combination

(continued)

Ak A
gihEEs R
Merger Merger
accounting accounting
1/1/2012 restatement 1/1/2012 31/12/2012 restatement 31/12/2012
ARBTT ARBTT AEBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
(5eAi251) (55) (A1 231) (E3)
(previously (previously
reported) (restated) reported) (restated)
ﬁibﬁﬁ Current liabilities
BiEAFEAR Amounts due to customers for
~ contract work 1,413,194 - 1,413,194 1,563,378 - 1,563,378
PTESBIA Derivative financial instruments 3,730 - 3,730 - - -
JEF R Trade payables 14,646,188 1,416 14,647,604 17,260,173 698 17,260,871
ES: Bills payable 1,900,795 - 1,900,795 3,565,642 - 3,555,642
HENR - B ER Other payables, accruals and
LG provisions 2,033,798 39,449 2,073,247 1,655,720 28,731 1,684,451
Biike Deposits received 7,483,656 - 7,483,656 7,238,055 - 7,238,055
ENRZMBARFE Amounts due to fellow
subsidiaries 36,266 - 36,266 73,953 (24,960) 48,993
RIEBRDAIFE Advance from holding company 2,785 - 2,785 400,478 - 400,478
EPER Customer deposits - 288,165 288,165 - 155,550 155,550
BR—FREEZER Borrowings — due within
s one year 581,623 - 581,623 1,151,595 (53,000) 1,098,595
[ERH 2 B Tax payables 920,618 5,127 925,745 901,855 5,038 906,893
BER—FAEEZRBE Obligation under finance lease
HERE — due within one year - - - 36,988 - 36,933
29,022,653 334,157 29,356,810 33,837,837 112,057 33,949,894
REBEEFE Net current assets 13,716,925 329,605 14,046,530 12,493,220 357,413 12,850,633
HRFBHEBANEEE  Total assets less current
liabilities 21,373,398 186,844 21,560,242 20,794,572 201,983 20,996,555
FRBAE Non-current liabilities
TTESBIA Derivative financial instruments 28,941 - 28,941 - - -
BliRe Deposits received 6,337,141 - 6,337,141 4,655,159 - 4,655,159
RERAF T Advance from holding company 1,169,838 - 1,169,838 1,357,108 - 1,357,108
BR—FRERIER Borrowings — due after one year 1,314,244 - 1,314,244 981,317 - 981,317
BR—FHRERZHE Obligation under finance lease
THEAE — due after one year - - 136,391 - 136,391
EEFEAE Deferred tax liabilities - - - 396 - 396
8,850,164 - 8,850,164 7,130,371 - 7,130,371
EERE NET ASSETS 12,523,234 186,844 12,710,078 13,664,201 201,983 13,866,184
BRARRE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
R Share capital 1,376,806 - 1,376,806 1,376,806 - 1,376,806
f# Reserves 9,224,814 157,386 9,382,200 10,477,111 170,078 10,647,189
$ AR B AR Total equity attributable to equity
BiEn shareholders of the Company 10,601,620 157,386 10,759,006 11,853,917 170,078 12,023,995
R Non-controlling interests 1,921,614 29,458 1,951,072 1,810,284 31,905 1,842,189
AR TOTAL EQUITY 12,523,234 186,844 12,710,078 13,664,201 201,983 13,866,184
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND MERGER
ACCOUNTING FOR COMMON CONTROL
COMBINATION (continued)

Merger accounting for common control combination

(continued)

The effects of the combination of the Finance Company on the

Group's consolidated equity as at 1 January 2012 and 31

December 2012 by line items are as follows:

At At

B EES EEapt]

Merger Merger

accountmg accoummg
11/2012  restatement 1/1/2012 31/12/2012  restatement 31/12/2012
ARETT AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(SERTZ51) €27 (SLRI251) (BE7)

(previously (previously

reported) (restated) reported) (restated)
&N Share capital 1,376,806 - 1,376,806 1,376,806 - 1,376,806
BRAHE (B Share premium 1,980,295 - 1,980,295 1,980,295 - 1,980,295
JETE B ANE Statutory capital reserve 703,229 - 703,229 703,229 - 703,229
EERBBAES Statutory surplus reserve 596,936 - 596,936 621,998 - 621,998
HAb Other reserves 60,131 138,000 198,131 66,911 138,000 204,911
EHEE Hedging reserve (27,770) - (27,770) 2,245 - 2,245
REB & F Retained profits 5,911,993 19,386 5,931,379 7,102,433 32,078 7,134,511
IR Non-controlling interests 1,921,614 29,458 1,951,072 1,810,284 31,905 1,842,189
12,523,234 186,844 12,710,078 13,664,201 201,983 13,866,184
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
HE—2-=Ff-A=f—ALHFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

L/ON 4.

WA (RIS B2 X8) AR ERF A
EmETEFPRAEREHRE ZEWRE
WEBENBRRARRER ZFE A%

REVENUE

Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents the

amounts received and receivable for goods sold and services

rendered by the Group to customers during the year, net of taxes

BERNZBRADTHOT and sales returns, and an analysis of the Group's revenue for the
year as follows:

2013 2012

AR¥T T ARET T

RMB’000 RMB'000

HE SR Sales of goods 17,043,671 21,613,824

BEARIWA Revenue from construction contracts 3,457,034 4,381,362

20,500,705 25,995,186

HE_Z—=F+-A=+—HLFE"
MEZFHEALEEETHRZEAEERE
BEBWANI0% KA F(ZFE——F:
) o

For the year ended 31 December 2013, there was no customer

with whom transactions have 10% or more of the Group's

revenue (2012: nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

5. OTHER REVENUE AND NET LOSS

2013 2012
ARBT ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
(ge&:7)
(restated)
Hiblw A Other revenue
BAEZEBESFEFSIA Interest income from held-to-maturity bonds 19,504 12,242
RIT R E A F) U A Bank and other interest income 180,931 136,533
i YNCIE Finance company:
RERITREMI B 2 Interest income from banks and
FEWA other financial institutions 99,369 82,556
ARERREWER 2 Interest income on discounted bills and
FBUA loans receivables 1,459 1,310
AR BEFAEBZZEHMEEY  Total interest income on financial assets not
FEV SN N at fair value through profit or loss 301,263 232,641
fHEWA Compensation income 1,525 401
R MEHZRBIA Dividend income from trading securities 51,800 44,000
FHEMREAZ Dividend income from available-for-sale
& S A investments 2,331 769
A BT ARG (AT PRC government subsidies (note i) 139,632 410,516
LU A Rental income 4,552 7,075
HabUg A Other income 59,862 19,348
560,965 714,750
HBR A (Ei8) Other net income/(loss)
HEME - BE REE Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property,
Flas (E518) plant and equipment 3,771 (2,774)
BRI E Fm A Net profit from sale of scrap materials
and others - 1,342
HEMTB ARk (FisE41) Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 41) - 2,194
HER S EES (FE) (Loss) on disposal of trading securities - (5,717)
HEFHEERE NS Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
investments 5,216 3,020
S E A R Gain on disposal of associate 2,123 -
TEERKHEZTESMTAE Y Fair value gains on derivative financial
DA EERE instruments not qualifying as hedges 12,930 18,535
MTESBTARARBEZE Fair value changes on derivative financial
—Ren=2EH(ERAEHRFEE) instruments — cash flow hedge (transfer
from hedging reserve) - 12,781
T HEFEHEARBEEE Fair value losses on trading securities (121,660) (243,095)
(97,620) (213,714)
463,345 501,036
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
Be—Z2—=F+-_A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

HWARFREER @ 5. OTHER REVENUE AND NET LOSS (continued)
MIEEG) : PREBAMMS AT : Note (i): Breakdown of PRC government subsidies is as follow:
2013 2012
AR®T T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
g il N Income of financial subsidies 82,363 375,591
T FE L Research subsidies 34,638 16,586
Hith Others 22,631 18,339
139,632 410,516
BR#5 A s A 6. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
BRALADAEFIACIIBR (FFA) AT B IE - Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
2013 2012
ARET ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
€==x7))
(restated)
(a) BIHEXZH (a) Finance costs
ﬁETT&ﬁ’rﬁlfﬁ?ﬁ’\ﬂ g Interest on bank and other borrowings:
— BRAEFRE Ei — wholly repayable within five years 96,744 52,041

— éﬁﬁ’t‘ﬂi@i%*ﬁ@ﬁ — not wholly repayable within five years - 480
R Y/NC] Finance Company:

@)57(_ K2 B Interest expense on customer deposits 1,354 1,354
NEES 2T E Interest on corporate bond 120,867 -
MEREE N AEREER Finance charges on obligation under

finance lease 9,513 9,079
FLARARBEFABRZ Total interest expenses on financial
TRAEAN ST liabilities not at fair value through
profit or loss 228,478 62,954
B REEIRRERNEZ Less: interest expense capitalised
FEZH into construction in progress - (6,515)
228,478 56,439

RZE—ZF BREABEFE
6.31% BAAL °

Borrowing costs had been capitalised at a rate of 6.31% per

annum in 2012.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
HE—FT—=F+-A=+—ALEH
For the year ended 31 December 2013

6. BRBADERFR (90

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

2013 2012
ARET AREBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
(ggE:5)
(restated)
(b) BT (b) Staff costs*
BEIRA(BREENEZHS) Staff costs including directors’ and
(PfF5E8) supervisors’ emoluments (note 8) 1,692,556 1,653,082
RIRAEFET B HER Post-employment benefit scheme
contributions 398,357 333,542
B THKA Total staff costs 2,090,913 1,986,624
(c) HfEB (c) Otheritems
RIRESE Allowance for doubtful debts 486,258 766,307
Hth e W RORE Impairment of other receivables 15,471 -
FEEE Allowance for inventories 156,751 34,531
TEfT T Hh AR & R e Amortisation of prepaid lease payments* 13,186 12,301
B EEME Amortisation of intangible assets* 27,575 29,292
T2 ELRD B Auditors’ remuneration 3,110 2,915
FERA Cost of inventories* 16,179,823 20,414,447
WEMETE Depreciation for investment properties* 181 181
ME - BERSETE Depreciation for property, plant and
equipment? 666,407 591,496
P& 5 F 18R Net foreign exchange loss 60,826 6,563
RERBE RO Reversal of allowance for doubtful debts - (3,234)
Iz E R Research and development expenses 350,373 362,092

FEXRNBIEERE TRA -« 78 K
> HA AR 1,782,343,000 7T (=
T-ZF(EEYN): AR
1,669,265,0007T) * B EITEA L
MBI EBRESN 6L 2 F
T o

# Cost of inventories includes RMB1,782,343,000 (2012
(restated): RMB1,669,265,000) relating to staff costs,
depreciation and amortisation expenses, which amount is also

included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately

above or in note 6(b) for each of these types of expenses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
HE—2-=Ff-A=f—ALHFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

HEBBRRZFIBH 7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(a) #HEBEFIRZBIEE: (a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
represents:
2013 2012
AR®T R AREBTFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
(&%)
(restated)
B ER I8 Current tax
PRI EETSH PRC Enterprise Income Tax
— RNEEEE — provision for the year 151,754 391,304
— UEFEREDE — under-provision in respect
of prior years 9,158 39,379
160,912 430,683
EEBE Deferred tax
T EREE KM Origination and reversal of temporary
(M47E15) differences (note 15) (8,424) (16,578)
152,488 414,105

RZZENF+—AZ+—8 KA
BN RE AR E - RER=
TTELF= A+ EREMZREME
Fs8E - ARARI=ZE—F+A
THEABZ=FRZX15%MEE
B -

REBEBRELEFBERARZEZ15% 2
RGBS - AR E
Y ELfth B /2B 2 B Z8 L P RR i
FRE25% (—Z— —4F : 25%) B4
Bl EATISHL o

On 21 November 2008, the Company was named as one
of the High and New Technology Enterprise (S &l 2).
According to the PRC Law on Enterprise Income Tax

promulgated on 16 March 2007, the Company is entitled to

a concessionary rate of enterprise income tax at 15% over

3 years, beginning on 17 October 2011.

Except for certain subsidiaries which are subject to an

enterprise income tax rate of 15%, other subsidiaries

located in the PRC are subject to the PRC enterprise

income tax at a rate of 25% (2012: 25%) on its assessable

profits.



7.

S E  EANESC)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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T—HLEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

REBERZAES

(b)

(c)

BRERARERFEZREXHREE
MzERMT

7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(b)

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting
profit at applicable tax rates:

2013 2012
AR%T T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
(&)
(restated)
B A A g A Profit before taxation 778,094 1,770,826
BEEMEFTE A Tax at statutory tax rate 194,524 442,707
HEERNBER X Lower tax rate for specific concessions (75,456) (180,922)
FEAG &R R m AR Es 18 Tax effect of share of profits less losses
HRBHTE of associates (4,347) (8,152)
TNERBRAE RGN E Tax effect of non-taxable income (72,291) (127,993)
PAFIF S B SR 2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 59,964 166,592
B A AR R IEEE Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses
HEBHEE not previously recognised (21,952) (44,010)
AAER AT INT E R =2 TS Tax effect of deductible temporary
V& differences not recognised 62,888 126,504
BEFERETRE Under-provision in prior years 9,158 39,379
EERMIEBES N Actual tax expense 152,488 414,105

BEERBSER ST NF+— A
7~ A 24 2 BIHE 4 [2008] 28 897 57C 78
RPEERMEERARIIHBRIEERDE
ERFIRERERMRBEEMER
FEMENBRN)  FRERMER
BONHBEEREERRRE T
NFHABEFERSF  EIZ10%
BT ER MR BBERER - Bt -
RNAREPIEINHRIEE R ERFIR
RZZENFRABRFERSE 1§
#10% M ERINRBEERMEH -

(c)

According to Circular Guoshuihan [2008] No. 897 “Notice
on the issue about withholding Enterprise Income Tax on
the dividends paid by Chinese resident enterprises to
overseas non-resident enterprises H-share holders” issued
by State Administration of Taxation on 6 November 2008,
where a Chinese resident enterprise pays dividends for the
year of 2008 or any year thereafter to its H-share holders
which are overseas non-resident enterprises, it shall
withhold the enterprise income tax on the basis of 10% of
the dividends.

Company would withhold the enterprise income tax with

In accordance with this circular, the

tax rate of 10% when it pays dividends for the year of 2008
or any year thereafter to its overseas non-resident

enterprise H-shares holders.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
HE—2-=Ff-A=f—ALHFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

EERESHMH

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
REMUNERATION

RE(BBMERIMBERRAES LHR
Ay ([ LA RBEB R RGBS 161 15
BEAFEEEREFEHMMT -

Directors' and supervisors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and

Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as

follows:
BREF
I4H BE 3
Hit1%EF  Contributions
Salaries  to retirement
e and other benefits k]
Fees benefits schemes Total
AR¥TR AR¥TR AR®ETR AR®TR
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
—E-=F 2013
HTES Executive directors
REFELE Mr. Wu Wei-zhang - 684 141 825
kD Mr. Shang Zhong-fu - 594 127 721
RABEE(RZZ—=F M. Zhang Yingdian (appointed as
—AEBEZEARENRT a non-executive director on
S WR-T-=F 5 January 2013 and re-designated as
BATEHATAHITES)  anexecutive director on 10 May 2013) - 633 151 784
RUEEE(R=F—=ZF  Mr. Song Shi-qi (appointed as
—ARHEZRERIERNT a non-executive director on
BE IR =F 5 January 2013 and re-designated as
TA+THBTAHRITEE)  anexecutive director on 10 May 2013) - 683 151 834
- 2,594 570 3,164

FETES Non-executive directors
ERBEE Mr. Gong Jing-kun
PERE Mr. Zou Lei
BfEEA(R=F—=%  Mr. Duan Hongwi (resigned on
—AEREHE) 5 January 2013)

REREE(RZZT—=%  Mr. Zhang Ying-jian (appointed as
—RREBREZERINT a non-executive director on
BE WHR_Z-=F 5 January 2013 and re-designated as
HTATBHATAHITESE)  anexecutive director on 10 May 2013)
RUEHES (R-F—=%  Mr. Song Shi-i (appointed as
— AR BREZERFERT a non-executive director on
X UMR-E-—=F 5 January 2013 and re-designated as
TATHHATEANTESE)  anexecutive director on 10 May 2013)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BE_Z- =F+_A=t+ALLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

BEEREEFM = 8. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
REMUNERATION (continued)
BB
i R
HEH  Contributions
Salaries  to retirement
and other benefits k]
benefits schemes Total
AR®TR ARETR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BUFHTES Independent non-executive directors
REELE Mr. Sun Chang-ji - - -
BRELE(M-F—=% M FanFuchun
NAZTABEZRD) (appointed on 26 June 2013) - - -
Tors Mr. Yu Bo - - -
BRmEE Mr. Jia Cheng-bing - - -
EBERAE Mr. Liu Deng-ging - - -
THEZL(MZE—=%  Ms.LiHejun (resigned on
—AREEE) 5 January 2013) - - -
Ex Supervisors
Rt xE Mr. Chen Guang 244 31 275
BiAREAE Mr. Bai Shao-tong - - -
SEEE(R-ZE—=%  Mr. Gao Xu-guang (resigned on
—BRBEHE) 5 January 2013) - - -
EHELT Ms. Lu Chun-lian 347 22 369
HmREE Mr. Xu-Er-ming - - -
591 53 644
3,185 623 3,808
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BE_Z-—=6+"A=+—HItEE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

8. EENEEHM» 8. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
REMUNERATION (continued)

RIRARF

154 TEH SHEIER

HEH  Contributions

E? Salaries  to retirement
% we and other benefits mE
i Fees benefits schemes Total
3 ARBTT ARBTT AR®TT AREFR
E;? RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ot
< —E—-F 2012
D
o BITES Executive directors
N REELE Mr. Wu Wei-zhang - 641 141 782
P [k Ep ot Mr. Shang Zhong-fu - 573 126 699
"
] - 1,214 267 1,481
FHTES Non-executive directors
BEmELE Mr. Gong Jing-kun - - - _
Bk Mr. Zou Lei - - - _
Btz E Mr. Duan Hong-yi
(R=—E—=%—A (resigned on 5 January 2013)
T AET) - - - -
BYkHTES Independent non-executive directors
BEELE Mr. Sun Changsji - - - _
FRERT Ms. Li He4un
(R=E—=F—A (resigned on 5 January 2013)
A HET) - - - _
FakE Mr. Yu Bo - - - _
B E Mr. Jia Cheng-bing - - - _
FEERE Mr. Liu Deng-ging - - - _
EX Supervisors
PR S Mr. Chen Guang - 243 44 287
FTEREE Mr. Wang Zhi-sen (resigned on
(R=ZB——%7A 17 May 2012)
T HET) - - - -
BABIR L4 Mr. Bai Shao-tong (appointed on
(R=Z—=%%A 17 May 2012)
TLHEZT) - - - -
BB E Mr. Gao Xu-guang
(M=Z—=%—A (resigned on 5 January 2013)
T REE) - 273 46 319
EEELL Ms. Lu Chun-lian . 316 66 382
RZBREE Mr. Xu-Er-ming - - - -
- 832 156 988

2,046 423 2,469
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
HE—FT—=F+-A=+—ALEH
For the year ended 31 December 2013

BEEREEFM =

AEE BEEFTXEETHEXRERE
EAHH AEELBAARAEERE
EXNEHEB - ERESMASMBEAEE
Z BB SR RS

bEARRHMALS  Hp2R(=F—=
FNR)MB/ARARNES - HFM L
WEE - HM3B(ZZE—ZF 1 48) AW
FrEfeEmT

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
REMUNERATION (continued)

During the year, no director or supervisor has waived or agreed
to waive any emolument and no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the directors or supervisors of the Company as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office.

Of the b individuals with the highest emoluments, 2 (2012: 1) is
also director of the Company whose emoluments are disclosed
above. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the
remaining 3 (2012: 4) individuals are as follows:

2013 2012

AR%F T AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

T & EHEAAEF] Salaries and other benefits 2,187 2,445
RO FIET EIE R Contributions to post-employment

benefit schemes 153 542

2,340 2,987

SEYFMMIZ(ZE—=—F : 48) ATH
HMEETRIAT

The emoluments of the 3 (2012: 4) individuals with the highest
emoluments are within the following bands:

2013 2012

50T E#1,000,000 7T

HK$nil-HK$1,000,000 3 4

—
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ol
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z-—=F+=-A=

T—HLEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

BREF
(a) EASKREF

EARGREFTIZAFEARAR LR
%%EAEEEMWAE%
705,813,000t ( = F ——F (K &
) - AEVRAM 420,947,0007%) 2
B TOL OB KR oM OE F Y B
1,376,806,000 % ( = & — = F:
1,376,806,000 f%) 5t & -

(b) #ESKRER

BE_T=FF-_FT——F+t=A
—+*E¢¢F'ﬁﬁaﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
EREER  BEEsRAENRERE
R & MR -

DEEHE

KE@?ﬁzéuu&ﬂﬁi‘%ﬁ?ﬂﬂ"”éﬁﬁ%ﬁ

RipHAAEETZLEREENAR

EE2HANFHLERDEENES %:ziﬁpﬂﬁ

ZABBE—BZE2HRTA - REBRIA

ThEFRREDEIEHEH - NEEILHE
Pl

#4101 48 & 29 50 & 5 DARB B A N (E (] AT 3
EDHE
s KEEXHR

R — HENEIH
Exj}

J IKEFHEE — REKEEH

B
e TR — EHEITE
R AR
s WHMEE — AU
Eis MECERE
s XREREKRE — ZEXER

Hit B HEAM

10.

(a)

(b)

9. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of approximately RMB705,813,000 (2012
(restated): RMB1,420,947,000) and on the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 1,376,806,000 (2012:
1,376,806,000) in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, and
diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings
per share.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are

organised by business lines (products and services). In a manner

consistent with the way in which information is reported

internally to the directors of the Company, the Group's chief

operating decision maker, for the purposes of resource allocation

and performance assessment, the Group has presented the

following five reportable segments. No operating segments have

been aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

Main thermal power — manufacturing of main thermal

equipment power equipment

Main hydro power — manufacturing of main hydro

equipment power equipment

Engineering services — provision of engineering

services for power stations

Ancillary equipment — manufacturing of ancillary

equipment for power

stations
AC/DC motors and — manufacturing of AC/DC motor
others and others
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
HE—FT—=F+-A=+—ALEH
For the year ended 31 December 2013

R¥R & ()
PEEE  EERAME

shaFE D BRBE L BE D KR EIRMN
5 OARBEERA T REEREZEET
BEDEAIGRSE  EERAE:

DHEEBRMBEN  BVEER
MEVEE  ERBE QR 2R K
WIFRBEE  HEMeBEE 5P
MRS BEERAEE  XRHKD
HIRRITHER  RITHFR - FRI]TT
T ReRReSEY REME
REEREEZEREIN - nHAER
AR DRI TEE R E R ATE
HEZRNERR - BNRE - BfbEN
o BB R R - BNRRME
REFIE - FPEHR - DR RE
EARENK -

DEREARED I ZWARMZTIZ
ERED B HERFATHZENE

W

BEDWAMNABIR [IEHBKE
A (BB - RETERFHEH
BEgegsd/ (BR)] NEB 2k
M,/ (E518) shL3EHE E B E R 7 A
ZIER - AR EE S R RS FRUES
B FBIA - FEBUTME - X5
HESZ AN EBEERX AEEHE
WEE - I - EMURATFREA
REMAHREEERMEEHE—F
HE - RAXHLTEOIREREED
e DEFEHERBHEAINENRE
ZIEFWE - BRGAR [EREL
B (BB 2 BERN - &
EREEREARKE (BEDEE
HE) MEBEBMARFAS  E - #
8 SORE R R A R D BRI & B B
ERZIERBDIEER M D EHE
e

A ¥R E D BB 2 B AT BOR A FE 2 At
REEZ SR BERARR -

10. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Company's
directors monitor the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the following
bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets and
current assets with the exception of interests in associates,
other non-current assets, other financial assets, trading
securities, deferred tax assets, restricted and pledged bank
deposits, bank deposits, deposits with central bank, cash
and cash equivalents and other head office and corporate
assets. Segment liabilities include trade payables, bills
payable, other payables, accruals and provisions, amounts
due to fellow subsidiaries, customer deposits, deposits
received and amounts due to customers for contract work
attributable to the manufacturing and sales activities of the
individual segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or
amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “adjusted
operating profit/(loss)”. To arrive at “adjusted operating
profit/(loss)”, the Group's profit/(loss) are further adjusted
for items not specifically attributed to individual segments,
such as share of profits less losses of associates, interest
income, PRC government subsidies, fair value losses on
trading securities, provision for onerous contracts, finance
costs, other net income and other head office and
corporate expenses. Taxation charge is not allocated to
reporting segments. Inter-segment sales are charged at
terms agreed between relevant parties. In addition to
receiving segment information concerning “adjusted
operating profit/(loss)”, management is provided with
segment information concerning revenue (including inter
segment sales), interest income and expense, depreciation,
amortisation and impairment losses and additions to non-
current segment assets used by the segments in their
operations.

The accounting policies of the reporting segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note
2.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z—=F1+-A=+—RHILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

PR & (1) 10. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
DHEE BEREGBSE) (a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)
MEBRDE R E D EPRIEmMAAR Information regarding the Group's reportable segments as
AESAEfEEZE - E—=0Kx_F provided to the Company’s directors for the purposes of
——F+_A=1+—"HIEFEEBAXK resource allocation and assessment of segment
EBAREDIL2EREYIMAT - performance for the years ended 31 December 2013 and
2012 is set out below.
—E—-=F 2013
BUIR EIEER
REEH KEXH R BERE REREH
RE KM Engineering Ancillary Rt
Main thermal Main hydro services for equipment AC/DC
power power power for power motors by
equipment equipment stations stations and others Total
ARET T ARBTR ARBT R ARETR ARBTR ARET T
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
KENBEEZWA  Revenue from extemal
customers 12,447,960 2,703,922 1,811,299 733,215 2,804,309 20,500,705
PHBERA Inter-segment revenue 2,112,317 - - - - 2,112,317
BE N Reportable segment revenue 14,560,277 2,703,922 1,811,299 733,215 2,804,309 22,613,022
AREI PR Reportable segment profit 2,573,079 694,637 408,642 209,066 486,800 4,372,224
0% BERREFE  Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 423,265 110,163 9,943 16,848 106,188 666,407
RENENE Depreciation of investment
properties - - - - 181 181
B EERH Amortisation of intangible
assets 13,287 133 - 853 13,302 21,575
AEMTHHEESHE  Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments 8,502 2,763 44 390 1,487 13,186
Et R E Impairment of other
receivables 1,857 7,282 - 332 - 15,471
RERE Allowances for doubtful debts 332,649 37,006 37,863 23,077 55,663 486,258
FlEBMA Interest income (97,824) (12,204) (71,666) (5,889) (113,680) (301,263)
MEXH Interest expenses 183,655 2,292 24,312 2,946 15,213 228478
AREPVEE Reportable segment assets 32,944,701 5,285,817 2,685,710 1,735,796 5,623,076 48,275,100
KEEFRBASEE  Additions to non-current
i segment assets
during the year* 761,435 63,478 14,490 25,742 120,463 985,608
THRESTER Reportable segment
liabilities 27,802,550 3,487,638 4,601,485 1,656,288 3,702,267 41,250,228

* AEEERDEERNEED
% BEk®&E - ENLHEE
REELEEEN - HPBER
BUEE B ARINEE

Additions to non-current segment assets during the year

consists of additions to property, plant and equipment,

prepaid lease payments and intangible assets including

assets from the acquisition of a subsidiary.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
HE-_Z-—=6+"A=+—HItEE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

10. 7 B8P E (@) 10. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(a) DL BERERB(E) (a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)
—E-—F 2012
KEEH IR ESEA

B KEEH oy BER REREH

Main & Engineering Ancillary RE A

thermal Main hydro services for equipment AC/DC
power power power for power motors b
equipment equipment stations stations and others Total
ARBTT AREFT ARBTT AREFT ARETT ARBTT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(BE5]) (B E7) (=75 (E7) (=71 (BE5])
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)

FENGEEZMA  Revenue from external

customers 16,492,620 3,800,862 3,364,372 992,595 2,354,737 25,995,186
P EERA Inter-segment revenue 3,027,804 - - - - 3,027,804
HRESHRA Reportable segment revenue 18,520,424 3,800,862 3,354,372 992,595 2,354,737 29,022,990
THE DR Reportable segment profit 3,483,838 1,263,199 314,651 232,444 317,743 5,611,875

NE  BERRENE  Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment 380,688 115,521 9,754 19,844 65,789 591,496
RENENE Depreciation of investment

properties - - - - 181 181
B AERH Amortisation of intangible

assets 13,209 159 - 640 15,284 29,292
BILHEEHERE  Amortisation of prepaid lease

payments 7,404 3,285 43 505 1,064 12,301
REEE Allowances for doubtful debts 563,834 89,044 35,329 37,218 40,882 766,307
MEKA Interest income (59,223) (8.384) (72,282) (3523) (89,229) (232,641)
MEXH Interest expenses 7,826 2,288 38323 354 7,648 56,439
REEBRER Reversal of allowance for

doubtful debts (1,029 (2,051) - (154) - (3,234)
TREINEE Reportable segment assets 31,006,874 5,587,471 2,985,446 1,567,629 4,368,090 45,515,510

REEFRHHWEE  Additions to non-current

#m segment assets
during the year 818,089 158,465 21,755 27978 192,026 1,218313
THRESTER Reportable segment

liabilities 25,348,246 4,010,740 3,946,318 1,389,019 2,804,603 37,498,926

—
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_Z—=F1+-A=+—RHILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

R¥R & () 10. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
AHREIHKA - 8%  BEREE (b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, profit or
ZHER loss, assets and liabilities
2013 2012
ARET AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&e=751)
(restated)
LON Revenue
Al FRE B ULA Reportable segment revenue 22,613,022 29,022,990
D IBREIUA Elimination of inter-segment revenue (2,112,317) (3,027,804)
AL ER Consolidated turnover 20,500,705 25,995,186
i Al Profit
Al R 9 B0 Reportable segment profit 4,372,224 5,611,875
1 85 5> R A Elimination of inter-segment profits (51,342) (31,136)
REAREBINEEFFE 2 Al RS Reportable segment profit derived from
285 F Group's external customers 4,320,882 5,580,739
FE(EEE 2 N B1E R g 18 Share of profits less losses of associates 28,980 42,110
FEWA Interest income 301,263 232,641
B R AT R B PRC government subsidies 139,632 410,516
RBUEBHFN AL EEEE Fair value losses on trading securities (121,660) (243,095)
ETEBRIEA HRBHE Provision for onerous contracts (61,687) (56,498)
Wi Finance expenses (228,478) (56,439)
RO B E AU AFEE Unallocated other net income 144,110 100,974
RKOBBE REER Unallocated head office and corporate
expenses (3,744,948) (4,240,122)
SZEBTADRET] Consolidated profit before taxation 778,094 1,770,826
EE Assets
AREDEEE Reportable segment assets 48,275,100 45,515,510
S5 8 9> 2B R R Uk 7k T8 Elimination of inter-segment receivables (4,073,577) (3,144,128)
44,201,523 42,371,382
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

0. 7 @)

BHE-ZT-—=+-A=+—HBLEE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

10. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) EHEoBWA - B BEREE (b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, profit or
Zﬁﬁﬁ(%’?) loss, assets and liabilities (continued)
2013 2012
AR%F T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
(#e=51))
(restated)
i iElNE o Interests in associates 234,614 424,316
BRI E E Deferred tax assets 297,354 288,542
BEMIERBEE Other non-current assets 70,538 109,637
HEthertEE Other financial assets 579,135 263,749
RHERBFH Trading securities 1,532,390 1,601,800
SR & B HEIRRITER Restricted and pledged bank deposits 219,456 346,077
RITIER Bank deposits 1,326,913 472,913
R RIRITIFR Deposits with central bank 519,145 133,645
ReMAeFEY Cash and cash equivalents 10,538,171 8,488,162
ROBLBHREEEE Unallocated head office and corporate
assets 841,893 446,226
REBEE Consolidated total assets 60,361,132 54,946,449
afE Liabilities
ARESE AR Reportable segment liabilities 41,250,228 37,498,926
E > PR R R Elimination of inter-segment payables (4,073,577) (3,144,128)
37,176,651 34,354,798
FERT RS X Income tax payables 136,490 518,432
e UNGIE S Advance from holding company 1,771,682 1,757,586
BE Borrowings 1,726,664 2,079,912
B & A Obligation under finance lease 136,534 173,379
RERIESR Deferred tax liabilities 17,690 396
NEES Corporate bond 2,992,688 -
Iobd@ARt¥aE Unallocated head office and corporate
liabilities 2,108,484 2,195,762
mERaE Consolidated total liabilities 46,066,883 41,080,265

—
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BE—FT—=F+-A=+—ALEE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

10. D EHE @)

(c)

& & R

TREIAB () AKEKRBINBES
WA R (i) N B - RS ek s
REMHE  FERNLHAER  BEE
ERRBE AR 2 iR 2 &
o BEP M EmIRAIEH R HE
WK EENE D - AEBEWE - K
Ek#E  REMERENLHEE
KRB ERZEEMRZY
BUE - REVEEMS - HERZ
EEREEMDRKEERBMEL -
RAEERNBE AR 2EEmME © B
RZBERRZEEMRES -

10. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(c)

Geographical information

The following is an analysis of geographical location of (i)
the Group's revenue from external customers and (i) the
Group's property, plant and equipment, investment
properties, prepaid lease payments, intangible assets and
interests in associates. The geographical location of
customers refers to the location at which the services
were provided or the goods delivered. The geographical
location of property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and prepaid lease payments are based on the
physical location of the asset under consideration. In the
case of intangible assets, it is based on the location of the
operation to which these intangibles are allocated. In the
case of interests in associates, it is the location of
operations of such associates.

REMBEF ZWA

Revenues from external

FRBEE

customers Non-current assets
2013 2012 2013 2012
ARET T ARBT T ARETT ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
(reE5)
(restated)
REERN () PRC (place of domicile) 18,323,443 21,984,696 7,583,218 7,499,416
BN Overseas:
— HIE £ — Republic of India 354,943 1,136,563 - -
— EBEEATE — Islamic Republic of
FETRS A E Pakistan 573,935 1,303,322 - -
— EMZBEMBE  — The Republic of
Ecuador 613,166 631,932 - -
— HEMBER — Other countries 635,218 938,673 - -
2,177,262 4,010,490 - -
20,500,705 25,995,186 7,583,218 7,499,416
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1. REYE 11. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
KEE The Group
ARBFT 163
RMB'000 .
QO
S
3
AR Cost m
(e}
RZE——-F—A—H ZZT—=F At 1 January 2012, 31 December 2012, 1 January 2013 and =
+ZA=+—8 -ZF—=%—H—H 31 December 2013 %’
kZZE—=F+=-_R=+—H 5,715 S
2
C
Rt ERRERSE Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses %
R-E——F—H—H At 1 January 2012 905 =
REEZH Charge for the year 181 Jg’
5
Py
RZE—ZF+ZA=+—8H At 31 December 2012 1,086 g
2
S
R-ZE—=F—HF—H At 1 January 2013 1,086 ®
KEEZE Charge for the year 181
R=-T—=%+=HA=+—H At 31 December 2013 1,267
BREFE Carrying amount
R-ZB-—=5+ZA=1t—H At 31 December 2013 4,448
R-E——HF+—-A=+—H At 31 December 2012 4,629
(a) EZEFRARMEEREEMEZERR (a) The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the
BEERAEQNABERES ° investment properties approximate their fair value at the

end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
HE—2-=Ff-A=f—ALHFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

1. BEWHE®)

(b)

(c)

BEMEZREEINAT -

11. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

(b) The analysis of carrying amount of investment properties is

as follows:

2013 2012
AR®T T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000

RIBATENOESEFA L
T AT AT
ySEUGERD)

DEeHalt s REME

AEBENGEHERHRENE - &
LUHE-RVTHEME=F - LM
HEHRRERNEER - ERAE
R TTEFHEE  REEAEER
BRAEE -

Land situated in the PRC held under:
Medium-term leases 4,448 4,629
Short-term leases - -

4,448 4,629

(¢c) Investment properties leased out under operating
leases

The Group leased out investment properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 2 to 3 years, with an option to renew the lease
after that date at which time all terms are re-negotiated.

None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
HE-_Z-—=6+"A=+—HItEE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

W% - BERRE 12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

EH The Group
- B
e}
HER S Furniture, EHIE ERIR
BT Plant and fixtures and Motor Construction @i
Buildings machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total
ARETFT ARETFT ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(mE5) (mE5) (BE71)
(restated) (restated) (restated)
KA Cost
R-Z2——%-fA-8 At 1 January 2012

(%AIZ50) (previously reported) 2,460,959 5,126,718 479,828 334,054 1,490,335 9,891,894
AfrEAE] Merger accounting restatement

(GER) (note 3) - - 5,116 741 - 5,857
RZZE--F—A—BEEJ)  At1January 2012 (restated) 2,460,959 5,126,718 484,944 334,795 1,490,335 9,897,751
hE Additions 13,219 26,367 94,619 25,963 1,056,567 1216735
SR B Transfer upon completion 644,069 726,253 45,888 55,034 (1,471,244) -
EBLENBARMRA Derecognised through disposal

T2 (Mt 41) of subsidiaries (note 41) - - (65) - - (65)
HE Disposals (3,864) (38,617) (9,200) 13,093) - (64,774)
W_E-—FE+-f=+-H At 31 December 2012 (restated)

(EE5) 3,114,383 5,840,721 616,186 402,699 1,075,658 11,049,647
R-2-=%-F-R At 1 January 2013 3,114,383 5,840,721 616,186 402,699 1,075,658 11,049,647
RE Additions 6,697 11,975 34,963 13,893 791,884 859,412
TR B Transfer upon completion 427,806 364,060 54,123 5,187 (851,176) -
BRNERBLARRE Additions through acquisition of

(Bizk40) subsidiaries (note 40) 12,450 5,203 487 416 8,363 26919
e Disposals (439) (34,010) (9,168) (12,810 - (56,427)
W=Z2-=#+-A=+-H  At31December2013 3,560,897 6,187,949 696,591 409,385 1,024,729 11,879,551
ZIHTERRERSR Accumulated depreciation and

impairment loss
W-B-—%-f-H At 1 January 2012

(sEA1251) [previously reported) 794,419 2,820,110 262,318 211,380 3723 4,091,950
afreitzEl Merger accounting restatement

(Miz3) (note 3) - - 1,234 97 - 1331
RZZ—Z5—-A—BEEH))  At1January 2012 (restated) 794,419 2,820,110 263,552 211477 3723 4,093,281
AEESH (BES) Charge for the year (restated) 101,271 374,258 80,550 35,417 - 591,496
7 KES g% Transfer upon completion - T4 - - (714) -
HENBARAREAR Write back on disposals of

(WizE41) subsidiaries (note 41) - - (51) - - 51)
HERER Write back on disposals (1,841) 30,167) (7,706) (11,497) - (51,211)
R-Z——F+-f=t-H At 31 December 2012 (restated)

(&=71) 893,849 3,164,915 336,345 235,397 3,009 4,633,515
W=Z-=%-A-H At 1 January 2013 893,849 3,164,915 336,345 235,397 3,009 4,633,515
TEESH Charge for the year 104,110 439,696 79,610 42,991 - 666,407
HERER Write back on disposals (152) (32,493) (8,895) (12,118) - (53,658)
WZZ-=#+-A=+-H  At31December2013 997,807 3,572,118 407,060 266,270 3,009 5,246,264
REE Carrying amount
WZE-=#+-F=+-H  At31December2013 2,563,090 2,615,831 289,531 143,115 1,021,720 6,633,287
RZEB-—&#+-f=1-H At 31 December 2012 (restated)

(&=71) 2,220,534 2,675,806 279,841 167,302 1,072,649 6,416,132

—
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BE_Z-—=6+"A=+—HItEE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

12. ¥ - BERZE @ 12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued
156 AN The Company
B £E
% PEL
= BERKE Furniture, EHIA RRIRE
i BT Plant and fixtures and Motor  Construction @
A Buildings machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total
== " — " — I — w — " — " —
XA ARETT ARBFT AREFT AREFT ARETT ARBFT
;ﬁ RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
3
‘L;_f] BAE Cost
R-F——F—-f—A At 1 January 2012 901,102 259,814 35,673 7,754 93,503 1,297,846
P HE Additions 18,690 6,653 6,372 103 138,699 170,517
P B Transfer 59,924 14,308 - - (74,232) -
#
= RZZE——F+-A=+—H  At31 December 2012 979,716 280,775 42,045 7,857 157,970 1,468,363
W-F-=%—-f—H At 1 January 2013 979,716 280,775 42,045 7,857 157,970 1,468,363
HE Additions - 2,548 347 448 216,611 219,954
g% Transfer 143,759 (135,803) - - (7,956) -
HE Disposals - - (95) - - (95)
RZZ-Z£+2B=+-A  At31December 2013 1,123,475 1475520 42,297 8305 366,625 1,688,222
RIHERAERR Accumulated depreciation and
impairment loss
R-E——F—F—H At 1 January 2012 90,276 51,284 11,043 4,096 - 156,699
KEEX Charge for the year 36,429 19,540 1,983 892 - 58,844
RZF-ZFTZA=+—H  At31December 2012 126,705 70,824 13,026 4,988 - 215,543
R-F—=F—-F—A At 1 January 2013 126,705 70,824 13,026 4,988 - 215,543
FEEXH Charge for the year 32,928 25,814 2,591 867 - 62,200
HE Disposals - - (92) - - (92)
RZZB-=F+-A=+—H  At31December 2013 159,633 96,638 15,525 5,855 - 271,651
RHE Carrying amount
RZE-=%+ZA=1+—-H At31December 2013 963,842 50,882 26,772 2,450 366,625 1,410,571

RZZ—ZF+ZA=+—H  At31 December 2012 853,011 209,951 29,019 2,869 167,970 1,252,820
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
HE—FT—=F+-A=+—ALEH
For the year ended 31 December 2013

ME - BERRE @

AEBRARANEFHURTE -

R-E—=ZF+-A=+—8 A£EE
EE D B4 A ARE3143,000 & A RIE
19,298,000 7T & THEF LA LK F & #28
(ZF—=%F : AR™6,131,000 THEF)
ERAERAERER —RIRITRE MR -
FEEERMIEESS -

o RZZE—ZF+-_A=+—H" ' K
SHEEREDN AR 13,675,000 THE
FHEBRERD R —RAERFRAMENT - %
REPRFAD R MEMNHRKRERZ
T—=Fh AERER -

RBEER - UASEZE®AER
MEMER A HERKBERERFEAA
R¥204,007,000L(ZE—=F : AR
227,750,0007T) (RFI5E34) - W 5
HRALERE -

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The Group's and the Company’s buildings are situated in the
PRC.

As at 31 December 2013, certain buildings and plant and
machinery of the Group with carrying amounts of approximately
RMB3,143,000 and RMB19,298,000 respectively (2012: building
of RMB6,131,000) were pledged to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group. Details of which are set out in
note 33.

In addition, as at 31 December 2012, certain machinery of the
Group with carrying amounts of approximately RMB13,675,000
were detained due to a pending litigation. The pending litigation
was settled and detained machinery were released in May 2013.

At the end of the reporting period, the net carrying amount of plant
and machinery held under finance lease in the form of sale and
leaseback arrangements of the Group was RMB204,007,000
(2012: RMB227,750,000) (see note 34). There was no disposal
gain or loss recognised for the transactions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BE_Z-—=6+"A=+—HItEE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

13. A LtHER 13. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS
EH The Group
168 ARETF T
E RMB'000
ﬁ
)ﬁﬁi
it N
ot D% Cost
E;; W-ZZE——F—H—H At 1 January 2012 607,137
ot NE Additions 625
w8 P
D
el X _
RZB——F+A=+—H At 31 December 2012 607,762
3
)
ﬁ R-BE—=%—H—H At 1 January 2013 607,762
ERBEEN B A RIRE (K93 40) Additions through acquisition of subsidiaries (note 40) 8,727
NE Additions 78,011
R-B—=F+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2013 694,500
ESe £ Accumulated amortisation
R-Z——F—A—H At 1 January 2012 162,215
PGSR 3 Amortisation for the year 12,301
RZTE——F+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2012 174,516
R-ZE—=F—HF—H At 1 January 2013 174,516
IR 5 Amortisation for the year 13,186
R-B—=F+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2013 187,702
REE Carrying amount
R-EBE—=%+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2013 506,798
RZE——F+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2012 433,246



13.

B 7% 3R 3= MY &E ()

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
HE—FT—=F+-A=+—ALEH
For the year ended 31 December 2013

EATBAER
AEE ()

AEEOTEN DA SRR ERARE
HHEIEA R A A LI B - TR L3
ERpmEBNTAT

13. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS (continued)

The Group (continued)

The Group's prepaid lease payments represent land use rights
held under medium-term lease in the PRC. They are analysed for
reporting purpose as follows:

2013 2012

ARET T AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

RENEL Current portion 14,286 12,300
JEmENEL Non-current portion 492,512 420,946
506,798 433,246

RZE—=F+=-A=+—8 A£EE
EEHABANRES1,24300 (= —=
F 0 AR 24,786,000 7T) TEN LA E
HRE FBIERSE R — MR TRE R -
FEBEAMIEESS

As at 31 December 2013, certain prepaid lease payments of the
Group with carrying amount of approximately RMB31,243,000
(2012: RMB24,786,000) were pledged to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group. Details of which are set out in
note 33.

—
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BE_Z-—=6+"A=+—HItEE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

13. A LTHHEHER &

13. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS (continued)

AT The Company
AREEF T
RMB'000
A Cost
W_E——_F—HF—HB - ZFT——F At 1 January 2012, 31 December 2012 and
+—A=+—RArK=Z—=F—HF—H 1 January 2013 43,791
NE Additions 78,011
R=-B—=H5+=B=+—H At 31 December 2013 121,802
E-E ] Accumulated amortisation
R-ZT——F—H—H At 1 January 2012 6,222
REF Amortisation for the year 854
RZBE——F+A=+—H At 31 December 2012 7,076
R-—ZE—=F—A—8 At 1 January 2013 7,076
N EE Amortisation for the year 1,726
R=ZB-—Z=5+=A=+—H At 31 December 2013 8,802
REE Carrying amount
N-BE—=%F+=-A=+—8 At 31 December 2013 113,000

R-E——F+=—RA=+—H

AREWIEN LHEER BT EFEARE
hHIMH AR B D B - TR LA
EFBEBOONAT ¢

36,715

At 31 December 2012

The Company'’s prepaid lease payments represent land use rights
held under medium-term lease in the PRC. They are analysed for
reporting purpose as follows:

2013 2012

AR¥ET T ARBFIT

RMB’000 RMB'000

B AR Current portion 1,726 854
IEmENE D Non-current portion 111,274 35,861

113,000 36,715
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
HE-_Z-—=6+"A=+—HItEE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

14. BEEE 14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
REH The Group
ERRETE
Patents
and rights
AREEF T
RMB'000
AR As Cost
R-E——F—H—H At 1 January 2012 401,865
NE Additions 953
RZE——F+-A=+—H At 31 December 2012 402,818
R-—E—=F—A—H At 1 January 2013 402,818
NE Additions 11,661
BEUWEEN B R RIRE (H:E40) Additions through acquisition of subsidiaries (note 40) 878
R-B—=F+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2013 415,357
Rt B ESE Accumulated amortisation and impairment loss
R-TE——F—H—H At 1 January 2012 140,133
NEEEH Amortisation for the year 29,292
RZTE——F+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2012 169,425
R-ZE—=%—H—H At 1 January 2013 169,425
N E S Amortisation for the year 27,575
R-B—=F+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2013 197,000
BRE{E Carrying amount
R-B—=F+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2013 218,357
NZE——F+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 2012 233,393

KEEHBEEARNGEBRENT The amortisation charge for the year is included in
B - “administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

s
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Notes to the gzlnangﬁlfl Statements (continued)
2T —= A=

+—HIEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

REGTBRAXRERZELETIEE
E/(ABR)FAE2EERRERNZE

15. DEFERRED TAXATION

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in

the consolidated statement of financial position and the

mr movements during the year are as follows:
AEE The Group
ERERSR
HitE KR
NREE
A
Impairment
of trade
and other =3 !
receivables B Hedging i &t
and inventories Provisions instruments Others Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BEHEELR: Deferred tax arising from:
RZZ——%—R At 1 January 2012 176,317 91,120 4,901 5,028 277,366
RBIE A/ (IR )( TE7 Credited/(charged) to profit or loss
(note 7) 34,030 (17,276) - (176) 16,578
REMZENRENR Charged to other comprehensive
income - - (5,297) - (5,297)
FREENBAAMMERZ  Derecognised through disposal
(Wsan) of subsidiaries (note 41) (501) - - - (501)
RZE-—F+-A=1-H At 31 December 2012 209,846 73,844 (396) 4,852 288,146
WZE—=F—A-H At 1 January 2013 209,846 73,844 (396) 4,852 288,146
REIE A/ (8 (35 7) Credited/(charged) to profit or loss
(note 7) 28,271 (19,841) - 6) 8,424
REM2ERENR Charged to other
comprehensive income - - (17,294) - (17,294)
BB AR (M 40) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 40) 388 - - - 388
R-E-=F+-A=+-H At 31 December 2013 238,505 54,003 (17,690) 4,846 279,664
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
HE-_Z-—=6+"A=+—HItEE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

15. IEIEFIIE (@)

15. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

b /N The Company
BE &5t
Provisions Total
ARBETF T AREEFIT
RMB'000 RMB'000
EEBEEER ! Deferred tax arising from:
W-ZE——F—H—H At 1 January 2012 10,696 10,696
REZEETA Credited to profit or loss - -
N-_E——F+=-_A=+—8BxK At 31 December 2012 and 1 January 2013
—E—=%—H—H 10,696 10,696
REZEIN%G Charged to profit or loss (10,696) (10,696)
R-B—=F+=-HA=+—H At 31 December 2013 - -

REFEEMBRRAERME - & TELEHR
HEENBBER ERYE - AT A
BRET 5 BB R Z DT

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have
been offset in the table above. The following is the analysis of
the deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

rEE
The Group
2013 2012
ARBT AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RILFEE E Deferred tax assets 297,354 288,542
RIEFIEEE Deferred tax liabilities (17,690) (396)

279,664 288,146
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BE—FT—=F+-A=+—ALEE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

EEBLIE ()

RZE—=F+ZA=+—8 ITRpE
FREBHIBEE R LM ERMEE
ERRBEERIEEE - RERZKRBAH
BEBRAMITNFEREEESTOAT

15. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

At 31 December 2013, deferred tax assets were not recognised
in relation to certain unused tax losses and other deductible
temporary differences. The unrecognised unused tax losses and
other deductible temporary differences are analysed as follows:

rEE ¥NNE

The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
ARBT AEBTT ARBT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FiIEEE Tax losses 1,477,364 1,374,128 4,951 -

E b AT 05 A Other deductible temporary

=8 differences 539,809 727,025 4,535 80,465
2,017,173 2,101,153 9,486 80,465

) RZE—=F+=-HA=+—H0 F&% (i)
ERAQNT ZAANHEGREERS R
AARE2017,173,000(ZF—=
& AR®2,101,153,00070) R AR
#9,486,000C(Z T —ZF : AR
£ 80,465,000 7T ) M A FE R A IR AT
MEEE REAKEEERBTAA
Ae1FTE Pl B) A DA SRR TR S 1B e B 1%

JERTBUR T o

(i) FEREBERSAINADFREEIA (ii)
HEFEARRERTEA - IR =F
—OFER-T— \FERER

W-F—=4+=A=+—0 #A%E
WBATREEAT 2 RERAREL Y
BABETE - mRNKEREERE - &
£ @Y RIS 2 BIARE - L FIARE
FARRELBRAR (—F— 4% : AR
BET) -

At 31 December 2013, the Group's and the Company's
deductible temporary differences amounting to
RMB2,017,173,000 (2012: RMB2,101,153,000) and
RMB9,486,000 (2012: RMB80,465,000) respectively have
not been recognised as deferred tax assets as it was
determined by management that it is not probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilised.

Tax losses in the PRC can be carried forward to set off
future assessable income for a maximum period of five
years which expires in the period from 2014 to 2018.

At 31 December 2013, there was no significant unrecognised
deferred tax liability (2012: RMBnil) for taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings of the Group's subsidiaries
and associates as the Group has no liability to additional tax
should such amounts be remitted.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

16. RIB AT 2RE

BE_Z- =F+_A=t+ALLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

AT The Company
2013 2012
AR¥T R AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R 3E FTIRE (FRAKAR) Unlisted investments in the PRC, at cost 4,556,044 2,867,987
FEURH B A B ZRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 1,997,122 1,640,468
JE P B 2 B 3R IE Amounts due to subsidiaries (2,867,801) (3,130,267)

U ERIBTERM L 28 - BARE RS

fil3

T

ITE2WMBARZFHAENFEHNM B ]RE

FiFE49 -

17. REFE DT 2w

The amounts due are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand.

Details of principal subsidiaries are set out in note 49 to the

financial statements.

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

AEHE RAT]
The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
AR® T ARBET T AR®T R AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
(s &%)
(restated)
REIIE ETRIRE Unlisted investments
(R BAN) in the PRC, at cost 88,772 240,763 17,740 80,740
R ER1Z R T Share of post-acquisition
(BB U B) profits, net of dividends
received 145,842 183,653 - -
234,614 424,316 17,740 80,740

.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BE—FT—=F+-A=+—ALEE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

REBHE DB 2 )

RAFE - ZK%EW%WEJ RN
Al ABARERRECES) BRATRBE
ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁfﬂiﬁﬁEAﬁﬂ TRESBAAR
205,014,000 7T &2 A R #182,000 7T * &
A HE IR AR 2,123,000 T - AW
ERAEEFRNEaPRE - HEBAK
BREER)ARAFIZAREBER=Z
—ME-ARE EREKRBEARE
205,146,000 7T —BIFRM X H - WHER
mEReRERTRE -

RZZ—=F+-_A=1+—R0 HSEEX
BEARHFANREEEATEIBAA
SEEEFETIZHD

ERTERZBERRZAFERNT

17.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

During the year, the Group disposed of two associates namely,
BARERAECES)ERAE and MBRERKRIKITHAER R E
at an amount of RMB205,014,000 and RMB182,000, respectively
and resulting gain on disposal of RMB2,123,000 which is
reflected in the Group’s profit or loss for the year. The
BOER) BRA

was received in January 2014 and the aggregate consideration

consideration for the disposal of #AIGE

receivable of RMB205,146,000 represents a non-cash transaction
which is not reflected in the consolidated statement of cash

flows.

As at 31 December 2013, there were no material associates
which principally affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually

material:

2013 2012
ARET AREBTFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
(ggE:7)
(restated)
BRI EXREE R BRERE Aggregate carrying amount of individually
B RR 2 BERTHE immaterial associates in the consolidated
financial statements 234,614 424,316
AEEREZEBRE QT Aggregate amounts of the Group's share of
ZEABEE those associates'’
FEEICE EETG 2 5 F) Profit from continuing operations 28,980 42,110
BRI FEE 2 FiiE R Post-tax profit or loss from discontinued
E1E operations - _
Hh2mEas Other comprehensive income - -
FHEUEERE Total comprehensive income 28,980 42,110
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
HE—FT—=F+-A=+—ALEH
For the year ended 31 December 2013

HERBEE

18. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

AEHE RAT]
The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
AR¥T T AR®EFTT AR¥T T AREETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FHEMRE Available-for-sale
investments
— LR — Unlisted equity
FEH— securities at cost
Ei-dD@IN less impairment
MERRE 52,538 91,637 21,246 60,346
BLEMERES  Guarantee monies
for finance lease 18,000 18,000 - -
70,538 109,637 21,246 60,346

GEX

(i)

(i)

JELETREEESFRIERET l%ﬂ%ﬁm
WIE LR R BITHIE LR EH
aZi;’é%Et1I$&¢Hﬂﬂ<&ﬁk$ﬂ£ﬁ
B2 RERAEAREBEMGHE
b N N/N ﬂé%ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁfﬁ@ﬁb
ARFE-FR FEEAARE
39,099,000 (=T —ZF: ARK
41,869,0007T) 25 TIH LTHEZRES
EEUHER  TERBETHERLES
HE I E WS AR 5,216,000 L(=
T——F : AR¥3,020,0007T) °

MEMERESBAERHE D THER
BEREMERE (MFE34) -

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

The unlisted equity securities represent investments in
unlisted equity securities issued by private entities
incorporated in the PRC. They are measured at cost less
impairment at the end of each reporting period because the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is so wide that the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that their fair
values cannot be measured reliably. During the year, certain
unlisted equity securities with a carrying amount of
RMB39,099,000 (2012: RMB41,869,000) was derecognised
and a gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments of
RMB5,216,000 (2012: RMB3,020,000) was recognised in profit
or loss.

Guarantee monies for finance lease will be used to settle the
finance lease obligation before the end of the lease term
(note 34).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

19. HhemEE

HE-_Z—=F1+-A=+—RHILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

19. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

TEE
The Group
2013 2012
ARBT ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
TEEMEE (M) Derivative financial assets (note (i))
EREIINES S Foreign currency forward contracts
— BER S — held for trading - 12,781
BEREREHTAN Foreign currency forward contracts held as
RERINE S LY cash flow hedging instruments 117,933 2,641
117,933 15,422
DT Analysed as:
MEVEE Current assets 66,838 15,422
EMBEE Non-current assets 51,095 -
117,933 15,422
FSTESRME E (FFEE (i) Non-derivative financial assets (note (ii))
BHEZEEEE Held-to-maturity investments 461,202 248,327
461,202 248,327
DT Analysed as:
MENVAE Current assets 461,202 -
IEREEE Non-current assets - 248,327

461,202 248,327
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19. Hitt &€ ®MEE

GEE

(i

(ii)

EHIMNES WIR AR BEIIR -

RAFE @ EEHERITETANAR
EEZE A W= AR 12,930,0007T
(ZZ—=—%F: AR#¥18,5635,0007T) *
WEFAE »

WAFEE  ESEETETARAAEE
FE)E LU AR 115,292,000 7T
—T— 4 : AR%¥48,093,0007T)
EREMEERETER - WHERHE
&5t -

RBEMFK AEEP R (=T
——F 6R)AHAENGHEE
REBEIHNESK  UEEHERE

i o
B

RBERAR AEEFIE(ZE—=
FOBE)ECIERREHITANKRE
TBERIINES HNBE R A LB E A
TR R RN S5 PR B HINE R
B o ACRER M IMNE RIS IR ELA
ERFEEEHTEE NIERK - A BEEE
Uk 25 A R 56,812,000 7T M A R #&
43,431,000 c( — T ——F: AR#
2,245,000 T ARBZT) EREME
AREERRRESRHER - BB
DRIRARK+ —EA A RIRERER
Br_EARENHEEED -

A EFRITE SR T AN 52 mER
A RAVERSRN T ERITHET o

BAEZIHEEANTPRBAESZ I
EFmEE A2 BAEARE
230,000,000 (=& ——4F: AR
230,000,000 7T) * EEFENF5.18%
E558%  BHR_ZE—NERH - hE
BITER BT 5ABERER - FEHE
BB ENRERPERITEITZER
& AR4% A AR 200,000,000 T(=
T——F: ARBZL) BEMEA
5% » BN T —HER|H o

FARRMRAE IR S WS PR 2 H
BARRER & - BRIRE AR -
JMERE

19. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

The foreign currency forward contracts are stated at fair value.

During the year, changes in the fair value of non-hedging
currency derivatives amounting to gain of RMB12,930,000
(2012: RMB18,535,000) were included in profit or loss.

During the year, changes in fair value of hedging currency
derivatives amounting to gain of RMB115,292,000 (2012:
RMB48,093,000) have been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the hedging
reserve.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had nil (2012: 6)
outstanding foreign currency forward contracts to manage its
exchange rate exposures which did not meet the criteria for
hedge accounting.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had 39 (2012: 1)
outstanding foreign currency forward contracts designated as
highly effective hedging instruments in order to manage the
Group's foreign currency exposure in relation to committed
foreign currency future sales. The terms of the foreign
currency forward contracts have been negotiated to match the
terms of the respective designated hedged items. Gain on fair
value changes of RMB56,812,000 and RMB43,431,000 (2012:
RMB2,245,000 and RMBnil) have been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the hedging
reserve and are expected to be reclassified to profit or loss at
various dates in the coming twelve months and more than
twelve months after the end of the reporting period
respectively.

The above transactions involving derivative financial
instruments are with Bank of China of A1 credit rating by
Moody's.

The held-to-maturity investments are unlisted investments in
government bonds in the PRC with principal amount of
RMB230,000,000 (2012: RMB230,000,000), fixed interest rate
at a range of 5.18% to 5.58% and maturity in 2014.
Government of the PRC has credit rating of Aa3 by Moody'’s.
The held-to-maturity investments also include investments of
principal sum of RMB200,000,000 (2012: RMBnil) issued by
Bank of China with fixed interest rate at 5% and maturity in
2014.

Held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortised cost
less impairment at the end of each reporting period and are not
past due or impaired.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

20. & 20. INVENTORIES
AEE b NN

The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
AR¥T T ARBETTT AR®T T AREF T
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
B R Raw materials 3,832,196 3,741,570 - -
R Work in progress 10,098,770 7,944,588 1,699,598 1,630,735
SR S Finished goods 415,776 670,053 - -
14,346,742 12,356,211 1,699,598 1,530,735

21. BERERREREWEE 21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE
TEE bNNET|

The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
AR®T T AR®EF T AR®T T ARET T
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
FEURBR X Trade receivables 18,509,731 18,858,846 561,941 1,622,329

o RERHEE Less: allowance for doubtful

(MF3E21(b)) debts (note 21(b)) (4,057,708) (3,5672,034) (77,495) (65,524)
14,452,023 15,286,812 484,446 1,456,805
FEUW R Bills receivable 1,997,282 1,278,348 5,000 75,407
16,449,305 16,565,160 489,446 1,532,212
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
HE—FT—=F+-A=+—ALEH
For the year ended 31 December 2013

YRR & R ZEE (o)
FEURE (R S R AR A MR Ik E

RZE—=F+ZA=+—H0 " #ELE
] i L SR 4t B 1T R N R R 1 A AR VR A
meRZE—ZFF+A=+—H &%
E R EE AR 17,540,000 T E 3 2%
TRENZEEMRITEREERR -

BRTEPZEEMERTR  —RIVRE
MEPZMBENME - RENEIRELE
WSR2 EE R - ANEEE BTG
BEFEZER -

(a) FRERDHT

UTARBEMRENERAH(E
B H HI AR R e R B AR ) 4%
fRik 251 2 FEUR SR (FORR RAR B 4)

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Retention money receivables are settled in accordance with the
terms of the respective contracts.

As at 31 December 2013, no bills receivables of the Group were
pledged as collateral for the issuance of bills payable. As at 31
December 2012, the Group's bills receivables of approximately
RMB17,540,000 were pledged as collateral for the issuance of
bills payable.

The credit terms given to the customers vary and are generally
based on the financial strengths of individual customers. In order
to effectively manage the credit risks associated with trade
receivables, credit evaluations of customers are performed
periodically.

(a) Ageing analysis

The following is an analysis of trade receivables by age,
presented based on the invoice date, which approximates
the respective revenue recognition dates (net of allowance

DHT for doubtful debts) as of the end of the reporting period:
rEH AN
The Group The Company

2013 2012 2013 2012
AR®BT ARETT AR¥TT AREBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
1EAA Within 1 year 9,872,023 9,967,661 242,650 1,460,565
1582F Between 1 to 2 years 3,175,794 2,871,100 234,710 31,521
25 3F Between 2 to 3 years 1,607,802 1,569,410 630 39,217
3FME Over 3 years 1,793,686 2,156,989 11,456 909
16,449,305 16,565,160 489,446 1,632,212
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HE-_Z-—=F+=-A=

+—HIEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2013

. BRI R B RE @)
(b)  FEUAR R R P U SR

P& R R % PR M R Y R (B S 1R T B
REERAR  EHAREZ AW E
ZE R RE B SERIRRIN - RExfB
T MR ERE RS B & AR M E
YR M R 15 (2 BIRTRE2(m))) ©

FARKEBNED (2@ R

(b)

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Impairment of trade receivables and bills receivable

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables and bills
receivable are recorded using an allowance account unless
the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is
remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off
against trade receivables and bills receivable directly (see
note 2(m)(i)).

The movement in allowance for doubtful debts during the

sTEEE ) mT : year, including both specific and collective loss
components, is as follows:
AEHE b N
The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
AR® T ARBTT AR%T T ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
H—A—H At 1 January 3,672,034 2,808,961 65,524 40,261
BERAEEE Impairment losses
recognised 485,674 766,307 11,971 25,263
BB ETIE D Impairment losses reversed - (3,234) - _
B“t+=-—A=+—8H At 31 December 4,057,708 3,672,034 77,495 65,524
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21. BRI R EWERE »)

BHE-ZT-—=+-A=+—HBLEE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE (continued)

(b)

(c)

FE W B R  FE W R BB R B (78)

R—ZE—Z=ZF+=-_A=+—8"
REEBEBRARAAEABEARE
1,056,329,000 C( — T ——4fF: AR
#51,346,121,000 70) X A R # 114,000
T(ZZE—=F : AR¥114,0007T)
#) FEU IR SR E B BIVE R E AT o B R
R B IR R E 2 IR SR
WERE s BFMAE - MiRERER
i TEEME B o EYGRAT T Uk e -
WENAEEERSBEARARE
147,998,000 T(ZZE—_4F : AR
112,429,000 7T ) B R AR 5 38 15 TE &
o RAFE - AREE REEHE
REMBEEB(ZZE——F: AR
BEZTT) ©

3 ARAR 7 18 51 55 H B8 B B9 FE W AR R

(b)

(c)

Impairment of trade receivables and bills receivable
(continued)

At 31 December 2013, the Group’s and the Company's
trade receivables of RMB1,056,329,000 (2012:
RMB1,346,121,000) and RMB114,000 (2012: RMB114,000)
respectively were individually assessed for impairment.
The individually assessed receivables related to customers
that were in financial difficulties and management
assessed that only a portion of the receivables is expected
to be recovered. Consequently, specific allowances for
doubtful debts of RMB147,998,000 (2012:
RMB112,429,000) were recognised during the year for the
Group. The Company has not recognised any specific
allowances for doubtful debts during the year (2012:
RMBnil).

Age of trade and bills receivables that are neither

RERSEERENOT : individually nor collectively considered to be impaired
are as follows:
AEH b NN
The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
ARETR ARBT T AR¥T T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
R EERBE Neither past due
nor impaired 14,086,214 14,645,413 489,446 1,532,212
B HEERRE Past due but not impaired
1FLAR Within 1 year 1,653,010 1,294,865 - -
1£23F Between 1 to 3 years 604,174 532,140 - -
3FLAE Over 3 years 105,907 92,742 - -
16,449,305 16,565,160 489,446 1,632,212
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21. BRI R EWERE »)

(c)

3 ARAR 5 18 5 =5 BB B9 FE W R K
REKRERR (B

REH B RBERNBUERRES TF
FER HbhRAEDEFHAEREE
ERi

BAm AR RE 2 GRS &
BEFPEH - HENEENHH HER
IRFH B B EST  MBEWEA -
EHETEZEEERRE -KRZF
—=F+ZA=1+—H £EHAA
R #686,150,000 T( = F — = F :
AE#1,052,389,000 T ) # JE U BR 5K
EREEERRRERESZ - EEEM

RPAR R AIAZEULE]  AEE R A
R E G R F AT B TR R
FHER o

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE (continued)

(c)

Age of trade and bills receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired
are as follows: (continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers and many of them are with
good credit history.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of customers. Ongoing credit evaluation is
performed on the financial condition of trade receivables
and, where applicable, credit guarantee insurance cover is
purchased. As at 31 December 2013, trade receivables of
approximately RMB686,150,000 (2012:
RMB1,052,389,000) were covered by credit guarantee
insurance. The management believes that there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group and the
Company do not hold any collateral or guarantees over
these balances.
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22. BERERERER

BE_Z- =F+_A=t+ALLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

22. DISCOUNTED BILLS AND LOANS

RECEIVABLES
AEE
The Group
2013 2012
AR¥T T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BLIREE R EKE Discounted bills and loans receivables 22,439 22,536
B REREE Less: allowance for doubtful debts (584) -
21,855 22,536
(a) BEEEBRIERERZEIEEERD (a) A maturity profile of discounted bills and loans receivables
T is as follows:
AEEH
The Group
2013 2012
AR¥T T AREFIT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
1FEARN Within 1 year 21,855 22,536
1A EBEFUA Over 1 year but within 5 years - -
21,855 22,536

b) FRZREERBHEEBNOT

(b)  The movements in allowance for doubtful debts during the

year are as follows:

rEME

The Group
2013 2012
AR®F T AREBTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
n—RA—H At 1 January - _
BRI EEE Recognised impairment loss 584 -
w+=—A=+—8 At 31 December 584 -

—
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

MEREREBERER &

© RUEBEATZMRERRERER

22. DISCOUNTED BILLS AND LOANS

RECEIVABLES (continued)

(c) Discounted bills and loans receivables due from related

DT parties are analysed as follows:
rEE

The Group
2013 2012
ARET AREBTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
SES =N Fellow subsidiaries 20,000 1,190
HE-_E—=Ft+-_A=1+—HULFE" The annual interest rates of discounting services and loans

mEFEATIREZBBERELRERZFF
RARINF48% E8.25% N3% E6% (=
——F 4B8%EI% NE) -

/xl‘l

ERMREREER SRR BRMAMNAER
IR - RIRITALEE - RITE T AT
B R ENRED RN - A REARL
REmME A2HBMAEHETARSEA
HERHE -

provided to related parties ranged from 4.8% to 8.25% and 3%
to 6% for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: 4.68% to 9%
and nil) respectively.

Discounted bills receivable relate to discounting services
provided by Finance Company. For those bills endorsed by banks,
the banks have an irrevocable liability to effect payment when
the bills fall due. With regard to commercial acceptance bills, all
of them are with recourse to the issuers and endorsers.
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BHE-ZT-—=+-A=+—HBLEE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

23. Htt W - HERFANKIE 23. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND

PREPAYMENTS
AEE b NN 187
The Group The Company

T
2013 2012 2013 2012 %
ARBTR ARETT AR%TR ARETR >
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 g
2(7 3.
(sE5) %
(restated) 3
o)
Q
2
H fth e UK 3R Other receivables 601,902 418,809 18,208 15,551 5
JRE LB 4 R B R IA Amounts due from associates 15,124 83,964 - - o
®e RFEMRIE Deposits and prepayments 5,056,612 4,092,329 208,262 257,067 >
=
2
o
5,673,638 4,595,102 226,470 272,618 >
3
A
U E AR REAERBLEES - HZE Amounts due from associates are unsecured, non-interest §
RER(EE bearing and repayable on demand. @

TE R © RTEAT FRIB G A F A E ok iE R Deposits and prepayments expected to be recovered or

B - recognised as expenses within one year.
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BESEEW (EM) 24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) CUSTOMERS
FOR CONTRACT WORK
RBEHRNEEER - Contracts in progress at the end of the reporting period:
rEE
The Group
2013 2012
AR¥T R AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
25 AR A Contract costs incurred 26,136,472 25,037,885
DR D ERER Recognised profits less recognised losses 966,903 960,975
27,103,375 25,998,860
W TIREERIA Less: Progress billings (27,261,841)  (25,482,871)
(158,466) 515,989
BATIEBYIR Represented by:
FFARBIEENERAEREFIE Amounts due from contract customers
included in current assets 970,378 2,079,367
SARDEBENEMNERRERIE Amounts due to contract customers
included in current liabilities (1,128,844) (1,563,378)
(158,466) 515,989
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FEW, (44) B B BB 2 R KR

25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) FELLOW
SUBSIDIARIES

rEH The Group
ZEFEAEEERAL RS - AERERKE The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable
i o on demand.
REMRS 26. TRADING SECURITIES
AEBRAEAQT
The Group and the Company
2013 2012
AR¥T AREEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
TR RES  BAREE Listed equity securities at fair value
— EBHEIN — outside Hong Kong 1,532,390 1,601,800
L EAE A Market value of listed equity securities 1,532,390 1,601,800

RZE——FR_FE—=F+=-A=+—
B BEZIHEFSFNEREBBREARDG
BEER10% °

None of the trading securities with carrying amount exceed 10%
of total assets of the Company as at 31 December 2012 and
2013.

The fair value of all equity securities is based on their current bid

prices in an active market.
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27. SRERSEHRBITER P

RIBITIER

R-E—=F+_-_A=+—H8 KEHKEF
AR RERITZIFRA A AR 519,145,000
TT(ZZE—=—F : AR¥133,645,0007T) °
THE B R RN B ARBITZIEET R
i - MR R GE R EEF KL
A15% (ZZT—_4F : 15%) °

FRIBTTFERZMEFLFHERFRNEX A
1.62% (ZZE——4F : 1.62%) ©

RZZE—=F+-_A=+—H  x&EEZ
SR RERBRITITERHARE
212,156,0007L( = & — = F: AR ¥
333,952,000 7T) Bh A& THEMEHHE S
ERLBEITREMZBITRGIGEA o Lo -
REE ZRITFERKAREE7,300,0007T(=
T4 ARM12,125,00070) L HES
PR HIE F (R I EE43(0)) ©

REBZ ZR G| R ERRITERZFIE
FAMEE 39(c) (i) R #E 58 -

27. RESTRICTED AND PLEDGED BANK

DEPOSITS/DEPOSITS WITH CENTRAL
BANK

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had deposits of
approximately RMB519,145,000 (2012: RMB133,645,000) placed
with central bank which represent statutory deposit reserves
with the People’s Bank of China by Finance Company. The
statutory deposit reserve ratio for deposits of Finance Company
is 15% (2012: 15%).

The weighted average effective interest rate on deposits with
central bank was 1.62% (2012: 1.62%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had restricted and pledged
bank deposits of approximately RMB212,156,000 (2012:
RMB333,952,000) which were restricted by banks in respect of
the issue of trade bills to certain suppliers and performance
guarantees. In addition, the Group had bank deposits of
approximately RMB7,300,000 (2012: RMB12,125,000) which
were under freezing orders and restricted to use (see note 43(b)).

The interest rates of the Group's restricted and pledged bank
deposits are disclosed in note 39(c)(i).
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28. RITER HERBEEEY

28. BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

AEE RAT
The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
AR¥T T ARBT T AR¥T T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
(&e&E75)
(restated)
RITRFERS Cash at bank and in hand 4,230,216 5,593,766 1,239,877 511,265
SRITRIEFR Deposit with interbank 6,093,919 1,052,884 - -
3@ A AT 28877  Bank deposits, matured
VEE within 3 months 214,036 1,841,512 530,000 -
FBRAT RERE Cash and cash equivalents in
RemERZAS the statement of financial
RIBSZEY position and the consolidated
statement of cash flows 10,538,171 8,488,162 1,769,877 511,265
3{E A LAEF|HAZ $R7T Bank deposits, matured over
VRN 3 months 1,326,913 472,913 - -

RITAEFZEV B RN EMAIRT
ZIRITIFR ©

N_E—=F+_A=+—0 x&£@ES
HA AR 10,245,890,000 T( —F— 4
(&EY|) - AR#7,820,271,0007T) K38
© RIRTTEBRUARIRIT R AARE R
B ZEARELSEIBKINEEEET
B BT A RO I B IS5 12 SRR o

R-ZE—=F+=-A=+—8  RITFXK
ARIRE RIBE S B INEFTHEEREF
RE26%(ZFT—_F(KEY) : 24%) °

Be RRITEH AR 915,077,0007T (=
T ——F : AR®19,833,0007T) B st AR
REIRERREFEMcERER  BR
BRITMEEEFERIBE AT -

Deposits with interbank represents bank deposits reserves with

other domestic banks by Finance Company.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group's cash and bank balances
and bank deposits which are denominated in Renminbi
amounting to RMB10,245,890,000 (2012 (restated):
RMB7,820,271,000). The conversion of these Renminbi
denominated balances into foreign currencies is subject to the
rules and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by

the PRC government.

The weighted average effective interest rates on bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2013 were

2.6% (2012 (restated): 2.4%).

Included in the Company's year-end balance of cash and cash
equivalents are cash and bank balances of RMB915,077,000
(2012:RMB19,833,000) which were deposited with Finance

Company according to the prevailing market conditions.
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29. FESERR BN EE HitpE

HE-_Z—=F1+-A=+—RHILFE
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IR - Bt EARERE

29. TRADE PAYABLES/BILLS PAYABLE/OTHER

PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND PROVISIONS

AEHE RAT]
The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
AR® T ARBETTT AR®T R AREEF T
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
(&=E75)
(restated)
FERTBRIX Trade payables 15,071,799 17,260,871 314,965 154,474
R Bills payable 4,018,619 3,655,642 - 35,911
19,090,418 20,816,513 314,965 190,385
Bt Provisions 630,168 963,429 4,535 151,770
Ef R Other payables and accrued
EETER charges 906,306 684,020 160,634 64,962
FEfHER N B ZRIE Amounts due to associates 28,261 37,002 - -
20,655,153 22,500,964 480,134 407,117
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29. FERRNENRE HE

BHE-ZT-—=+-A=+—HBLEE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

IR - Bt ERARRE @

RIEHER - AR N ENZE Rk
DT =

29. TRADE PAYABLES/BILLS PAYABLE/OTHER

PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND PROVISIONS

(continued)

Trade and bills payables with the following ageing analysis as of

the end of reporting period is as follows:

REERGEAEMBARRNKREZN A A
BEB Y R BB DMTAAT

rEE b NN
The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
AR¥T T AR®ETFTT AR¥T T AREEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(fE5))
(restated)
1FEARN Within 1 year 16,758,609 17,589,219 219,863 151,457
1224 Between 1 to 2 years 1,547,078 2,566,935 16,181 6,792
2E34F Between 2 to 3 years 371,421 149,131 6,173 1,082
3FLAE Over 3 years 413,310 511,228 72,748 31,054
19,090,418 20,816,513 314,965 190,385

year are as follows:

The components of provisions recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position and the movements during the

rEHE The Group

EERE

EREERE &8
Product Onerous st
warranty contracts Total
AR®T R AR®T R AR®T R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R-ZT—=F—A—A8 At 1 January 2013 187,870 775,559 963,429
FTIG R Additional provisions 153,896 61,687 215,583
RERNB AT Amounts utilised during the year (254,205) (294,639) (548,844)
W_E—=F+-"A=+—H At 31 December 2013 87,561 542,607 630,168
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BE-T—=F+-A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

29. FERRNENRE HE

5 - BstERAREE @

29. TRADE PAYABLES/BILLS PAYABLE/OTHER

PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND PROVISIONS

(continued)
NN | The Company
EERL
EmBEERE =X
Product Onerous et
warranty contracts Total
ARET R AR¥T T AR®T T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R-ZE—=F—H—H At 1 January 2013 71,305 80,465 151,770
REANBRNESRE Amounts utilised during the year (71,305) (75,930) (147,235)
R-E—=F+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2013 - 4,535 4,535
EmBERERE Product warranty provision

AEBERETERRETPIRH—EMF
BERE  WAGERERERBIERED
Eme WEARERERNIZEENBE
B TE RR B K FAEMET 1$;Hr§/¢%if
PEtRES  WRE B RHRIELER

EERBENRME

REERHEERERBERERBII LS
BN AR —EMFRITNAL - RIEZ
EAK RZT—=Ft+t-A=t+t—H8"
BITEA NV ERANB LR ERS
BN - AEBECDRBRRZFETE
BB A NG AAENREFKARZ
FEMNELREE -

The Group provides warranties ranging from one to two years to
its customers on certain products and undertakes to repair or
replace items that fail to perform satisfactorily. The amount of
the provision for warranties is estimated based on the sales
volume and past experience on the level of repairs and returns.
The estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis and revised
where appropriate.

Onerous contracts provision

The Group has entered into several contracts to be executed in
the coming one to two years in respect of the sales of power
equipment and nuclear power equipment. Under these contracts,
the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations have exceeded
the economic benefits expected to be received as at 31
December 2013. Provision has been made for such onerous
contracts based on the estimated minimum net cost of exiting
from the contracts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
HE—FT—=F+-A=+—ALEH
For the year ended 31 December 2013

Eizs 30. DEPOSITS RECEIVED
TEE AT

The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
AR®T T AREET T AR®T T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
mENE D Current portion 10,331,026 7,238,055 1,769,616 1,368,345
FEmENEB D Non-current portion 6,533,021 4,655,159 497,073 891,010
16,864,047 11,893,214 2,266,689 2,259,355

EIRE AREPWE 2 B 5HE - B
Beh  AEBERAQRADNNEARE
6,533,021,0007C & A R # 497,073,000 7T
(ZZE—=%F: 55l AR ¥ 4,655,159,000
Tt M AR 891,010,000 7T) AR R & B R
Br—EASTHIzREERIREERER
ZIRE - W AR A B R KA SR
MERERDEE - ERABDNAE—FR
FIMBEARIRECEKRDRZIES BB
AnBAE - BERESEREEERIRE
SRk & FAER A RIE -

The amount represents the advance payments received from
customers. Included in deposits received for the Group and the
Company of approximately RMB6,533,021,000 and
RMB497,073,000 respectively (2012: RMB4,655,159,000 and
RMB891,010,000 respectively) were the advance payments
received in respect of contract works to be commenced after
twelve months from the end of the reporting period and were
classified in the consolidated statement of financial position and
statement of financial position respectively as non-current. The
remaining balance represents deposits received for contract
works to be commenced within one year and were classified as
current liabilities. The deposits received will be used to set-off
the contract price upon the completion of contract works.

KRR A TIRIE 31. ADVANCE FROM HOLDING COMPANY
REE ¥ /N

The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
BT ARETR AREBTT AR%®TRT ARETT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
mENE S Current portion (i) 1,768,182 400,478 398,730 400,000
EmENEL Non-current portion (ii) 3,500 1,357,108 - 392,960
1,771,682 1,757,586 398,730 792,960
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BE—FT—=F+-A=+—ALEE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

31. RERATRE @)

GEX

(i)

(ii)

AREBRIER D B FIELHBIE TS
et BER DREAGEBARE
9,784,000 L( — T — —F: AR
478,0007T) & A R #1,758,398,000 7T
(Z=Z — =% : AR %400,000,000
TT)  BEEMNKALA% - IWEHES
EIRAEAR—FREER

o

RNE@ 7 RIZA RGBS B IERR
ARIEBRPHARETAEE 2 EAE
N R #1,758,398,000 L ( =& — —
£ AR ¥400,000,0007T) 0 BEEF
FEAEE4% - BEAFEAERNRA
R—FREE -

iipd

RARRIER AR FIBLERBIETEE
A H A R #398,730,000t( — &
— — 4 : AR #%400,000,0007T) -
BEF R B54% © L RIB A EKE
REN—FRNEE -

i A

\

REBRER A RFIBLEHBIETTE
B ZER DHBARE
3,600,000 C( =& — —fF: AR
366,430,0007L) R ARBZL(ZF
——fF: AR#990,678,0007T) ° i
ZT—F  HAEBERZERENERA
5.23% ©

RZZE—Z—F+=ZA=+—H £QF
RIERARFIAEB BRI B ZER B
AR % 392,960,000 © EEREFFIER A
5.23% ©

ERAFEREEN B TERmERR
BRAFARERRE  AUEDES
FRBEME-

31. ADVANCE FROM HOLDING COMPANY

(continued)

Note:

(i)

(ii)

The balance of the advance from holding company of the
Group comprises of non-interest bearing and interest bearing
loans amounting to RMB9,784,000 (2012: RMB478,000) and
RMB1,758,398,000 (2012: RMB400,000,000) respectively with
effective interest rate of 5.4% per annum. The amounts are
unsecured and repayable within one year.

The balance of the advance from holding company of the
Group comprises of entrustment loans granted from holding
company to the Group amounting to RMB1,758,398,000 (2012:
RMB400,000,000) through Finance Company with effective
interest rate of 5.4% per annum. The amounts are unsecured
and repayable within one year.

The balance of the advance from holding company of the
Company comprises of interest bearing loans amounting to
RMB398,730,000 (2012: RMB400,000,000) with effective
interest rate of 5.4% per annum. The amount is unsecured and
repayable within one year.

The balance of the advance from holding company of the
Group comprises of non-interest bearing and interest bearing
loans amounting to RMB3,500,000 (2012: RMB366,430,000)
and RMBnil (2012: RMB990,678,000) respectively. The
effective interest rate for the interest bearing loans was 5.23%
per annum in 2012.

At 31 December 2012, the balance of the advance from
holding company of the Company comprises of interest
bearing loans amounting to RMB392,960,000 with effective
interest rate of 5.23% per annum.

The amounts are unsecured and will not be demanded for
repayment in the next five years from the end of the reporting
period and, accordingly, the amounts have been classified as
non-current liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

32. EFEX
EEGRAGEERMBARZER

F#15

BHE-ZT-—=+-A=+—HBLEE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

32. CUSTOMER DEPOSITS

Customer deposits represent deposits maintained with Finance

mr Company as detailed below:
AEH
The Group
2013 2012
AR¥T T ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
S eSUYi NI S Deposits from the ultimate holding company 385,728 129,065
RRMB AR ZER Deposits from fellow subsidiaries 65,721 24,364
—EBE R B 2 TFR Deposits from an associate 2,784 1,872
—REEBEBALZFER Deposits from a non-related party 3 249
454,236 155,550
AEE
The Group
2013 2012
AR¥T R ARET T
RMB’'000 RMB’000
FEEER Repayable:

RER On demand 437,190 144,722
3EAA Within 3 months 1,550 4,202
AN EE1TFR Over 3 months but within 1 year 15,496 6,626
454,236 155,550

MEEALTRUZEPERFMNENF
0.385% & 3.3% (=& — =% : 0.385% =

3.3%)

3.3%).

The annual interest rates of customer deposits provided to
related parties range from 0.385% to 3.3% (2012: 0.385% to
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BE—FT—=F+-A=+—ALEE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

33. B 33. BORROWINGS
rEE AAT
The Group The Company
138 2013 2012 2013 2012
3 ARETR ARBTT AR%T T ARBTF T
= RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
= (g E5))
gkj[ (restated)
=5
Ej\ >
af RITER Bank loans 1,123,918 1,666,142 - -
= HER Other loans 602,746 513,770 52,271 11,364
|
g 1,726,664 2,079,912 52,271 11,364
»
ﬁ ER Secured 1,123,918 1,566,142 - -
FEFER Unsecured 602,746 513,770 52,271 11,364
1,726,664 2,079,912 52,271 11,364
DR Analysed into:
FEERITER Bank loans repayable:
—FREIEERK Within one year or on demand 683,918 986,142 - -
—FBREMERN After one year but within
two years 440,000 340,000 - -
WEEZEAFA After two years but within
five years - 240,000 - -
hFiE After five years - - - -
1,123,918 1,566,142 - -
JEENMEMESR :  Other loans payable:
—FRHIFERK Within one year or on demand 54,546 112,453 - -
—FEBEEMERN After one year but within
two years 68,538 - 40,907 -
MEBRAFA After two years but within
five years 134,457 - 6,364 -
HF& After five years 345,205 401,317 5,000 11,364
602,746 513,770 52,271 11,364
1,726,664 2,079,912 52,271 11,364
B —HFASIRENR  Less: repayable within one year
BEZRDEE or on demand classified
under current liabilities (738,464) (1,098,595) - -

988,200 981,317 52,271 11,364
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
HE—FT—=F+-A=+—ALEH
For the year ended 31 December 2013

33. fER@®)

ERHPREEIA TF B BB

33. BORROWINGS (continued)

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the

following currencies:

AEH AT
The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
ARBT ARBFT AR¥T T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(#e=71)
(restated)
AR RMB 1,706,636 2,062,942 52,271 11,364
ETT usSD 20,028 16,970 - -
1,726,664 2,079,912 52,271 11,364

RZE—=F+-A=+—8 K&EEHR
BHRITEFOFEFNENF3.10% £7.80%
ZE(ZE—ZF: FFENFI51%E
7.87%) °

RZE—=F+-A=+—H A£ED
PATERITRE B RAE TEE © &%
SEEZEREMNT ¢

il DE BMEEREBEBOAARE
22,441,000 (—ZT——4F : AR
6,131,000 7C) (MF5E12) °

i)y ENLTHEEZRHNAEARE
31,243,000 L (ZE——F : AR¥
24,786,000 7T) (Bi7£13) °

(i)  RITTFEHRHAEARE 212,156,000 7T
—T— - F: AR#333952,000
7o) (MisE27) »

All of the Group’s bank borrowings are carrying at rates ranging
from 3.10% to 7.80% per annum (2012: 3.51% to 7.87% per
annum) as at 31 December 2013.

At 31 December 2013, the Group had pledged or restricted
certain assets with the following carrying amounts to secure the
banking facilities granted to the Group:

(i) property, plant and equipment of approximately

RMB22,441,000 (2012: RMB6,131,000) (note 12).

(i) prepaid lease payments of approximately RMB31,243,000
(2012: RMB24,786,000) (note 13).

(i) bank deposits of approximately RMB212,156,000 (2012:
RMB333,952,000) (note 27).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

34. MEHERE

HE-_Z—=F+-_A=+—ALHFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

34. OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASE

rEE
The Group
2013 2012
ARBT T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
A TS EE Obligation under finance lease 136,534 173,379
A& EEYE — BEAEE Current portion of obligation under finance lease (39,289) (36,988)
97,245 136,391
REBzAREAEAR THIHEEE The Group’s finance lease liabilities were repayable as follows:
A58
The Group
2013 2012
EEHE AREBZ BERE RERE AREE REEE
RR2RE FEBAX DE €L RARZBRE FERX REsE
Present value Present value
of the Interest Total of the Interest Total
minimum expense minimum minimum expense minimum
lease relating to lease lease relating to lease
payments future period payments payments  future period payments
ARETR ARETR AR®T T AREFT ARETT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
—FR Within 1 year 39,289 7,436 46,725 36,988 9,737 46,725
—EHBERRER After 1 year but within
2 years 41,733 4,992 46,725 39,289 7,436 46,725
MEFERLER After 2 years but within
5 years 55,512 2,895 58,407 97,102 8,030 105,132
97,245 7,887 105,132 136,391 15,466 151,857
136,534 15,323 151,857 173,379 25,203 198,582
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
HE—FT—=F+-A=+—ALEH
For the year ended 31 December 2013

BMEHERE®)

AEERMERERE 2 EBRFHE56.08%
(ZE——F :6.32%) °

R-E—=ZF+-A=+—8 A£E~E
FAARM18,000,000L (ZFE—=F : AR
18,000,000 7T) - fEAEEMEERAE 2R
#Fo (fizE18) »

RZE—=F+-A=+—H0 @EHE
IR A TREEL AR 204,007,000
T(ZZT—=F: ANRH227,750,0007T)
B EREHIR (RFTEE12) o

AEEREBE-EREMEHAEERET
- HEHADE  MBFERESRZE
BRESREENERENTREFET A
£ -

34. OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASE

(continued)

The effective interest rate of obligation under finance lease of the
Group is 6.08% (2012: 6.32%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has deposits of
RMB18,000,000 (2012: RMB18,000,000) as guarantee monies
for the obligation under finance lease (note 18).

As at 31 December 2013, the obligation under finance lease
were secured by certain machinery with carrying amount of
approximately RMB204,007,000 (2012: RMB227,750,000) (see
note 12).

The Group leased certain of its machinery under a finance lease.
The lease term was 5 years and the ownership of the machinery
would be transferred to the Group at the end of the lease term

without consideration.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
Be—Z2—=F+-_A=1+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

RKEFETE

AEEERNBREMTERBEEXEER
EENRERIBRAREZESHMAHEIR -
AEBEEBEERBEBIERNTERN22%
BNRAEEZES BIREEATED
8% W1 o

35. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group is required to make contributions to a defined
contribution retirement fund which is administered by the Harbin
Social Insurance Administration Bureau of the local government.
The Group is required to contribute 22% of the basic salary of its
existing PRC staff, while employees contribute 8% of their basic

salary.
/(TR mE) i< 36. TAX PAYABLES/(RECOVERABLE)
rEE b NN
The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
ARBT AEBTT ARBT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
(gg=7)
(restated)
1 (EF Value added tax (43,402) 216,943 (9,794) 17,889
EFTER Enterprise income tax 136,490 518,432 (12,136) 77,885
BER Business tax 2,653 21,896 699 20,559
HibFiE Other taxes 114,866 149,622 7,489 12,712
210,607 906,893 (13,742) 129,045
HER : Representing:
EEEr s Tax recoverable (43,402) - (21,930) -
FERTE IR Tax payables 254,009 906,893 8,188 129,045
210,607 906,893 (13,742) 129,045
NEIESH 37. CORPORATE BOND
3’3: —=F=ZA+—HB ' XQRRELE On 11 March 2013, the Company issued a corporate bond to the

EFZPARABETEHER/AREIVET
Z’R AEF - ZEFRLEH FREXR
49%  MEFEN=ZA+—AXXAFNE -
ARAER —FE-N\F=ZAEFIHEE
HEE - R-_ZT—=Ft+-H=+—H"
BEETEFHRERBRAREMRER -

public on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with a nominal value of
RMB3 billion. The bond carries interest at 4.9% per annum with
a term of five years, which is payable annually in arrears on 11
March each year. The bond will be fully repaid by the Company
upon maturity in March 2018. As at 31 December 2013, the bond
issued is guaranteed by HE Corporation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BHE-ZT-—=+-A=+—HBLEE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

38. I&k& - RERKRE

(a)

38. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

ERToEE (a) Movements in components of equity
rEH The Group
AEBGAERS B FEYRFRE The reconciliation between the opening and closing
MR B REN AT BERKRESTERE balances of each components of the Group's consolidated
BOE ARG E TR - KQAE equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes
HERE D EV RER T SBEIEE in equity on pages 87 to 89 of the financial statements.
FUAAT - Details of the changes in the Company's individual
components of equity between the beginning and the end
of the year are set out below:
K The Company
EE EE
BEXGE BHAES
1% B4 RE Statutory Statutory REEF
Share Share capital surplus Retained @t
capital premium reserve reserve profits Total
ARBFT ARBTFT ARBTT AREFT AREFT ARBFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
WZZF——%—H—H Balanceat 1 January 2012
il 1,376,806 1,980,295 709,849 433,708 221,427 4,722,085
AFEEENR Profit and total comprehensive
2HNEEE income for the year - - - - 138,962 138,962
BT EEE Transfer to reserves - - - 25,062 (25,062) -
8 Dividends - - - - (192,753) (192,753)
WZZ—=%—H—H Balanceat 1 January 2013
LEH 1,376,806 1,980,295 709,849 458,770 142,574 4,668,294
KEEEAR Profit and total comprehensive
PEWNEEE income for the year - - - - 258,320 258,320
ERREE Transfer to reserves - - - 25,742 (25,742) -
fx 8 Dividends - - - - (137,681) (137,681)
R=Z—-=%+=H  Balance at 31 December 2013
=t-Rz&R 1,376,806 1,980,295 709,849 484,512 237471 4,788,933
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38. B - HEERE @

(b)

RE

(i)

(ii)

HE-_Z—=F+-_A=+—ALHFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

38. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(continued)
(b) Dividends
AEEENARABBRMDIZAEA ()  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
RS, - Company attributable to the year.
2013 2012
AR®T R ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
MEHRENEZ RIS Final dividend proposed after the end of
AERLTBRARE the reporting period of RMB0.08
0.08 T (Z&E——%: per ordinary share (2012: RMBO0.1 per
FREBBRAREO.17T) ordinary share) 110,144 137.681

BERRREZORYRER
BEHRE B RAERRAE -

The final dividend proposed after the end of the
reporting period has not been recognised as a liability
at the end of the reporting period.

FRRE RIRS 2 £ — B BF (i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the

ERNARBRBRNFE AZK

B o
T

Company attributable to the previous financial year,

approved and paid during the year.

2013 2012
AR®F T AREBTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FERNIENIRS 2 E—B81B  Final dividend in respect of the previous
FEZARBBREAER financial year, approved and paid during
AR®0.17T the year, of RMBO.1 per share
(ZE——F : 5k (2012: RMBO0.14 per share)
AR#0.147T) 137,681 192,753
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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38. BA& - HEERE @

38. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(continued)
() MBA (c) Share capital
2013 2012
BHEE I % B
Number AREFT Number AREEF T
of shares RMB’000 of shares RMB'000
B BEITR Registered, issued and
B fully paid:
BB EAREREE  State owned equity
AR T interest shares of
RMB1 each 701,235,000 701,235 701,235,000 701,235
HEX G REEARYE  H Shares of RMB1 each
17C 675,571,000 675,571 675,571,000 675,571
R—A—BEk+=A At 1 January and
=+—H 31 December 1,376,806,000 1,376,806 1,376,806,000 1,376,806

B S AT BSLBL B B LA K S eh B O AN
BIMRE BB ABIROR B
RRSN - BIBTE AR H B B A4
@ E AR e

(d) BEXRER

AEBERNEENERAR  RER
AEBABREERNESD BB
RENEARLE  UAFHFEEKE
1 FEERANBRREE -

AEBBBLCBEBINED  EEE
BAREEGIELH AR - BBFHRAR
BARGERE  AEEEEEABRKRE
RS - MRERIREEARNLET
TR -BE_T—=FR_FT—_F
FTZA=T-HILFE  AEELE
EREERE  BOREIRRT -

(d)

Except for the currency in which dividends are paid and
restrictions as to whether the shareholders can be PRC
investors or foreign investors, state owned equity interest
shares and H shares rank pari passu in all respects with
each other.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group's capital management
is to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholder’s value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
during the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.
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38. B - HEERE @

(d) BEXREEE)

AEBEMEAARLXCHEBIK
BERNINFER) SR HEXRER
AEBNHRRSEFRENEARE
e - REBBIEREAS RENR
FERTRRIR - AN SRR - BTSN
F’EEJr%{ﬁH&E%ﬁ BlinE - FEHIT

ZM A RFRIA - RIER AT

%}Eﬁm fﬁ%’(&mﬁié%ﬁ 7¥<B*&

AfES  BERTHEFRARRE RIHR
EHEY - BREXNBEMBANRAIE
SR EIE AR N i o E IR

BE-T—=F+-A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

38. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(continued)

(d) Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is

net debt divided by the total capital plus net debt. The

Group's policy is to maintain a stable gearing ratio. Net

debt includes amounts due to customers for contract work,
trade payables, bills payable, other payables, accruals and

provisions, deposits received, amounts due to fellow

subsidiaries, advance from holding company, customer
deposits, borrowings, obligation under finance lease and

corporate bond, less bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents. Total capital represents all capital and reserves
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company. The

BREELENT gearing ratios as at the end of reporting periods were as
follows:
2013 2012
AR¥T ARBFT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
(& E71)
(restated)
HEER Total debts
BEAREAR Amounts due to customers for contract work 1,128,844 1,563,378
FERTBREX Trade payables 15,071,799 17,260,871
e =R Bills payable 4,018,619 3,655,642
HM AR - SR REE Other payables, accruals and provisions 1,564,735 1,684,451
Bz e Deposits received 16,864,047 11,893,214
R RN E A RFIAE Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 65,336 48,993
RIERT A BIFRIE Advance from holding company 1,771,682 1,757,586
%)5 ﬁm Customer deposits 454,236 155,550
22k Borrowings 1,726,664 2,079,912
mﬂﬁT A Obligation under finance lease 136,534 173,379
71,@}} Corporate bond 2,992,688 -
45,795,184 40,172,976
B BRITEFTARRE K& Less: Bank deposits and cash and
fﬁﬂz—r{,ﬁif’f% cash equivalents
SR R EERIRITFER Restricted and pledged bank deposits (219,456) (346,077)
FRREBITIER Deposits with central bank (519,145) (133,645)
PBITHERK Bank deposits (1,326,913) (472,913)
B4 RESZEEY Cash and cash equivalents (10,538,171) (8,488,162)
(12,603,685) (9,440,797)
FETS Net debt 33,191,499 30,732,179
BEE K Total capital 12,527,083 12,023,995
B AR RE R Capital and net debt 45,718,582 42,756,174
BEAXRBELE Gearing ratio 73% 72%
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39. €I A 39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
SRTEREER : Categories of financial instruments:
REE ¥ N
The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
AR¥T R AREEFTT AR¥T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
(&%)
(restated)
SHMEE Financial assets
RARnEER ABZE Fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL)
—RHEBEERS — Held for trading 1,532,390 1,614,581 1,532,390 1,601,800
T EHEtEETH Derivative instruments in
PTETE designated hedge
accounting relationships 117,933 2,641 - -
HAEZFHNIEE Held-to-maturity investments 461,202 248,327 - -
B NEWFIE (B4 Loans and receivables
RERREEED) (including cash and
cash equivalents) 29,867,077 26,643,098 4,274,653 3,699,496
FHEMIRE Available-for-sale investments 52,538 91,637 21,246 60,346
TRAE Financial liabilities
h$H K AN Amortised cost 27,172,125 25,752,955 6,787,089 4,189,938
BERBEERAAEE Financial risk management and fair values

AEBEHHKREERERBBIETELEDN
8 RPHES NEREERR R
TR 3R B H 0 B A 1 W B R E /A
BER -

7R 2 [ P TE S 2 L B A SR [ A DA B IR %
ZRBe I G RERERBER BN

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risk arises

in the normal course of the Group's business. The Group is also

exposed to equity price risk arising from its equity investments in

other entities.

The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk

management policies and practices used by the Group to manage

these risks are described below.
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39. €M I AEw®w
(a) =ERK
FERRERFIEMIARSEH
REEBITH ﬁf&ﬁ%ﬁ$ﬁl%?
FEEAZRR  BERREZR
g :

— HAMBARKRMIIZETE
BEREE: &

— RSB RAAESHE -

RBEAIBERIEAR S M MAPTDI S
FERRTREEZEERR K&
BEEECEK AEEEEEERE
B EEHEREMEERFOK
h ABERETBREEBIETS
AN - REBR S ERE RGBT
BIRERZ HERRIERFHILEER
AT e EE L‘ME{%?WFEHQE?KIE
fEH R HDBERE  BLit - AR A]

ERR - AREWNEERR E?WEE/W

o

Re RRITFFHFRRERFRR
W2 RIT R EHEE - ARRESER
B AEEZRERRITERZEE
[ B EAEK

AEEAZZEERREIEREEF
ERSIEMEE - MIEREPEBH

EZITXSBERYE  WEAREG
EREFPAZXEXRRE  —RES
AEBELREERRBEZEET 2B
M-RB——FR_T—=F+_
A=1+—8 AEEYETFAERHEE
—EFRARUFHEFPARNNEE
RBEHER -

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (continued)

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a
customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to
meet its contractual obligation, and arises principally from:

—  the carrying amount of the respective financial assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position; and

— the amount of contingent liabilities as disclosed in
note 43.

In order to minimise the credit risk in relation to each class
of recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
financial statements, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow up actions are taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt and non-trade debt at
the end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

Cash at banks and bank deposits are placed with banks and
financial institutions with good credit ratings. The directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk on the
cash at banks and bank deposits is low.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than
the industry or country in which the customers operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At 31 December 2012 and 2013, the Group
does not have any significant concentration of credit risk
from any single customer or any group of customers
having similar characteristics.
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39. €M I AW

(a)

FERR(E)

ETFRAEMMBEERRNER
T &AWEERRALRE M BEIRR
KNSR EEZREE(BETE
SRIE) WHREMRERE - ©
WEHR ARASEEZSHHER
ZERAEERBAM T 43 HE -

ERASERKRAREEIMRER
USRI REERR 2 E—HE
EREER DRI N FE 19521 ©

AT FE B 138 12 ) K [R] R P 8 8 AR
1 RNEERAREFERERIEBS
AR E SR - AEEC SR A
SRAMEN R BHBERBREYE -

REBRARBZEESETRRD B
CREIRIE e NI PR
ZHRIE  AEBEARAREREE R
PERRBRAESEN K E
MERRRESERE  ERRAKHEE
RINCAEIE o

HRURRERERERTE - BERT
HEREEFHRERENEENAT
B FE B R B A E R
AZEBRENBIE - EEFERERK
ERAZREMGR - REBERIR
H R ETIRERHE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking into
account of any collateral held is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset, including derivative financial
instruments, in the consolidated statement of financial
position after deducting any impairment allowance. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of the financial
guarantees given by the Group at the end of the reporting
period is disclosed in note 43.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from held-to-maturity
investments and trade receivables are set out in notes 19
and 21 respectively.

In respect of amounts due from subsidiaries and fellow
subsidiaries, the Group and the Company reviews the
recoverable amounts of individual debts to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable

amounts.

The Group's and the Company’s concentration of credit
risk is on the advances to fellow subsidiaries and
subsidiaries respectively. The management of the Group
and the Company have closely monitored and reviewed the
recoverability of the amounts and the directors of the
Company consider such risk is manageable.

For discounted bills and loans receivables, the main
considerations for impairment assessment include whether
any payments of principal or interest are overdue or
whether there is any liquidity deterioration of borrowers,
credit rating downgrades, or infringement of the original
terms of the contract. The Group addresses impairment
assessment individually and collectively.
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39. @I Hwm 39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (continued)
(b) FEBHESEK (b) Liquidity risk
REBZHERATHEREREES The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
EEPUNEAFTEERESE  HBEF requirements and its compliance with lending covenants,
/\,E?%%Eiﬁifu%ﬁ&[%ﬁ—;Tiﬁ’%Z to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
FINEBEANETESRIMEER readily realisable marketable securities and adequate
Eﬁ?mf#ﬁﬁﬁi%ﬁg AR SR H X committed lines of funding from major financial institutions
RERHZABESEE - to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term.
TRIRAREBR RARNBHOTE RIE The following tables show the remaining contractual
PTTEMESHEAERRESHRZHT maturities at the end of reporting period of the Group’s and
BHRIBIERE R - E*ETFA%’HEHEEEEE the Company’s derivative and non-derivative financial
she(BREERAEHFERL (A liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted
FRINMERRZFEFHEZAE cash flows (including interest payments computed using
7)) - AR AREBE R AR B A gEs contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at
BERERZRFHEESL : the end of reporting period) and the earliest date the Group
and the Company can be required to pay:
ZEE The Group
—E—=f 2013
BETNARRRERY
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
—-FNULE MENLLE
—£R MEAR EEUR
REE HEER More than More than BENL
Carrying @5 Within 1 year 1 year but 2 years but More than
amount Total orondemand  within2years  within5 years 5 years
AR%TR AREFR ARETT AR¥ETTR AR¥TR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FTESREAE Non-derivative financial
liabilities
FERBRAR Trade payables 15,071,799 15,071,799 15,071,799 - - -
e Bills payable 4,018,619 4,018,619 4,018,619 - - -
HiEMFRIEER  Other payables and accrued
charges 934,567 934,567 934,567 - - -
[ERAZNBLRZE  Amounts due to fellow
subsidiaries 65,336 65,336 65,336 - - -
RIBRARIFE Advance from holding company 1,771,682 1,866,635 1,863,135 - - 3,500
RS Corporate bond 2,992,688 3,735,000 147,000 147,000 3,441,000 -
EEER Customer deposits 454,236 460,728 460,728 - - -
figt Borrowings 1,726,664 1,785,850 769,110 537,078 134,457 345,205
RAREAE Obligations under finance leases 136,534 151,857 46,725 46,725 58,407 -
21,172,125 28,090,391 23,377,019 730,803 3,633,864 348,705
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(b) REBEERE(E)

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

rEF The Group
—ET——F 2012
[BHEE NSk ok
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
—FuE RFL L
—FR RENAR BFLR
HREAE HEEK More than More than AENE
Carrying it Within 1 year 1 year but 2 years but More than
amount Total orondemand  within2years  within 5 years 5 years
ARETR ARETT ARBFT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(&=51) (&=51) CE) (m53)) (m=51) (&=51)
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
FTESREE Non-derivative
financial liabilities
ERERR Trade payables 17,260,871 17,260,871 17,260,871 - - -
ENFE Bills payable 3,555,642 3,565,642 3,555,642 - - -
Hit M7 R &t SR  Other payables and accrued
charges 721,022 721,022 721,022 - - -
ERRZMBARZIE  Amounts due to fellow
subsidiaries 48,993 48,993 48,993 - - -
REERDFIFTE Advance from holding company 1,757,586 2,089,644 473,476 51,812 155,436 1,408,920
EPRER Customer deposits 155,550 157,721 167,721 - - -
EE Borrowings 2,079,912 2,142,549 1,138,466 357,350 245,416 401,317
BEREAE Obligations under finance leases 173,379 198,582 46,725 46,725 105,132 -
25,752,955 26,175,024 23,402,916 455,887 505,984 1,810,237
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39. @I Hwm 39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (continued)
(b) HREBELER(E) (b) Liquidity risk (continued)
p Y| The Company
—E—-= 2013
BITNABRRERY
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
)L MENL
—£R MEAR EFEHNR
IREE HEER More than More than REENE
Carrying @5 Within 1 year 1 year but 2 years but More than
amount Total orondemand  within2years  within5 years 5 years
ARBTR ARETR ARBTTR ARBTR ARBT R AR%TR
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
FTESRAE Non-derivative financial
liabilities
FERTER TR Trade payables 314,965 314,965 314,965 - - -
HiENFZREERE  Other payables and
accrued charges 160,634 160,634 160,634 - - -
ERHBARIFUE Amounts due to subsidiaries 2,867,801 2,867,801 2,867,801 - - -
RERARFE Advance from holding company 398,730 420,261 420,261 - - -
NAEH Corporate bond 2,992,688 3,735,000 147,000 147,000 3,441,000 -
EEN Borrowings 52,271 52,271 - 40,907 6,364 5,000
6,787,089 7,550,932 3,910,661 187,907 3,447,364 5,000
BEHREER Financial guarantee issued:
BREREE(H343)  Maximum amount
guaranteed (note 43) - 2,875,026 2,875,026 - - -
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39. €M I A 39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (continued)
(b) HREBELERKR(E) (b) Liquidity risk (continued)
y Y| The Company
T4 2012
[BHEE N Sk ok
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
—FuE WENE
—FR RENR AEUR
HHEE FEEK More than More than AENE
Carrying it Within 1 year 1 year but 2 years but More than
amount Total orondemand  within2years  within 5 years 5 years
ARETR ARETT ARBFT ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
TESRAE Non-derivative financial
liabilities
ERERR Trade payables 154,474 164,474 154,474 - - -
EREE Bills payable 35911 35911 35,911 - - -
Hi N7 R fEstEE  Other payables and accrued
charges 64,962 64,962 64,962 - - -
ERHBARTE Amounts due to subsidiaries 3,130,267 3,130,267 3,130,267 - - -
RERARFE Advance from holding company 792,960 937,458 441,738 20,552 61,656 413512
figt Borrowings 11,364 11,364 - - - 11,364
4,189,938 4,334,436 3,827,352 20,552 61,656 424,876

B2 HBER - Financial guarantee issued:
BSERSH (F3T43)  Maximum amount guaranteed
(note 43) - 1,637,288 1,537,288 - -
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (continued)

39. €M I AW
() FIERMR (c) Interest rate risk
(i) FrEY ZFIEE (i)

RZEF B RITER
BRRBERERER B30
BEPEREBEEERESR
E.&ZJK AIESZREREF

ﬁ‘ﬁ%ﬁ RN Riog
é‘ﬂ& DA - B R
REFENEZETZ ARESE
SREERARRARAZRAE
BERERER - REERARRAF]
WEETEMNERESINEE
HAI=E s o

RNEBRAARZHERREE
ZEREMBEEBERERER
B MEMERE  RITR
® - BPFRRBRITER R

TRERBAOGFHRR T —=
F+ZA=+—ANFEFEN
T036%%E26%2 H( = =
— ZF:035%E26%)° R
—E—=F+ZA=+—8"

URFBERERERZFEN
T4.8% £8.25% 3% £ 6%
(Z2—=%F 14.68%?;9%&
T) o REBRARARIER -

ﬁﬁ%&@ﬁﬁﬁ%%2ﬂ¥
DRI FESS ~ 32 R34 FE -

Exposure to interest rate risk

Bank deposits, discounted bills and loans receivable,
borrowings, customer deposits and obligations under
finance leases issued at variable rates expose the
Group and the Company to cash flow interest rate
risk, and held-to-maturity investments, advance from
holding company, borrowings and corporate bond
issued at fixed rates expose the Group and the
Company to fair value interest rate risk. The Group
and the Company does not carry out any hedging
activities to manage its interest rate exposure.

The Group and the Company's interest rate risk
arises primarily from discounted bills and loans
receivable, borrowings, obligations under finance
leases, cash at banks, customer deposits and bank
deposits. The annual interest rates for cash at banks
and bank deposits ranging from 0.35% to 2.6% as at
31 December 2013 (2012: 0.35% to 2.6%). The
interest rates for discounted bills and loans receivable
ranging from 4.8% to 8.25% and 3% to 6% at 31
December 2013 (2012: 4.68% to 9% and nil). The
interest rates of the Group and the Company's
borrowings, customer deposit and obligations under
finance leases are disclosed in note 33, 32 and 34

respectively.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

39. @I Hwm
() FEERR(E) (c)
(i) SEEZH (ii)

B =R 0.5% M FT A H
HEERFIE  AEEFRA
B m N RRE R F K IE
o E A #9 A R 48,748,000
T(ZE—ZF(KEY) 1
m. A AR 37,564,000
JT) e

L BREEDITER - RER
BERRMNEDLEE  Ale
BARE 2 RBREN RRE
mAERK BN R 8 o BN IR
HRAN SR B A5 m B R R 3R 00T
EMETAMARRSRERN
KRBT ARBERTEEE
MERBEMAZZE iR
RENEBY 2 FRCFER
e A NiRE_FT——F
MRz ZEHETT -

R R EA B R R AR AR
TRE BAEEINGEESD
A7 o

EEERR  BREINILR

EERRAEMEER  BHFER
ZREBRI R RREESEEARZ
R o

Sensitivity analysis

If interest rates had been 0.5% higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group's profit
after tax and retained profits for the year would
increase/decrease by approximately RMB48,748,000
(2012 (restated): increase/decrease RMB37,564,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group's profit after tax
and retained profits that would arise assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the end
of the reporting period. In respect of the exposure to
cash flow interest rate risk arising from variable rate
non-derivative instruments held by the Group at the
end of the reporting period, the impact on the
Group's profit after tax and retained profits is
estimated as an annualised impact of such a change
in interest rates. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2012.

No sensitivity analysis is presented by the Company
as the exposure is considered insignificant.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.
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39. €M I AW
(d) EH¥EE

ARBIRI B HRIBRINE - FIEY
RARE ZINEXZUABEBHEA
R1TTARRITDHEMERER
BINEZ S RIMEETT - SNER FH K
M2 ERBARBITAMER - ZE
TREZEGTERRE—EFAA
ALK ZER T -

SNENK(BRERNERTE) A
BFRERIMNE (HBURRAEEIA
SN 2 BN s s BRI L
BERARBITLIETT -

AEEZAETRITRSET - BUER
ﬁ&%ﬁ%%u%%ﬁﬁoﬁﬁﬁm
Heh— B AR BRgINRIE
4 MERH—RIAETTHE » E
EEINESLEREINERR o
HEEAR - HBFIIREINER L -
£ ESHEH A ARE6,280,000,000
T2 T — — F: AR K
315,000,000) - LA E LASETTEHE
ZEmAERR

(i) FrE#z & %EmE

TRAVRIREHREAEE
RELNBBTEZNREE A
INEHNEZDHEREESRA
BEAEE 2 SRR -

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (continued)

(d)

Currency risk

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. All
foreign exchange transactions involving RMB must take
place through the People’s Bank of China (“PBOC") or
other financial institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign
exchange. The exchange rate adopted for foreign exchange
transactions are the rates of exchange quoted by the PBOC
that would be subject to a managed float against an
unspecified basket of currencies.

Foreign currency payments, including the remittance of
earnings outside the PRC, are subject to the availability of
foreign currency (which depends on the foreign currency
denominated earnings of the Group) or must be arranged
through the PBOC with government approval.

Certain cash at bank balances, trade receivables and trade
payables of the Group are denominated in foreign
currencies. One of the subsidiary of the Group’s business
is overseas construction contracts, and these contracts are
generally settled in US Dollars (“US$"). They primarily use
foreign currency contracts to hedge its foreign currency risk.
As at the end of the reporting period, they entered into
foreign currency contracts with notional amounts of
approximately RMB6,280,000,000 (2012: RMB315,000,000)
to hedge its financial assets exposure in USS$.

(i)  Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group's exposure at
the end of the reporting period to currency risk
arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.
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39. €M I AW

(d)

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (continued)

ErEk(58) (d) Currency risk (continued)
(i) FrEYzE%ERE (&) (i)  Exposure to currency risk (continued)
2013 2012
AR¥T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&&=751)
(restated)
rEH The Group
INEAHEZ S RVEE ¢ Financial assets denominated in
foreign currencies:
7 U B R N EL A JE U R Trade receivables and other receivable 1,267,441 1,471,324
RITEFNERS Bank balances and cash 1,619,194 1,140,804
2,886,635 2,612,128
SREELTSISNEEE :© The financial assets were denominated
in the following foreign currencies:
BT EUR 6,554 85,183
ETT usD 2,797,514 2,513,889
BT HKD 76 75
Efef& IDR 10,270 460
Ry EE Sudanese pound 16,588 7,602
EEHMAE PKR 54,319 2,978
Hith Others 1,314 1,941
2,886,635 2,612,128
SN EZERIAE Financial liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies:
FEASH BR FX % E b fE A~ Z008 Trade payables and other payables 276,107 124,144
BN Borrowings 20,028 16,970
296,135 141,114
SEBEUTYSNESE ©  The financial liabilities were denominated
in the following foreign currency:
BT EUR 221 -
ETT usb 295,767 85,632
ENZ &L INR 147 55,482
296,135 141,114

EAREHEK AR AEUE
AL R SN R R
BE o A T M0 S M L
TEAX -

At the end of the reporting period, the Company's
exposure to currency risk arising from recognised
assets or liabilities denominated in currency other
than the functional currency of the Company was not

significant.
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39. €M I AW
(d) E#Ek(E)
(i) SEEZH

TRIVRAREE Z B B2

RASEHHE RS
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ERZEXRZEH(R
SEAER L RS AT EARR
mEEz NEZEEH(BEMRHZE

BE-T—=F+-A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(ii)  Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group's profit after tax and the Group's
other components of equity that would arise if

3) foreign exchange rates to which the Group has

significant exposure at the end of the reporting

fE RS EE) o period had changed at that date, assuming all other
risk variables remained constant.
2013 2012
HERBLERR H BRI 5 A
RRBER MR &
EztH A% HEMES pd-7 S E fth i 2
(&) Effect on WrzEE Effect on a7
Increase/ profit after Effect on profit after Effect on
(decrease) in taxation and other taxation and other
foreign retained components retained components
exchange rate profits of equity profits of equity
AR® T AR®T R AREEF T AREEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(k&%) (k&%)
(restated) (restated)
Bt EUR 5% 269 - 3,620 -
(5%) (269) - (3,620) -
=TT usb 5% 106,324 (252,086) 34,718 (13,180)
(5%) (106,324) 252,086 (34,718) 13,180
BT HKD 5% 3 - 3 -
(5%) (3) - (3) -
ENEE IDR 5% 436 - 20 -
(5%) (436) - (20) -
R Sudanese 5% 705 - 323 -
pound (5%) (705) - (323) -
EEHENE PKR 5% 2,309 - 127 -
Et (5%) (2,309) - (127) -
ENEEL  INR 5% (6) - (2,358) -
(5%) 6 - 2,358 -

R E 0 A TH R AR E

—i—i‘ZEjJJE

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in

AREMASEBENIREBHRE
ﬁﬁ@%%ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ@l
BoZnoMhkE_—_T——4F
AR 2 EAEHEAT ©

MR AR X B)A B LB AR 2 1R
Tl HAEBEINGRED
#r o

foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the end of reporting period. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2012.

No sensitivity analysis is presented by the Company
as the exposure is considered insignificant.
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39. €M I AW
(d) E#Ek(E)
(i) BBESH (&)

MIEW  BURRE AT AR

ERERNEERERR  RAR
E%%ZHI&AI*&B%%&EE
Mz Eg o

(e) KRERM

AEBRARRADERRZIEE
Z i &éﬁ@&? PRBEE g o

AEBRARRZ EMHRER LEE
HFRPENE LT - BEHHERS
MRS ZRE THIRIE S A B E R
7 EARRR T R B R E b 1T R IGIRAE
HEBzRR  URAEBERAREZ
MBETHFE2MIEL -

RIZB—=F+-A=1t—8 KR
HERTES LA (TER)E% (=
T—_%:5%) MABEMEER
FAE - AAKERARFZERHIE
AR BT

(d)

(e)

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (continued)

Currency risk (continued)
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (continued)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent currency risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

Equity price risk

The Group and the Company are exposed to equity price
changes arising from equity investments classified as
trading securities.

The Group’s and the Company's listed investments are
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Decisions to buy or
sell trading securities are based on daily monitoring of the
performance of individual securities compared to that of
the relevant stock market index and other industry
indicators, as well as the Group’'s and the Company's
liquidity needs.

At 31 December 2013, it is estimated that an increase/
(decrease) of 5% (2012: 5%) in the relevant stock market
index with all other variables held constant, would have
increased/decreased the Group's and the Company's profit
after tax as follows:

2013 2012
BT BEF SR A
RREH BRI
pe pa 7

Effect on Effect on
profit after profit after
tax and tax and
retained retained
profits profits
AR%T T ARETF T
RMB’000 RMB'000

EERERKSEE  Change in the relevant

ZEH equity price risk
variable:
RHMEEFH Trading securities

#hn Increase 5% 62,889 5% 68,077
PR Decrease (5%) (62,889) (5%) (68,077)

N
—
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

39. €M I AEw®w
(e) MERR(E)
HEREDTATERE AERRAR
ZBREE R e SN 2 B '?7
THRERBTIES v BN REIER

(f)

BOEL YOEAREHTEASE
E&$Qﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ§ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ
EREEREERBR 2 SHBIA - I)
ﬁ SAREERAARESIREZ AR
BEGREE BB TIESZ FEK
HEBEMES  MATEEMESY
BT - EZIE ST IR E T — =
FHRZZEEET -

BERERR  GFRESTILARERE
NERERR - BFEELZERT KRR
BREBEFEANZER

DABEFE
(i) BAABHETEBZEHBEER

TREJNRHREBREZE B
RREEAFZ 1R [ AABE
HEJ%%EZEmQﬁﬁ@E
MO EAREMEEESE 2K
%l&$ AL IAENRE
B ARBEEFEZDERA
T2 BEESETABABZ
AR EEEEFNT

B—H AEAABERER
E: BE—RBARE -

Bl =E HEIER &
EXAER é%m%
EZREARRE

E_H/ HEAREBENER

tE: E_RBARE A
RERFE—RZATE
S AME - AYE
EREETAERE
ABE - TRIEEH
BRI EREIS T 5
B2 ARIE

B=R ABRAABERER
HE: B2 AERE AR
3

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (continued)

(e)

(f)

Equity price risk (continued)

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group's and the Company’s profit after tax that
would arise assuming that the changes in the stock market
index had occurred at the end of the reporting period and
had been applied to re-measure those financial instruments
held by the Group and the Company which expose the
Group and the Company to equity price risk at the end of
the reporting period. It is also assumed that the fair values
of the Group’s and the Company’'s equity investments
would change in accordance with the historical correlation
with the relevant stock market index, and that all other
variables remain constant. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2012.

In management’'s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent equity price risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the
year.

Fair value measurements

(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's and the Company'’s financial instruments
measured at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair
value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities at
the measurement date

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level
2 inputs i.e. observable inputs
which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are
not available

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs
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T—HLEFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (continued)

(i) BAAEBENBZLHBEER

(f)  Fair value measurements (continued)

(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair

=F 169 value (continued)
rEE The Group
R-ZB-—Z=F+=-A=+—-HHEZE
UT#/BIZAAREETE
Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2013 categorised into
R-ZB—=F
+=B=+-H
ZAREE F—R& FZR E=H
Fair value at
31 December
2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ARET AR%F T AR%F T AR%T T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
REMEAR Recurring fair value
BEFE measurements
BE Assets:
PTEemITA Derivative financial
instruments
— RHISNE — foreign currency
B4 forward contracts 117,933 - 117,933 -
R4 FEH Trading securities 1,532,390 1,532,390 - -
1,650,323 1,532,390 117,933 -

N
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39. ST A 39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (continued)
( 2AREESEE) (fl  Fair value measurements (continued)
(i) BAABHEGTEBZEHBEER (i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
EE(E) value (continued)
REE(E) The Group (continued)

RZE——_F+_A=+—HoEx
UT#BIz 2 BEFE
Fair value measurements as at

31 December 2012 categorised into
RZTB——%F
+-A=+—H

ZANEE E—& -y 4§ E=MH

Fair value at
31 December

2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
AREBTT AREBTT ARETT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
REMEAR Recurring fair value
EEGE measurements
BE - Assets:
TESMIT A Derivative financial
instruments
— = HASNE — foreign currency
a4 forward contracts 15,422 - 15,422 -
RS HEFEH Trading securities 1,601,800 1,601,800 - -

1,617,222 1,601,800 15,422 -
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39. ST A 39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (continued)
( 2AREESEE) (fl  Fair value measurements (continued)
(i) BARBHETEBZEHBEER (i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
EBE(E) value (continued)
AT The Company

R-ZE-Z=ZF+ZA=+—HSEZE
UTHRBI2 DA EEE
Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2013 categorised into

R-B-—=%
+=A=+-—H
ZAREE B =R B=/R
Fair value at
31 December
2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
AR¥T T AR¥T AR®T R AR®T R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
REMEAR Recurring fair value
EEE measurements
BE Assets:
RS M EH Trading securities 1,532,390 1,532,390 - -
RZE——F+-A=+—HoE=
UTRAIZ AR EEE
Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2012 categorised into
R_ZE——4%F
+-A=+—8H
ZRNREE E—& E_ FE=M
Fair value at
31 December
2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ARETFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BEHEDR Recurring fair value
EEE measurements
BE: Assets:

RS EH Trading securities 1,601,800 1,601,800 - -

N
N
w

€10z Hoday [enuuy polwi Auedwo) ou108|3 uigleH



224

Su

EHEY KRR

B €L0Z

Bt 75 3 3% MY & ()

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

39. €M I AW

(f)

DAEEEE)

i) BAABETAEBZEZBEER
BE(E)

HE-_ZT—=—FR_T—=F
+-A=+—HItFER &
— AR B T A o A A EE K e
%o

FE_RATEFERAMHET
ERBABIE

EMINES DA BETIER
EERZEMER T E - A
HFBEE MR ERE -

(ii) WHURXABEARHZEHT
AzZAREE

AR AN Sl B SE A R ABR 2 AN
BrRAAREMTAEZEREE
HER_T—=FR_FT—=
FE+-A=+—HZAREE
WEEAEE -

40. WEBHB AR, MEBQ T 24
ShRERR

(a)

WERB=FEREEREEAA

BHE-_Z—=F+-"F=+—HIF
B AEEEF—BFHEERER
RE=FERHBERAR([=FIZE])
BEEE  —FBrEER=-FIHE
SRR EBELAIRESIEL S
K o R —IEDRFARSEE 2 =Fd
BERKE=FEFEBRAR (K
E=F1Z5 1) H940.7% AR #E « AN A A
BXEYSEH  ARARFEREIR
REB=FEEESSHRAZHE
BEENFEREB=FE 2 B3R - A
RAEREB=FREEFE - ZA7A]
R-E—=ZF+A=Z+HKALEE
WEBRAT] -

REB=FIZEBUEFE  £EKH
EE(CREHECEE Y KR
M 2E MIREEETEMR
HERE R B R B o

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (continued)

(f)

Fair value measurements (continued)

(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2013 and
2012, there were no significant transfers between
Level 1 and Level 2.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair
value measurements.

The fair value of foreign currency forward contracts
is measured using forward exchange rates at the end
of the reporting period with the resulting value
discounted back to present value.

(ii)  Fair values of financial instruments carried at
other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group's and the
Company's financial instruments carried at cost or
amortised cost are not materially different from their
fair values as at 31 December 2013 and 2012.

40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/
ADDITIONAL INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

Acquisition of RB=FIEZHEFREE LT

During the year ended 31 December 2013, one of the Group's
available-for-sale investments M EEE = FTRA DA R AR (“ =7
22") had been liquidated. Assets of =7F|5z were distributed to the
equity owners of =#|g3 by proportion to their ownership
percentage. One of the assets of =#//2z distributed to the Group
was 40.7% of equity interests of FXEB=FIGEFREBR AR ("AK
#B=FIZ5"). The directors of the Company concluded that it has
control over X#B=7/|3¢ as the Company has the power to cast
the majority of votes at meetings of the board of directors of FX#B
=735 that has the ability to affect the returns of FKEB=FZ5. BX
#B=Fg5 which became a subsidiary of the Group on 30 July
2013.

FX#=F25 is principally engaged in development, production
and sale of electrochemical surface ceramicised light alloy
materials and relevant technology; manufacture, processing
and trading of electricity products, relevant raw materials and
accessories.
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40. WEMIB AT MBE LG 25
INERS ()

(a)

WK =FERERREELH

(%)

KRR R SRR RWBEER D AL

40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/
ADDITIONAL INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

(a) Acquisition of B & =FIZEF ZEFREE A A (continued)

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of

BEYESENT acquisition:
ARBT T
RMB'000
Y~ WENEE Property, plant and equipment 26,919
T ER Prepaid lease payments 8,727
B|ILEE Intangible assets 878
IEEFTEE B Deferred tax assets 388
=8 Inventories 19,058
FEYBR N Trade receivables 14,967
HEM UK - 1&e RIENRIA Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 5,221
ReMAeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 6,849
AR Trade payables (8,348)
HAaENR - BT E R MBI Other payables, accruals and provisions (28,064)
Blkize Deposits received (1,040)
RMGBEE R FIRIE Advance from HE Corporation (1,400)
&3k Borrowings (10,000)
Al E RS Tax recoverables 914
35,069
EE2 Non-controlling interests (20,801)
14,268

FHEBRSEEREAERER =
SRR TR E 8D - KA
EARAEE 2z Al i SR E B
R o NEEWE B UFERCER = FIZE 2
NREHE -

The above assets obtained and liabilities assumed
represent part of the consideration received upon
liquidation of = & Z& which was de-recognised as the
Group's available-for-sales investments during the year. No
cash consideration was paid by the Group for acquisition of

REB=F55 .
ARETFT
RMB’000
WIS SBIRFE AR M AFRE ¢ Net cash inflow arising on acquisition:

NIRE T AHRE Consideration paid in cash -
FrUs B RIT#E A IR & Bank balances and cash acquired 6,849

HUBENBRAI RS R Net cash inflow of cash and cash equivalents
ReZEEM 2B eRAFRE in respect of the acquisition of the subsidiary 6,849

N
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

40. WEMIB AT MBE LG 25
IMESR ()

(a)

(b)

WK =FERERREELH
(#&)

() EURERR R E A EWRIEZ A
REERARE 14,967,000 7T
M A R %3,645,0007T © HHE
T 5% 55 P U B W AR R e EL At
KRBz RENSHE - &
PR BRI AREIRIAR
BAargm .

(i)  AEREREBEREKB=FEFE
B Z LI RRRERR SR A 2 -

(il M-ZT—=% REB=FT5
AEEZEBERMOARE
21,900,000 7T ° B Wi E1E A
2+ i A A R #1,900,000 7T
B AT —ZEFHF - ik
BER—_Z—=F—F—B%
B ZAREAEEEHE=T
—=F+-A=+—HItFE
ZEEBER RN ETES
RER -

BHE-T—=F+-"A=1+—HLHF
B AEERENBSARKERES

BT BRETAR(AIREBE
BAREOLH) BRAA]) Z3EE
RRAE AR E — P EZM B AR 2
fi&#E - REA AR 84,197,0007T ©
ARBEZNB AR 2 EIMER - &
fib 7% 15 1% o0 A R % 16,808,000 7T
m3EEREZRB KD ARE
101,165,0007C - HEE R ZZF —
F-REBEEZWEZMERATREA
R #84,197,000 T 6 —HHIEIH & X
5 WERGRARERERP R

40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/
ADDITIONAL INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

(a)

(b)

Acquisition of FEF=FIZEFEFREE LT (continued)

(i) The fair values of trade receivables and other
receivables amounted to RMB14,967,000 and
RMB3,645,000 respectively which were same as the
gross contractual amounts of these trade and other
receivables acquired. None of the contractual cash
flows of the above amounts were estimated to be
uncollectible.

(i) The Group recognised the non-controlling interests at
the proportionate share of net assets of A &P =725 .

(i A #B = # =5 contributed approximately
RMB21,900,000 to the Group’s turnover for 2013.
Included in the year 2013 profit for the year was a
profit of RMB1,900,000 by BX # = F| ¢ since its
acquisition. Had the acquisition been completed on 1
January 2013, there would have no significant
difference on the impact on the Group's turnover and
profit for the year ended 31 December 2013.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
acquired further equity interests of its subsidiary namely %5
FEEM (BT ) AR ELAR (formerly known as “1BE
BAEEE (VIE) BRAE]") from the non-controlling equity
owners of the subsidiary at a consideration of
RMB84,197,000. Due to the acquisition of additional
interests in the subsidiary, the other reserve had increased
by RMB16,808,000 and the non-controlling interests had
decreased by RMB101,165,000. The consideration payable
for the acquisition of additional interest in the subsidiary in
an amount of RMB84,197,000, which subsequently settled
in January 2014, represents a non-cash transaction which
is not reflected in the consolidated statement of cash

flows.
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40. WENBE AR, HERRZH
SMERR ()

(b)

(c)

(d)

(8)
o - AR B IR H B A B R AR
ERERAR AR Z IEERERRR
E-SWEZME LR 2 IR - 2R
EAARKEG647,0007T - mPRUREEZ
M AR ZBEIMER - EAb LG N
AR#103,0007T M IE#ZE R4 B
ﬂ > AR B 590,000 7T Y BE % Y B
RIEINEE ENREARYE
647,000 CIE—HIERMERH » WK
RiFERERERP R o

RZZ—=FNA AEEEKRA—
R E A RIS E 3 E R BER T2
ZRLERAF(THEHRL)EEA
R # 40,000,000 7T ° #ff 3¢ 0 B
BIRK S - EETFEK DB ERELR
BHE o« T EGHAEERHATA L2
R — 18 18.33% « AEBMNE
BRI B IR 166.67% 1 o B
REE HtfFEHERDARE
3,089,000 7T - 1M FF 2 A 42 7 BIJ 4% A0
AR% 3,089,000 T °

RZZE—Z—F+—F  AEEZKA
MEBEREREREEAR ([HRED
A1) B FEFEAR AR SR 3 — 2P BB SRNE
A B114% Mk E RE AR
36,975,000 7T © $f & 2~ & 7 B Ak
S AR B ESRIE A E o R
N E A RIE R 7190.94% AR o
H IR B SRR A R RE MRS - B AL
&1 hin A R #6,780,000 7T + 1M 3E 4%
& iEzE > AR 43,755,000 7T ©

40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/
ADDITIONAL INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(continued)

In addition, the Group acquired further equity interests of
its subsidiary E B &l ZE B E /A R 2 & from the non-
controlling equity owners of the subsidiary at an aggregate
consideration of RMB647,000. Due to the acquisition of
additional interests in the subsidiary, the other reserve had
increased by RMB103,000 and the non-controlling interests
had decreased by RMB590,000. The consideration payable
for the acquisition of additional interest in the subsidiary in
an amount of RMB647,000 represents a non-cash
transaction which is not reflected in the consolidated
statement of cash flows.

In September 2013, the Group had completed a capital
contribution of RMB40,000,000 to one of its subsidiaries,
FRERBRARIEARRFTOBRAR ("HRHPL ")

7% EP I» established in the PRC to engage in research and
development of hydropower generation equipment
engineerisation technology. The capital contribution
resulted the Group an increase of further 8.33% equity
interest on #ff 5 A1 1, prior to the capital contribution, the
Group had 66.67% equity interest in #ff3t# Lx. Due to the
capital contribution, the other reserves had decreased an
amount of RMB3,089,000 while the non-controlling interest

had increased an amount of RMB3,089,000.

In November 2012, the Group completed the acquisition of a
further 1.14% equity interest in M ASBEM B R E XA A
("$R1E A7 "), a company established in the PRC to engage
in manufacturing of boilers in the PRC for a consideration of
RMB36,975,000 from the non-controlling shareholder of $&1&
/X |]. Prior to the acquisition, the Group had 90.94% equity
interest in  # /& 2 A]. Due to the acquisition of additional
interest in A /& /A &), the other reserves had increased by
RMB®6,780,000 while the non-controlling interests had
decreased by RMB43,755,000.
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41. HEHEB AT 41.

RZB-—ZFt A AEBEREH [N
BARMBAERE/ KEREBEREEL
([ KE DRI - Bt - PKED

BRMBRR -
BHRERS -

BARAREEFERE It

ERHERREERBENHEE BN

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

In July 2012, the Group lost its control over its subsidiary namely
BMEEWRE/ KERZEEREMTDR ("/VIKE"). As a result, /]°
7K T ceased to be a subsidiary and become available-for-sale
investment of the Group. This represents a non-cash transaction.

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of the above

HEWESIE NI AEE

EEWMT : company disposed of as at the dates of disposal were as follows:
ARBT T

RMB'000

HENFEE Net assets disposed of

W% - WER&HE Property, plant and equipment 14
IR TBE E Deferred tax assets 501
=8 Inventories 3,683
FEUT AR X Trade receivables 10,552
EMEWER - me KB FEIA Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 1,825
HERIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 22,109
FEATERFK Trade payables (1,142)
Bz e Deposits received (2,617)
34,825

The gain on disposal is calculated as follows:

RERE Cash consideration -
REEFHEEERENER Fair value of interest retained in available-for-sale
NREE investments 36,869
& FEE Net assets disposed of (34,825)
JEIE R i Non-controlling interests 150
B E Gain on disposal 2,194
WA G = - Satisfied by:
HHELREZ AAEE Available-for-sale investments, at fair value 36,869
[REve: Cash received _
36,869
HEEERFRE (ORE) : Net cash (outflow) arising on disposal:
BUERESRE Cash consideration received -
FItENRERIREEED Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (22,109)
HFREEMRBATINR S RES Net cash (outflow) of cash and cash equivalents
EEYWERS RE) in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries (22,109)
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42, EREE 42. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
RWMER  ARERAAFE THIER The Group and the Company had the following capital
HHE commitments at the end of reporting period:
rEE FAT
The Group The Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
AR®T R ARBETTT AR%ETR ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
BENBEREE Contracted, but not provided for
WEETSIIEE - In respect of the acquisition of:
— HE K — plant and machinery 328,503 709,196 75,929 209,353
AT RREE In respect of capital contribution to:
— B RAR — subsidiaries - - 528,376 528,376
BNt+=-A=+—H At 31 December 328,503 709,196 604,305 737,729

43. IARKME
(a) ERHHBER

RBEHAR - RARIEH—REEN
BARERRITRE W —RKIBITIE
HREHER o A QBN HE BRIBE
EELERIFEN R BERZN
BRARIOFABEBHOARE
2,875,026,000 L (ZZ—=F : AR
#1,637,288,0007T) ° "R RIEHR
R HRARRARMZERERENA
e - MEZBEROAABEI I
|EXR

43. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

Financial guarantees issued

As at the end of the reporting period, the Company has
given corporate guarantees to a bank in respect of banking
facilities granted to a wholly owned subsidiary. The
maximum liability of the Company under the guarantees
issued represents the amount drawn down by the
subsidiary of approximately RMB2,875,026,000 (2012:
RMB1,537,288,000) at the end of the reporting period. The
directors of the Company consider that the fair value of the
guarantee was insignificant as it is not probable that a claim
will be made against the Company under the guarantee.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

43. FIAREBE @)

(b) ¥

(i)

RZE—=F AEENBEA
AIMREEHBERETLQR
AEHEERSG 2 FHELER
—EER((F—READH
A RBBRANREKRREDOA
R #1,542,300 7T & X 3 F B
# AR ¥ 2,864,400 7T ©

RREERBMAREEARCD
IR & AT AR A
KL BB E f A e K
REKRAAE -REARLR
B 49 AR ¥ 3,583,000 7T ©

F-RENETNEFHRARE
PriE S RAER BB EERE R
BEERRZBITHEROARE
2,500,000 7T (R.Hi5E27) °

BERFZHARER  MBAT
ARE R R EM A LI
RERER - ARREERE
BIBIFE— SR -

43. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b)

Litigation

(i)

In 2013, a litigation was brought against the Group's
subsidiary namely, Harbin Electrical Machinery
Company Limited, by one of its suppliers (the
"Plaintiff 1”) in relation to a dispute in a purchase
transaction and claiming for an amount of
approximately RMB1,542,000 and default interest of
approximately RMB2,864,000 in respect of the
delayed payment.

Harbin Electrical Machinery Company Limited has
filed a counter-claim for an amount of approximately
RMB3,583,000 against Plaintiff 1 for the costs
suffered due to the delay in the delivery of the goods
and the repair and maintenance costs incurred for
the defected goods.

The Plaintiff 1 was granted a freezing order by Henan
Intermediate People’s Court over Harbin Electrical
Machinery Company Limited’'s bank deposits of
approximately RMB2,500,000 (see note 27).

The dispute has not been finalised and no opinion is
possible at this time as to likelihood of the outcome
of the case. The directors of the Company considered
that no further provision is required.
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43. FIAREBE @)
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(b)

(ii)

AEBHHER G EHEH#HE
—HBERGFHEHF %
HER([EZRE AL EHD -
RPN REEOARE
3,956,000t © £ = [RE AEE
M JAREES RS R
B B B4 A R ¥ 4,800,000
TTRRITER (RMFE27) - ®
WMEHRKR  ERSHORE
£ % A R # 3,956,000 7T 1 H
iR MARAIESRADA
VE#E— DB -

REERE - RREHRED
NGRS — RE AERM
o R_ZE—MNFE—H - &M
FRARZERCHHRERSE
R1T1F R4 A KR % 4,800,000
EZ/%:;:? °

b

nu

4. EXRBEBIERS

43. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b) Litigation (continued)

(ii)

A litigation was brought against the Group's
subsidiary namely, Kunming Generator, by one of its
suppliers (the “Plaintiff 2”) in relation to a dispute in
a purchase transaction claiming for an amount of
approximately RMB3,956,000 in respect of the
delayed payment. The Plaintiff 2 was granted a
freezing order by Suzhou Intermediate People’s
Court over Kunming Generator's bank deposits of
approximately RMB4,800,000 (see note 27). The
purchase amount of RMB3,956,000 had been
accrued by Kunming Generator as at the end of the
reporting period and the directors of the Company
considered that no further provision is required.

Subsequent to the reporting period, Kunming
Generator had settled the Plaintiff 2 in full for the
amount of the litigations. The Suzhou Intermediate
People’'s Court had released the freezing order over
Kunming Generator's bank deposit of approximately
RMB4,800,000 in January 2014.

44. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Z&QETED%%E;% AT ZHBAT  BE The Company is a subsidiary of HE Corporation, which is a state-
BRAABRADLE BB owned enterprise subject to the control of the State Council of
% o the PRC Government.
BRI B TS sk ﬁiﬂ B FEal 2 22 S5 - In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
AREBRFEANEMBEBEATEI LTI EKREA financial statements, the Group had the following material related
MRS party transactions with related parties during the year:
(a) WEZH (a) Financing arrangement
2013 2012
AR%F T ARETF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
RERR A TR (M EE ) Advance from holding company (note (i)) 1,761,898 1,757,108
BRI B X H Related interest expenses 23,431 480
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Notes:

(i)

The balance of the advance from holding company
comprises of non-interest bearing loans amounting to
RMB3,500,000 (2012: RMB366,430,000) and interest
bearing loans of RMB1,758,398,000 (2012:
RMB1,390,678,000) with annual interest rate of 5.4%.
Details of terms and conditions of the loan from holding
company are disclosed in note 31.
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4. ERBEH IS ®

(b)

44. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

BEEXRS (b) Trading transactions
2013 2012
AR¥T T AREEF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
HEEM Sales of goods
— BERMEAF] — Fellow subsidiaries 22,125 38,448
HREEEM Purchases of goods
— BERMEAR — Fellow subsidiaries 179,842 190,050
AR 7% & U A Service fee income
— BERMEATR — Fellow subsidiaries 24 8,033
— ERAR — Holding company 2,067 -
R &R Service fee expenses
— BERMEAR] — Fellow subsidiaries 89,917 55,161

LRSI AREBRE RN 215 ERH
BRE  BEAXSFHEENARFH
HR-_ZE-—ZTF+-_A=+TZBRZ=
E-=F=A-+HBZ M-

BB M SRR H I 5l 2 7%
EX G REBRFARMEEE A
RHEER BEEQRBERS
B BB AR ARE29,000
7T AR #43,038,0007T K A R
28,000 (=T ——F(&F3) : AR
¥z - AR 140,431,000 7T K& A
RME&ETT) o

HERRE - RBWARRIRE
H R FE IRFRAETT ©

The above transactions were also continuing connected
transactions of the Group during the year and the details of
the transactions have been set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 22 December 2010 and 25 March
2013.

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group had sales of goods to,
purchases of goods from and service fee received from
associates for an amount of RMB29,000, RMB43,038,000
and RMB28,000 (2012 (restated): RMBnil,
RMB140,431,000 and RMBnil) during the year respectively.

The sales and purchases, service income and expenses
were conducted in accordance with mutually agreed terms.
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4. EXRBEHHERS ®)

(b)

BEXS (B)
THEERFGELEZEBRNFRHER

44. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

Trading transactions (continued)

The following balances arising from trading transactions

8 were outstanding at the end of the year:
A Eer] FERIE
Amounts due from Amounts due to
2013 2012 2013 2012
AR®TT ARETTT AR®TR ARBEFT
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
(feED)
(restated)
ERAF] Holding company - - 9,784 478
EES =N Fellow subsidiaries 175,206 111,832 65,336 48,993
NG| Associates 15,124 83,964 28,261 37,002
FifzE - Note:

() HEFERERR RONAR

s
ToREE -

(i) The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand.
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4. EXRBEHHERS ®)

(c) HMBARABEAIRHZERRER
BR#%

44. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c)

Deposits and loan services provided to related parties
by Finance Company

2013 2012
AR¥T T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&E5)
(restated)
ERPEFRZHMEMRX Interest expenses for customer deposits:

— PR A A — Holding company 823 817
— BRWBAF] — Fellow subsidiaries 487 457
— B R — Associates 17 44
1,327 1,318

ERNMAIRER Z A BUA Interest income for loans and bills

discounting:

— ZER A A — Holding company 714 -
— BRWB AT — Fellow subsidiaries 10 16
724 16

FEERASBA Handling charges and commission

income:

— AR A A — Holding company 353 -
— RRWB AT — Fellow subsidiaries 5 16
— BN A — Associates 4 3
362 19

EEEH - BRRMBER R
sEhEARRTEES 2 B ERER
RARIEMET -

BERFERRERZE—FFHB R
M FE32 K22 -

Interest rates for customer deposits, loans and bills
discounting were determined with reference to the interest
rates adopted by financial institutions as regulated by the
People’s Bank of China.

Further details of deposits and loans with related parties
are set out in notes 32 and 22 respectively.
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4. EXRBEHHERS ®)

(d)

(e)

(f)

AEERETUTHRERERS :

REE-_ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t
FE AEESRAKREEE AR R
HERWB R AEARTE#AD BR
AFWEE B DT Z242% K% 4% B
T B ERARM 149,890,000 7T
(Mf3E3) -

FEEMBEETRMAZER

WZZE—=F+=-A=+—H BKE
EEAFREBEARBIVETZA
EENRES (M7 RBEH—IES
G RTAEE 2 KEEEER -

FEEEIEEEASHH

TREEABZHM (BRI ESH
BRERARFEENZFR)NT

44. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

The Group effected the following non-recurring

transactions:

During the year 31 December 2013, the Group has
acquired 42% and 4% equity interests in Finance Company
from HE Corporation and its fellow subsidiary, Jiamusi
Electric Machine Company Limited respectively, for an
aggregate consideration of RMB149,890,000 (note 3).

Guarantees provided by related parties of the Group:

As at 31 December 2013, HE Corporation has provided an
unconditional and irrevocable joint liability guarantee in
respect of the Group's corporate bond with a nominal value
of RMBS3 billion (note 37).

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

Compensation for key management personnel, including
amounts paid to the Company's directors as disclosed in
note 8, is as follows:

2013 2012

ARBT ARBTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

HHERERF Short-term employee benefits 3,185 2,046
B AR N ET B R Contributions to post-employment benefits

schemes 623 423

3,808 2,469

BIMAZE—FRHBEARMBEERE
KzE6(0) °

Further details of staff costs are included in note 6(b) to the

financial statements.
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4. ERBEH IS ®

(9)

(h)

BEHMPEREEX RS RER

AEE B2 ENRERRER LR
EhBEERAEA SRR (TE
BEEDXE - i NEEXRSR
B BB R ERE R RET
SERAN—HD - REREEER
FA RAE b SO B 1 [B) 5B 8 2 Bl
IR ARETFEEMEBRE
BEBER -EFERR %FEEDL
EEEASBETERR S ER LB
BIUE=F °

AEEREEMCEBLENRHHE
HEFEEBEXRBRELBERS  TERD
HITRERBEBLE -

AEBEDEEERXIVEZERS
BREELRE  TERAGKESE

REEHR - BRBARAFRMED
ATEMERERESEAARE
528,376,000 T (—ZE——4F : AR
528,376,0007T) °

45. FERRREARER

44. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

45.

(9)

(h)

Transactions and balances with other state-controlled
entities in the PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment currently
predominated by entities directly or indirectly owned or
controlled by the PRC government (“state-controlled
entities”). In addition, the Group itself is part of a larger
group of companies under HE Corporation, which is
controlled by the PRC government. Apart from the
transactions with HE Corporation and fellow subsidiaries
disclosed above, the Group also conducts business with
other state-controlled entities. The directors consider those
state-controlled entities are independent third parties so far
as the Group's business transactions with them are
concerned.

In establishing its pricing strategies and approval process
for transactions with other state-controlled entities, the
Group does not differentiate whether the counter-party is a
state-controlled entity or not.

The Group has entered into various transactions, including
sales and purchases, and maintained trade balances with
state-controlled entities.

The capital commitment at the end of reporting period in
respect of capital contribution from the Company to
subsidiaries amounted to RMB528,376,000 (2012:
528,376,000).

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

After the end of the reporting period, the directors of the

Company proposed a final dividend. Further details are disclosed
in note 38(b).
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46. AR ST fhEH R M Ef

AR REE A M ISR 2 hat KA - 75
ENBELRIEMAR (BREHAKRE
BRBEATHREARBRBRZEM) MIEL
AEBELABARR Z A RERE - Rt
R ENEHATE S BEHERS
RIER - A @HEERBBEZRAEE
RERZEZ G MMBERERZSREEE
ERERME

(a) BVEATTARIEERIR

RNEEBEBNPBRDEMEH - NE
TR ER BB R AR REA
TEHHE - KER S RFTEZRKRE
ERERBEEBPEERETE - WG
MEB 2 RERIBLERE R &L
e BREEESTEELmREE
E 2R Z S H RRER B o
R-ZE—=F+-A=+—8 " [Ef
TCEMMSHMNEAMENAARE
136,490,000 T( — & — —F (K&
7))« AR#518,432,0007T) °

BN ERER A EEE REERT
S F LA B RS M AT 0B 2 AR
8 MEMREBEE TR
ERZIELERE - HIBHEFE LG
TR BREEGTER@GTE

BRI TEMER - R_T—=F
TZA=t+—HELEHEEERARE
MEBE>INNDAEARE
297,354,000 T(ZE——F : AR
288,542,0007T) & A R # 17,690,000
T(ZF—ZF: ARH¥396,000
L) e R ZE—=F+=-A=+—8H
RERNAARBEBBURATNHE
REEHAARM2017,173,0007T
(ZZT—=%: AK®2,101,153,000
TT) e

46. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the consolidated
financial statements are evaluated and based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. The Group makes estimates and assumptions

concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates
and assumptions that may have a significant effect on the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities mainly include those

related to manufacturing activities of main thermal power
equipments.

(a)

Current taxation and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to Enterprise Income Tax in the PRC.
Judgement is required in determining the amount of the
provision for taxation and the timing of payment of the
related taxation. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
periods in which such determination is made. As at 31
December 2013, the carrying amount of Enterprise Income
Tax payable was approximately RMB136,490,000 (2012
(restated): RMB518,432,000).

Deferred taxation relating to certain temporary deductible
differences is recognised as management considers it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the temporary deductible differences or tax losses
can be utilised. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred taxation in the periods in which
such estimate is changed. The carrying value of deferred
tax assets and liabilities at 31 December 2013 were
approximately RMB297,354,000 (2012: RMB288,542,000)
and RMB17,690,000 (2012: RMB396,000) respectively.
The amount of unrecognised unused tax losses and
deductible temporary differences at 31 December 2013
was approximately RMB2,017,173,000 (2012:
RMB2,101,153,000).
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46. BEE AT RHAE @)

(b)

(c)

7 & MR

EREHEMTBREFERTERRS
MIIZRF SRR - BEFEHEE
R IRFE (A& T 58K
SHE R AIET TR A REITHE
e BT AR (b AT AR AR ) 1 29 PR & R % 88 17
EIEE #ITRE - TS et A
WEMERAELEEERS  $2YH7F
EEHEHEERE RZT—=F
TZA=T-HTFENRAENAA
R#14,346,742,0000( —F—— 4 :
AFR#12,356,211,0007T) °

SANFT FE 2(0) B2 2(w) (i) BT 2 B FiT
R - BREARIRE Z WA KE i
RAR - BURREEHEE A R R
B LR BAIE R IR - BEEAE
& 2 3 BRAE B R AR B AR )R
MY - AEEEDGER - DER
THEEEDEZRMEE - BETK
R 75 2 Bl A Je W 2k g AT Se TR AT o B
bt HEEHBEEERA - K24
WIEEZ W (B EFZERT
BRETSREAEEREAETK
TRMERL AT B IR 2% F o oh
BN B EE S M A AR EE 2 BB A R AT e
RN IIERRE B RTIER T
(ERHEE BB LA B
1 52 B AR R F E RO WA K is
e

46. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

(c)

Write-down of inventories

Management reviews the net realisable values and aging
of inventories and makes allowance for obsolete and slow
moving inventory items identified with reference to existing
market environment, the sales performance in previous
years and estimated net realisable value, i.e. the estimated
selling price of completion, less estimated cost of
completion and the estimated cost necessary to make the
sale. A specific allowance for inventories is made if the
estimated net realisable value of the inventories is lower
than its carrying value. The carrying amount of inventories
at 31 December 2013 was approximately
RMB14,346,742,000 (2012: RMB12,356,211,000).

Construction contracts

As explained in policy notes 2(o) and 2(w)(ii), revenue and
profit recognition on contract work is dependent on
estimating the total outcome of the construction contract,
as well as the work done to date. Based on the Group’s
recent experience and the nature of the construction
activity undertaken by the Group, the Group makes
estimates of the point at which it considers the work is
sufficiently advanced such that the costs to complete and
revenue can be reliably estimated. As a result, until this
point is reached the amounts due from/(to) customers for
contract work as disclosed in note 24 will not include profit
which the Group may eventually realise from the work
done to date. In addition, actual outcomes in terms of total
cost or revenue may be higher or lower than estimated at
the end of the reporting period, which would affect the
revenue and profit recognised in future years as an
adjustment to the amounts recorded to date.
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46. BEE AT RHAE @)

(d)

M- BERRE BATLHHEER
REVEERE

EEA RN 2597 g EIE A
EREE BNt HwHAERRERLE
ENREE FHREEEgEAIE
B ]+ 3 BT REAR B B FE 2(m) (i) AT
BAWME - BERZE - AN TE
ERRELEERBENS T BORER
TEEE - W - BE KR R TEN
T EERNRIES T BTG - A

ST EEER T TREENRE
B EFEIIRBEEHBEREENR
EEMEEAKEN  FHEAERS
EITRERR - MBHIB THRIR
REAEESRERKEE - ATKREE
%u&ﬁﬁ@ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%fﬁ
MEFNRRETE - EETEMRE
@%'%ééﬁéimﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁi
CMBREHEE  AmmEHEEK
FRISER A EEELERHE -

AEBEEETRAIKEHEEENE
BHENSHAMAEATHERDN
ER BRERESERERENRSE
FTYEL M h T R E B ML E R ARNTE
Al e 2 AETHIRE M - ATRE g YA
ENRAEELEATE  WgE

HMESBIINFEERREERERR
REABER - R ZFE—=F+=A
=+—H8: % BEIRERERN
THHEERREFEENRRES R
#45 AN R #6,633,287,000L( =&
—ZF(KEI): AR B
6,416,132,000t ) A R ¥
506,798,000 T(—FB——4 : ARK
433,246,000 ) R A R &
218,357,000 L (ZF—=4F : AR
233,393,0007T) °

46. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(d)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, prepaid
lease payments and intangible assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment, prepaid lease payments and
intangible assets may not be recoverable, the asset may be
considered “impaired”, and an impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy for
impairment of property, plant and equipment, prepaid lease
payments and intangible assets as described in note 2(m)
(ii). The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment,
prepaid lease payments and intangible assets are reviewed
periodically in order to assess whether the recoverable
amounts have declined below the carrying amounts. These
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their recorded
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. When such a
decline has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to the
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater
of the fair value less costs of disposal and the value in use.
In determining the value in use, expected cash flows
generated by the asset are discounted to their present
value, which requires significant judgement relating to the
level of selling price and the amount of operating costs.
The Group uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation
of the recoverable amount, including estimates based on
reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections of
selling price and the amount of operating costs. Changes in
these estimates could have a significant impact on the
carrying amount of the assets and could result in additional
impairment charge or reversal of impairment in future
periods. As at 31 December 2013, the carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment, prepaid lease payments and
intangible assets were approximately RMB6,633,287,000
(2012 (restated): RMB6,416,132,000), RMB506,798,000
(2012: RMB433,246,000) and RMB218,357,000 (2012:
RMB233,393,000) respectively.
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46. BEE AT RHAE @)

(e)

(f)

(9)

IR - RIER b EKRKRE

NEBEGEFEEB AKRGEEL AN
T R M BR R R E A R R B 2
BRI - AEBRIBEKERRE
AR R - EHEAGER
BT MR A B0 1 5T B U AR R R HL b g
Wk stk 2 RE RS o MEBAZ
BR R - BRI SRE A RN
Frstd - RZE—=F+=A
=+—H ' BRRER R E U A
R EE SO A AR
14,452,023,000 (= F —Z4F : A
R #15,286,812,0007T ) & A R #
601,902,000t ( — E— - F (K &
5)) « AR# 418,809,0007T) °

fTEEmIA

EETITESMTIANAREER
FERE HE R RRE G E R E A
WS EE - RATRO TSR
R/ SEERENREEHETAAE
BEELASAFE RZT—=F+=
A=+—8 T4 EENKREE
9 A/ AR ®117,933,000c( = F
——4%: AR¥15,422,0007T) °

M - BENRBZEFAIERER

REBELHME  BEMRBESER
BER  RERETRINE - A%E
BB AERFR  ORED
X BELAREBEBENHEBIEES
B AETEAREBEHILE R
DREEENTDE  BELRREERR
e AR T m AR SR I A BB TR
R TER RAR T (AT © HBEAR
REMAHEEEREC - QIR H RS
EEBM-

46. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(e)

()

(g)

Impairment for trade, bills and other receivables

The Group estimates impairment losses for trade and other
receivables resulting from the inability of the debtors to
make the required payments. The Group bases the
estimates on the ageing of the trade and other receivables
balance, debtors' credit-worthiness, and historical write-off
experience. If the financial conditions of the debtors were
to deteriorate, actual write-offs would be higher than
estimated. As at 31 December 2013, the carrying amounts
of trade receivables and other receivables were
approximately RMB14,452,023,000 (2012:
RMB15,286,812,000) and RMB601,902,000 (2012
(restated): RMB418,809,000) respectively.

Derivative financial instruments

In determining the fair value of the derivative financial
instruments, considerable judgement is required to
interpret market data used in the valuation techniques. The
use of different market assumptions and/or estimation
methodologies may have a material effect on the estimated
fair value amounts. As at 31 December 2013, the carrying
amounts of derivative financial assets was approximately
RMB117,933,000 (2012: RMB15,422,000).

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis by taking into account the residual value.
The Group reviews the estimated useful lives periodically
to determine the related depreciation charges for its items
of property, plant and equipment. The estimation is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of
items of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions with consideration of expected technology
renovation. Depreciation charges may be adjusted if there
are significant changes in prior assumptions and
estimation.
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46. BEE AT RHAE @)

(h)

(i)

B

REBMBEMRE RETEFE LG
R - EREREANIGR A
M BT ERETRESE - A%
EREBAEEHHBBORAET SR
TFEM - BmEAEREREMEE
BERHERABITET  MARSEE
BEA GRS ERBHE RN=F
—=F+ZA=+—0 BENER
B4 5 AR #630,168,0007( = F
——fF : AR¥963,429,0007T) °

KFEEIHRE

AEBPEABETEHABENK &
BEFHHRECXAEBIERER R
NFBEEMHTEEMEED T
RFARIARE - EEOHFEE
B A HIE o TEIEL 2B - REE
MRS AREREAZIHANER
MBS o AR EBEREIFHELIRE
ZIHE  BEREBEEHIOIER
FHEMIRE - EERERARFEMN
ARBEMIFEEKRGTE - RZT
— =+ A=+—HEBZRIHE
EMEREEL A AR 461,202,000
T(ZE—=%F : AR 248,327,000
TT) e

47. LB #F

mRETHREESI TEB A6 BB®REK
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46. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(h) Provisions

The Group makes provisions for product warranty and
onerous contracts. Management estimates the provision
based on contract terms, available knowledge and past
experience. The Group recognises provisions to the extent
that it has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of a past event; it is more likely than not that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation; and that the amount can
be reliably estimated. As at 31 December 2013, the
carrying amount of provisions was approximately
RMB630,168,000 (2012: RMB963,429,000).

(i) Held-to-maturity investments

The Group classifies non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that an
entity has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity as held to maturity. This classification requires
significant judgment. In making this judgment, the Group
evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments
to maturity. If the Group fails to keep these investments to
maturity, it will be required to reclassify the whole class as
available-for-sale. The investments would therefore be
measured at fair value not amortised cost. The carrying
amount of held-to-maturity investments at 31 December
2013 was approximately RMB461,202,000 (2012:
RMB248,327,000).

47. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Due to the business combinations under common control, the
comparative amounts of the financial statements have been
restated to consolidate the results of relevant subsidiaries from
the earliest financial period presented.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
HE—2-=Ff-A=f—ALHFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

48. BE—_E—=5+=-HA=+—
BILEFEEEEMGENARENRZ
5]  FTEARREZEBLEY
488

=

BEAMBHRRTEER  BAGFMA
BEEMATREBEEZ-_ZE—=5+_A
=T BIEFERARERNER - FER
KB - LRI FZITEREERMN -

48. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2013

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued the following amendments, new standards and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2013 and which have not been adopted in these

BN RS LA BREMTISHRE LR
(g7]) —E-ZTFZE
“E-—FREBz
FREYE?
BRI REER AR RS ER
(83]) —E——F%F
“E-CFEH
FEDES
BEMEHREEAFEIR LHMIAS
EETBREENE 145 EERTEE
EAVBRMEENEIS BENBHREERS
REBRIEHEAER 95 B3R H A3 B A
F7% (B3T) PRV R R
BRI RS LR BEEE

F105%  BEMBRE
ERF12RRBRES

HERISE 27 5% (1B7])
BREES 1957

REBAGE - ER

(3D R
BRGNS 2R BHeBEERTR
(f83]) B
BEEERE 36 FEMEEZA
(f&3]) Yoo B R
BR

BEEERE 9N ITAETAEE R
(f&3]) G TE
EE(ERMBHREEE HE

ZE®)-ZEBENR

financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 14

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendments to HKAS 36

Amendments to HKAS 39

HK (IFRIC)-Int 21

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle®

Financial Instruments?®

Regulatory Deferral Accounts*

Mandatory Effective Date of
HKFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures®

Investment Entities’

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions®

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities’

Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets’

Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting’

Levies'
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
HE—FT—=F+-A=+—ALEH
For the year ended 31 December 2013

48. BE—_E—=F+=-H=+-—

49.

HIEFEEEEHGENRERZ
1&53] - FTERRZEZBESY
¢

VRZE-OE-A-ARZRFAENEE
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2 RZE-MELA-ARZERENEE
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O AIMEER — BHAERPMEREERR
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RARMEBRMBRARFE

TREBEARANR-_ZE-—=F1+_A4
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MR AR

Particulars

48. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

49.

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2013 (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014,
with limited exceptions

8 Available for application — the mandatory effective date will be
determined when the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are
finalised

4 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning
on or after 1 January 2016

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

The following list contains only the particulars of the Company’s
subsidiaries at 31 December 2013 which, in the opinion of the
directors, principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of
the Group. All of these subsidiaries are incorporated and
operating in the PRC.

ARAER
HEMEREELLS

Percentage of nominal

MEARER of registered  value of registered capital  FEEE)
Name of subsidiary share capital held by the Company Principal activities
ARBTT Bz el %
RMB’000 Directly Indirectly
% %
MR BRERERSIAA 746,853 92.08 - Manufacture of boilers
EERE
MR ESHBERSIAA* 709,237 89.63 - Manufacture of steam turbines

generator sets and hydro turbine
generator sets

EEZRURREDEEN KRR EDEE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

HE—F—=Ff-—A=f—ALEY
For the year ended 31 December 2013

49. A AR ETEMBELATFE®

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

ENCIES2 ]
M RA R HEMEAREEL A
Particulars Percentage of nominal
MEARER of registered  value of registered capital T ELE)
Name of subsidiary share capital held by the Company Principal activities
ARBTR B e %
RMB’000 Directly Indirectly
% %
BREESRBERIRERTTA 500,000 100 —  Provision of engineering services
for power stations
RBUHEHTIZRY
IREEENEIRE Sk 27,000 55.55 44.45  Trading
BRRE ** 25
BB SR ARSTAT 859,723 70.91 - Manufacture of steam turbines
HEETIAHE
BEEERBESHHEPARELD 80,000 100 - Manufacture of valves
M
AERENERR TREFESL 160,000 75 — Research and development of power
ABRAF* equipment engineerisation technology
Hi BB B R TN
B EEEREREEREI AT 70,000 - 96.86 Manufacture of engineering equipment
EETIZRE
MR SR SR TI2ER AR 60,000 - 100 Provision of engineering service to turbines
RRmRHETIRZRS
MERBERE(ER) BRSEEAR 87,550 - 55.64 Manufacture of small-scale hydro power
equipment
HENUKNBEERE
KR EERINEBERAT 687,207 100 - Manufacture of medium-to-heavy-duty
AC/DC motors and nuclear power main
pump motors
HERPREREREBHEZEEREH
REEE(RES)ENERE 2,050,000 34.15 65.85 Manufacture and assembly of

large-scale thermal power, nuclear power
and gas turbine

EEMREALANE RERMRE K



S E  EANESC)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
HE—FT—=F+-A=+—ALEH
For the year ended 31 December 2013

49. A AR ETEMBELATFE®

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

VNSESE S|
AR AFE EMEREEL B
Particulars Percentage of nominal
HWEARER of registered  value of registered capital ~  EZ &
Name of subsidiary share capital held by the Company Principal activities
ARETR B %
RMB’000 Directly Indirectly
% %
IBREEHR (ET) AREEAR* 365,000 - 100 Manufacture of wind power generation
systems and related raw materials
FERNEERELABRRME
KREEREBEVEBERETAR* 1,500,000 55 36 Depository and financial advisory services

* BEREMEAT
> BBRAT

AR 2 30 B A AR BT /BB X B B AT AR (B 7 8
%o

B2 =FfRgrR=-Z—=-F+=A
=+—ALFE AEETEHEFENIE
TRt B A A o

REBEE-Z—=F+-A=+—HLLFE -
RNEE G HE T M EM B A 7S B T
BERIEREALAFAREANERERE
RAFNER - ARRIEERZEN B A A
MEMPEERAEESTEE  WEER
Ef iz sk B8 o

TR R B W5k F AR 7

* Limited liability company

**  Joint stock limited company

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities during

the year.

The Group had no subsidiaries which have material non-

controlling interests for the years ended 31 December 2013 and

2012.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group had
liquidated two of its subsidiaries namely " E& A ME T A
REMA A and EFRIEBEZ B R A F. The Group had
received all the assets and assumed all the liabilities of these

subsidiaries, no gain or loss was recognised.
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Disclosure of Significant Events

1.

Significant Meetings Convened

1.  General Meetings

(1

(2)

On 5 January 2013, the 2013 Extraordinary General
Meeting of the Company was held in the conference
room on 17th Floor of our headquarters. Matters in
relation to the appointment of members to the
seventh session of the Board of Directors and
Supervisory Committee as set out in the notice of
Extraordinary General Meeting dated 12 October
2012 were duly passed on the meeting.

On 10 May 2013, the 2012 Annual General Meeting
of the Company was held in the conference room on
17th Floor of our headquarters. Matters in relation to
the Company’s Report of the Directors and Report of
the Supervisory Committee of Year 2012 as well as
the distribution of 2012 dividends as set out in the
Notice of Annual General Meeting dated 25 March
2013 were duly passed at the meeting.

2. Board Meetings

(1

On 5 January 2013, the seventh session of the Board
of the Company convened its first meeting to
consider and approve matters on the election of
Chairman and Vice-Chairman; establishment of
special committees of the Board and appoint
members to each committee; engagement of the
general manager; the deputy general manager and
the company secretary of the Company; and the
increase in capital of the Power-Generating
Equipment National Engineering Research Center.




(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

BEEFHBBR®

Disclosure of Significant Events (continued)

“E—=H=A"+=B"' 2
AARATEE-_RESTSH
EBRLHAET AR T ——F
FERERS HWRAEERE
EAREAFZFENERE R
AR - ERAREENAER
AAERKE  BEAREMS
REBEABEER -

—E—=fFAA+H AFA
MTLtRE=ZXREEEH 2
W HEE T BRI B 51 B B AT
38 E AR BR M Bl R B S 1R AR
BRERRER -

ZE—=FRAZ+B 2
AARTLtEERESS®
ERUAETZECRELE
RABEIERITER WS
EEERETEEXFEETE MR
HEEGEE RRIZE—=
FLHFFTELAELEERRE
FTTEAIER « M AR AR
EEBRIEE  BEEEAA
EINGFEMER - EHLNFEB
AR HEE 7 T R B IS AT
aEEE -

“E—=fN\A-t=B"' 2
AARATLELRESTSH
FRITHETRRI-ZZ—=F
THEXEREREFTE®RS
£ ERATBEBHEIAR
BESH -

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

On 23 March 2013, the seventh session of the Board
of the Company convened its second meeting to
consider and approve matters on the 2012 annual
results of the Company; the entering into the
Management Entrustment Agreement between
Harbin Electric Corporation and the Company;
amendments to the articles of association and
structure reorganization of the Company; and the
recruitment of relevant senior management of the
Company.

On 10 May 2013, the seventh session of the Board
of the Company convened its third meeting to
consider and approve matters on the introduction of
Alston E-graded compressor technology by Harbin
Turbine Company Limited and the establishment of
joint venture engaged in after-sales service.

On 26 June 2013, the seventh session of the Board
of the Company convened its fourth meeting to
consider and approve matters on the appointment of
Mr. Fan Fu-chun as an independent non-executive
director of the company, the chairman of the audit
committee of the Board and a member of the
nomination committee; the estimated progress of
key production and operation indexes in the first half
of 2013; the equity structure reorganization and
increase in capital of the Finance Company; the
increase in capital of HE International Company; and
the integration of wind power business through
equity replacement by the Electric Machinery
Company.

On 23 August 2013, the seventh session of the
Board of the Company convened its fifth meeting to
consider and approve matters on the 2013 Interim
Report and Report of Directors of the Company; and
the acquisition of single staff apartment.
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Disclosure of Significant Events (continued)

“E—=Ht+A-+NB 2
AARATEEANRESTSE
BARLHAETHRERRAA
BEXFIHEE LA QA
RE - ERMEEEE B RL
BE =8 MBI EST RS
M REFEIR

Z BEAREEREESRETER
1+ EXEHE

(1)

(2)
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On 29 October 2013, the seventh session of the
Board of the Company convened its sixth meeting to
consider and approve matters on the issuance of
guarantee letter by the parent company in respect of
Phase 3 of the Vietnam Yongxin Project (#iE7k#73
HI5 B ) by HE International Company; the report on
capitalized national funding; and the report on
allocation of profit among the “Three Factories”.

2. Significant Events and Material Contracts

1.  Significant Events

(1)

(2)

In 2013, six corporations including the Company and
its subsidiaries, namely Harbin Electrical Machinery
Company Limited, Harbin Boiler Company Limited,
Harbin Turbine Company Limited, Harbin Electric
Power Equipment Company Limited and HE Harbin
Power Plant Valve Company Limited were recognized
as High and New Technology Enterprises, which
entitles the Companies to a 15% preferential
enterprise income tax rate.

In January 2013, the following were approved on the
general meeting: the re-election of Board of Directors
and Supervisory Committee; the election of the
seventh session of the Board of Directors and
supervisor to the Supervisory Committee; and the
establishment of special committees of the Board
and appointment of members to each committee.
The Board approved the election of Chairman and
Vice-chairman of the Company; the engagement of
the general manager; the deputy general manager
and the company secretary of the Company. In June
2013, the Board approved the appointment of Mr.
Fan Fu-chun as an independent non-executive
director of the company, the chairman of the audit
committee of the Board and a member of the
nomination committee.
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Disclosure of Significant Events (continued)
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(4)

In March 2013, the Board approved the entering into
the Management Entrustment Agreement between
the Company and Harbin Electric Corporation; and at
the same time amended the articles of association,
reorganized the structure of the Company, and
engaged the senior Vice-President.

In March 2013, the issuance of five-year Domestic
Corporate Bonds (first tranche) was completed. Final
issuance size of the first tranche of Corporate Bonds
was RMB3 billion, and was listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange in May 2013.

In June 2013, the acquisition of equity interest in HE
Finance Company Limited (“Finance Company”) and
increase of its capital were approved by the Board.
The acquisition of equity interest and increase in
capital were completed in December 2013, and the
Company holds 91% equity interest of the Finance
Company, which became a subsidiary of the
Company.

In June 2013, the cross-acquisition of their respective
equity interests in the joint ventures held by Electric
Machinery Company and US General Electric
Company was approved by the Board. The
acquisition was completed in December 2013, where
the Electric Machinery Company disposed of all its
equity interest in GE Energy (Shenyang) Co., Ltd, and
acquired the entire equity interests in HE-GE Wind
Energy (Jiangsu) Company Limited. HE-GE Wind
Energy (Jiangsu) Company Limited became the
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Electric Machinery
Company.
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Disclosure of Significant Events (continued)
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(7)

In November 2013, the Company was awarded the
“Best Brand Value Listed Company (&£ miEEE L
™ A #])" on the 2013 China's Listed Companies
Overseas Summit and China Securities Golden
Bauhinia Awards Ceremony (2013 7 Bl /2 &l/& 5k
= R8RS [ & S M SR EAE) jointly
hosted by Takungpao and renowned securities
organizations from both Mainland China and Hong
Kong.

Material Contracts

(1)

(4)

(5)

(6)

In January 2013, the Company entered into a turn-
key contract for the2x660MW supercritical boiler
coal-fired power station in ZETES Phase 3, Turkey
with Turkey EREN Company.

In March 2013, the Company entered into a supply
contract for the 2x1,000MW ultra supercritical boiler
equipment in Bohe with ERE2EHBEREEFRAFA].

In March 2013, the Company entered into a supply
contract for the 2x660MW supercritical three hosts
facilities for Datong Coal Mine Group Tashan Phase 2
with RIEREZILEEBREERA.

In April 2013, the Company entered into a supply
contract for the 2x660MW supercritical turbine and
generator equipment with EMESTHEREEEHBRE
E/NCIR

In April 2013, the Company entered into a turn-key
contract for a 50MW wind farm project with Pakistan
Dewan Energy Company.

In April 2013, the Company entered into a retrofit
service contract for 2# host facilities with 282 T 2

BERBEARRA.
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Disclosure of Significant Events (continued)
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(7)

(8)

9)

(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

In May 2013, the Company entered into a supply
contract for the 2x1,060MW ultra supercritical boiler
equipment for Datong Sanmenxia Project Phase 3

with KE=FIKE HBREEAA].

In May 2013, the Company entered into a turn-key
contract for the wind farm project with a total
installed capacity of 250MW for NBT Malakoff,
Pakistan with Pakistan NBT Company.

In May 2013, the Company entered into a general
upgrading and retrofit service contract for Number 2
Boiler with &[5 HEEGR QA

In June 2013, the Company entered into a supply
contract for 8 sets of 660MWW supercritical (direct air-
cooling) lignite power generator three host facilities
(with denitration equipment) with A5 & $REEERM A
RAAE].

In June 2013, the Company entered into a contract
for the 2x660MW denitration and retrofit EPC project
in Baicheng with & A F].

In June 2013, the Company entered into a contract
for the 2x600MW denitration and retrofit EPC project
in Shuangyashan with BIE A A .

In July 2013, the Company entered into a supply
contract for the 2x300MW subcritical host facilities
for the GIPCL station in Surat, India with ENEBERIA
al.

In July 2013, the Company entered into a supply
contract for the 4x300MW pumped-storage water
turbines for Shenzhen with FE577 B4 FHIE AR E N
Al.

In July 2013, the Company entered into a turn-key
contract for the 500KV&230KV electric transmission
and distribution circuit and substation construction
project in Ecuador with B AZMBERE 1A A .
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(16)

(17)

(18)

(19)

(20)

(21)

(22)

(23)

In July 2013, the Company entered into a turn-key
contract for the 276MW coal-fired power station
project in Baku, Bangladesh with Bangladesh Power
Development Board (BPDB).

In July 2013, the Company entered into a flow path
retrofit service contract for the 2x800MW
supercritical turbine in Suizhong with #Z & 3% E B R

BEERF.

In August 2013, the Company entered into a supply
contract for 2x1,000MW ultra supercritical turbine
equipment for the China Power Investment's Xiexin
Binhai (H & #% 1% 2 /& /&) project with China Power
Investment Corporation.

In August 2013, the Company entered into a supply
contract for 2#3# steamer and its support and
grappling equipment for the nuclear power station in
Karachi, Pakistan with China National Nuclear
Corporation.

In August 2013, the Company entered into a supply
contract for 2 sets of 9FB combined-cycle
cogeneration power unit island equipment in Xinyang
with St RPREEBETRAR DA,

In August 2013, the Company entered into a supply
contract for 2 sets of 9FB combined-cycle
cogeneration power unit island equipment in
Nanjiang, Tianjin with FEE A A] .

In August 2013, the Company entered into a contract
for the wind-powered desalination pilot project
without grid connection in Dafeng County with )T &k

LR EKERBRAA].

In October 2013, the Company entered into a supply
contract for the 2x1,000MW ultra supercritical unit
and electricity equipment for the Guohuajiang
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In November 2013, the Company entered into a
supply contract for 6 sets of 660MW ultra
supercritical unit and electricity equipment for the
three China Resources Power projects in Qianxi,
Dafang and Luzhi, Guizhou with China Resources
Power Holding Co. Ltd.

In November 2013, the Company entered
into a supply contract for the 6x90MW water
turbines units equipment for the power station in 7
&, South Sudan with The Ministry of Electricity and
Dams of South Sudan.

In November 2013, the Company entered into a
retrofit service contract for the 2x210MW coal for oll
project for & £ B ¥ M Phase 1 in Pakistan with
Pakistan K-ENERGY Company Limited.

In December 2013, the Company entered into a
supply contract for the 2x1,000MW ultra supercritical
unit and electricity equipment for the Guohua
Yongzhou project with BIZE/A & .

In December 2013, the Company entered into a
supply contract for the 4x100MW water turbine
equipment for Iran Khersan Phase 3 Hydropower
Station with & &R A Al .

In December 2013, the Company entered into a
supply contract for the 4x150MW water turbine
equipment for Peru Quitaracsa Hydropower Station
with CMEC Company.

In December 2013, the Company entered into a
supply contract for the 12 sets of masking main-
pump generator equipment for the CNNC CAP1000
follow-up project with China National Nuclear
Corporation.

Save as disclosed above, the Company does not have any other

discloseable matters which are not disclosed




N\,

all
ﬂl-l,-

EBH
MEEBRRAERAR
DERXERE

Harbin Electric Company Limited

A\_

NCIEESLS: cBe

R AR AEME
BEEIE

SERE™

A o e BHR A EE 2 it
35EiE

FEff5% : 2301001003796

DNEM A

REARKME
EEIE

BT

il

= KE) /1 ¥& 39 5% B FE
EBE AR TS : 150040

B 5E : 86-451-82135717 3482135727

{EH : 86-451-82135700
483k © www.chpec.com

EEBHER b

B

ERREH 315K
R AAE
1611601 =

NAEER

Information on the Company

REGISTERED NAME OF THE COMPANY
REEERBGERAT

ENGLISH NAME OF THE COMPANY

Harbin Electric Company Limited

REGISTERED ADDRESS OF THE COMPANY

Block 3

Nangang District High Technology Production Base
Harbin

Heilongjiang Province

People’s Republic of China

Registration No. 2301001003796

OFFICE ADDRESS OF THE COMPANY

Block B, 39 Sandadongli Road
Xiangfang District

Harbin

Heilongjiang Province

People’s Republic of China
Postcode: 150040

Tel: 86-451-82135717 or 82135727
Fax: 86-451-82135700

Website: www.chpec.com

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 1601, 16th Floor
LHT Tower
31 Queen's Road Central

Hong Kong

LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

Mr. Gong Jing-kun
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AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Wu Wei-zhang
Mr. Liu Zhi-quan

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Gao Xu-guang

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tung Tat Chiu, Michael

AUDITORS

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

9/F, Leighton Centre

77 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

Crowe Horwath China CPAs

4/F, Tower 2, No. 16 XiSihuanZhongLu
Haidian District

Beijing

People’s Republic of China

100039

LEGAL ADVISORS

as to PRC Law

HAIWEN & PARTNERS

Room 1016, Beijing Silver Tower
No. 2, Dongsanhuan North Road
Chaoyang District

Beijing

People’s Republic of China

as to Hong Kong Law

Reed Smith Richards Butler
20th Floor, Alexandra House
18 Chater Road

Central

Hong Kong
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22nd Floor West

110 Barclay Street

New York, NY 10286 USA
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P.O. Box 11258
Church Street Station
New York, NY 10286-1258
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LISTING INFORMATION

H Shares
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 1133

DEPOSITARY

The Bank of New York
American Depositary Receipts
22nd Floor West

110 Barclay Street

New York, NY 10286 USA

INVESTOR RELATIONS

P.O. Box 11258
Church Street Station
New York, NY 10286-1258

SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Hong Kong Registrars Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor
Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai

Hong Kong

INFORMATION ON THE COMPANY

Available at the Secretariat of the Board of Directors of
Harbin Electric Company Limited

Block B, 39 Sandadongli Road

Xiangfang District

Harbin

PRC

SHAREHOLDERS RECEPTION TIME

On 8th, 18th, and 28th (the following day in case a holiday)
From 9:00 a.m. to 11:00 a.m. and

From 2:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m.

Tel: 86-451-82135717 or 82135727

Fax: 86-451-82135700
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Documents Available for Inspection

1. AR —=FEHREER- 1. The original copy of the 2013 Annual Report of the Company.

2. ANPREEZZMIEMERIER ° 2. The original copy of the Company’s audited financial statements
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6. BRERATNEFEBIZIMUETEMS -

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of Harbin
Electric Company Limited (the “Company”) for the year of 2013 will be
held at Conference Room, 17th Floor, Block B, 39 Sandadongli Road,
Xiangfang District, Harbin, Heilongjiang Province, the People’s Republic
of China on Friday, 16th May, 2014 at 9:00 a.m. for the following
purposes:

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To consider and approve the Report of the Directors for the year
ended 31st December, 2013.

2. To consider and approve the Report of the Supervisory
Committee for the year ended 31st December, 2013.

3. To consider and approve the audited accounts and the auditor’s
report for the period from 1st January, 2013 to 31st December,
2013.

4. To declare the 2013 final dividend of RMBO0.08 per share
(appropriate tax included).

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS

5. To authorize the Board of Directors of the Company to appoint
any person to fill in a casual vacancy in the Board of Directors or
as an additional director, his term of office shall expire at the
conclusion of the next general meeting of the Company.

6. To authorize the Board of Directors of the Company to appoint

auditors and fix their remuneration.
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To authorize the Board of Directors of the Company, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and at times
they deem appropriate, to allot, on one or more occasions as it
deems appropriate, new H shares or new A shares with an
aggregate nominal amount not exceeding twenty percent (20%)
of the aggregate nominal amount of the Company's issued
shares as at the day of the passing of this resolution. The
authorization will be valid for a period of 12 months commencing
from the day of the passing of this resolution or remain valid until
its revocation or alteration by a special resolution at a general
meeting of the Company. Conditional upon the above resolution
to allot new shares or to repurchase shares being passed and
implemented, the Board of Directors of the Company shall be
authorized to make necessary amendments to clause 15 and
clause 16 of the Articles of Association of the Company, so as to
reflect the alterations of the Company’s share capital structure
and registered capital arising from the allotment of new shares.

To authorize the Board of Directors of the Company, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, to repurchase,
on one or more occasions, as it deems appropriate and through
the Stock Exchange, H shares with an aggregate nominal amount
not exceeding ten percent (10%) of the aggregate nominal
amount of the Company's issued shares as at the date of the
passing of this resolution. The authorization will be valid for a
period of 12 months commencing from the date of passing of
this resolution or remain valid until its revocation or alteration by
a special resolution at a general meeting of the Company.
Conditional upon the above resolutions to allot new shares or to
repurchase shares being passed and implemented, the Board of
Directors of the Company shall be authorized to make necessary
amendments to clause 15 and clause 16 of the Articles of
Association of the Company, so as to reflect the alterations of
the Company's share capital structure and registered capital

arising from the allotment of new shares.

By Order of the Board
Gao Xu-Guang
Company Secretary

Harbin, PRC, 21st March, 2014
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Registered Office of the Company:

Block 3, Nangang High Technology Production Base
Harbin, Heilongjiang Province

People’s Republic of China

Office Address of the Company:

Block B, No 39 Sandadongli Road, Xiangfang District
Harbin, Heilongjiang Province

People’s Republic of China

Notes:

1. For the purpose of determining shareholders’ entitlement to attend
and vote at the Annual General Meeting, the register of members of
the Company will be closed from 17th April, 2014 to 16th May, 2014
(both dates inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares will
be registered. Shareholders whose names appear on the register
before book closure shall be entitled to attend and vote at the Annual
General Meeting. Persons buying shares of the Company during the
period of book closure shall not be entitled to attend and vote at the
Annual General Meeting. In order to qualify for attending the Annual
General Meeting, all completed transfers of shares accompanied
with the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company's Registrar in Hong Kong, namely, Hong Kong Registrars
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on
16th April, 2014.

2. Shareholders intending to attend the Annual General Meeting shall
give written reply to the Company at its office address by 5:00 p.m.
on 25th April, 2014.

3. A Shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General
Meeting is entitled to appoint one or more persons (whether or not a
shareholder of the Company) as his proxy to attend and vote on his
behalf.

4. To be valid, the form of proxy, together with a notarially certified
power of attorney or other document of authority, if any, under which
the form is signed, must be deposited at the office address of the
Company not less than 24 hours before the time appointed for
holding the Annual General Meeting.
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